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Agro Tech Foods Limited

NOTICE TO MEMBERS

Noftice is hereby given that the Thirty Third (33') Annual General
Meeting of the Members of Agro Tech Foods Limited will be
held on Thursday, 20™ August, 2020 at 4.00 p.m. (IST) through
Video Conferencing ("VC") / Other Audio-Visual Means
("OAVM") to transact the following businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial
Statements for the Financial Year Ended 315 March, 2020,
the Consolidated Financial Statements for the said Financiall
Year and the Report of the Directors and Auditors thereon.

To declare a dividend for the Financial Year ended 31+
March, 2020.

To appoint a Director in place of Ms. Denise Lynn Hansen
(DIN: 07583110) who retires by rotation and, being eligible,
offers herself for reappointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS

4.

To consider and if thought fit, fo pass, with or without
modification, the following Resolution as an ORDINARY
RESOLUTION:

“RESOLVED that pursuant to the provisions of Section 148
and all other applicable provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014
including any modification(s) or re-enactment thereof,
M/s. Vajralingam & Co., Cost Accountants, the Cost
Auditors appointed by the Board of Directors of the
Company fo conduct the audit of the cost records of the
Company for the Financial year 2020-21, be paid
remuneration as set out in the Statement annexed to the
Notice convening this Meeting”.

NOTES:

1.

In view of the continuing Covid-19 pandemic, the Ministry
of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") has vide its circular dated
May 5, 2020 read with circulars dated April 8, 2020 and
April 13, 2020 (collectively referred to as *“MCA Circulars™)
permitted the holding of the Annual General Meeting
("AGM™) through VC / OAVM, without the physical
presence of the Members at a common venue. In
compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
(“Act”), SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”)
and MCA Circulars, the AGM of the Company is being held
through VC / OAVM. The deemed venue for the Thirty Third
AGM shall be the Registered Office of the Company.

In accordance with the Provisions of Section 102 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, an Explanatory
Statement in respect of item No. 4, being items of Special
Business, is annexed.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, a Member entitled to
aftend and vote at the AGM is entitled to appoint a proxy
to aftend and vote on his/her behalf and the proxy need
not be a Member of the Company. Since this AGM is being
held pursuant to the MCA Circulars through VC / OAVM,
physical attendance of Members has been dispensed with.
Accordingly, the facility for appointment of proxies by the
Members will not be available for the AGM and hence the
Proxy Form and Aftendance Slip are not annexed fo this
Notice.

Institutional / Corporate Shareholders (i.e. other than
individuals / HUF, NRI, etc.) are required to send a scanned

copy (PDF/JPG Format) of its Board or governing body
Resolution/Authorization etc., authorizing ifs representative
to attend the AGM through VC / OAVM on its behalf and
to vote through remote e-voting. The said Resolution/
Authorization shall be sent to the Scrutinizer by email through
its registered email address to saravanal015@gmail.com
with a copy marked to evoting@karvy.com

M/s. KFin Technologies Private Limited (KFintech) will be
providing facility for voting through remote e-voting, for
participation in the Thirty Third AGM through VC/OAVM and
e-voting during the AGM.

Members may join the Thirty Third AGM through VC/ OAVM
by following the procedure which shall be kept open for
the Members from 3.45 p.m. i.e. 15 minutes before the time
scheduled to start the AGM and the Company may close
the window for joining the VC/ OAVM 15 minutes affer the
scheduled fime to start the Thirty Third AGM. The detailed
instructions for participating in the Thirty Third AGM through
VC/OAVM are given as a separate attachment to this
Notice.

Members may note that the VC/OAVM provided by
KFintech, allows participation of at least 1000 Members on
a first-come-first-served basis. The large shareholders (i.e.
shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding), promoters,
institutional investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel,
the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination &
Remuneratfion Committee and Stakeholders Relationship
Committee, Auditors, etc. can aftend the AGM without
any restriction on account of first-come-first-served principle.

Members attending the AGM through VC / OAVM shall be
counted for the purpose of reckoning the quorum under
Section 103 of the Act.

The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the
Company shall remain closed from August 13, 2020 to
August 20, 2020 (both days inclusive). Valid Transfers of
Shares received at the office of Registrar and Transfer
Agents of the Company, KFintech, before the close of
business hours on 12 August, 2020 will be registered in time
for the transferees to become eligible for dividend, if
declared.

Dividend, if declared, will be paid, subject to deduction of
tax at source, within 30 days of the approval of the
Shareholders at the Annual General Meeting to those
Members entitled thereto and whose names shall appear
on the Register of Members of the Company as on the
close of business hours of August 12, 2020, or to their
mandatees. In respect of dematerialized shares, the
dividend will be payable on the basis of beneficial
ownership as on the close of business hours of August 12,
2020, as per details to be furnished by National Securities
Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services
(India) Limited (CDSL) for this purpose.

Brief profile of the Director proposed to be appointed/ re-
appointed is given towards the end of this Notice pursuant
to Regulations 26(4) & 36(3) of the Listing Regulations and
Secretarial Standard issued by Institute of Company
Secretaries of India. None of the Directors is related to one
another.

. As per Regulation 40 of SEBI Listing Regulations, as

amended, securities of listed companies can be fransferred
only in dematerialized form with effect from, April 1, 2019,
except in case of request received for transmission or
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fransposition of securities. In view of this and to eliminate
all risks associated with physical shares and for ease of
portfolio management, members holding shares in physical
form are requested fo consider converting their holdings
to dematerialized form. Members can contact the
Company or Company’s Registrars and Transfer Agents,
KFintech, for assistance in this regard. Members may also
refer to Frequently Asked Questions ("FAQs™) on Company’s
website : http://www.atfoods.com/investor-relations/other-
information.html.

To support the ‘Green Initiative’, Members who have not
yet registered their email addresses are requested to
register the same with their DPs in case the shares are held
by them in electronic form and with Company’s Registrars
and Transfer Agents, KFintech, in case the shares are held
by them in physical form.

Members are requested to update and/or intimate
changes, if any, pertaining to their name, postal address,
email address, telephone/ mobile numbers, Permanent
Account Number (PAN), mandates, nominations, power
of attorney, bank details such as, name of the bank and
branch details, bank account number, MICR code, IFSC
code, etc., to their DPs in case the shares are held by them
in electronic form and to Company’s Registrars and Transfer
Agents, KFintech, in case the shares are held by them in
physical form. Members are encouraged to utilize the
Electronic System (ECS) for receiving dividends.

SEBI has directed listed Companies to use electronic
payment modes such as NEFT, RTGS, ECS etc., for payments
to the investors. Members are requested to update their
bank details such as MICR, IFSC code etc., with the Registrar
and Transfer Agents, KFintech by submitting a cancelled
cheque, while Members holding shares in electronic form
are requested to update such bank details with their
respective Depository Participants.

Members who have mulfiple folios in identical names or
joint names in the same order are requested to intimate
the Registrar and Transfer Agents, KFintech about these
folios to enable consolidation of all such shareholdings into
one folio.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) vide
circular ref no. MRD/DoP/CIR-05/2007 dated April 27, 2007,
made PAN the sole identification numlber for all participants
fransacting in the securities market, irrespective of the
amount of fransaction. In continuation of the aforesaid
circular, it is hereby clarified that for securities market
fransactions and off market/private fransactions involving
fransfer of shares of listed companies in physical form, it
shall be mandatory for the transferee(s) to furnish copy of
PAN card to the Company /Registrar and Share Transfer
Agent for registration of such transfer of shares.

. In case of joint holders, the Member whose name appears

as the first holder in the order of names as per the Register
of Members of the Company will be entitled to vote at the
AGM.

The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and
their shareholding maintained under Section 170 of the Act,
the Register of Contracts or Arrangements in which the
directors are inferested, maintained under Section 189 of
the Act, and the relevant documents referred to in the
Notice will be available electronically for inspection by the
members during the AGM. Alldocuments referred fo in the
Notice will also be available electronically for inspection
without any fee by the members from the date of

19.

20.

21.

22.

circulation of this Notice up to the date of AGM. Members
seeking fo inspect such documents can send an email to
InvestorRedressal@atfoods.com.

Pursuant fo Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013, read
with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014, as substituted by the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2015 and
Regulation 44 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, the Company is pleased to provide the
facility to Members to exercise their right o vote on the
resolution proposed to be passed at AGM by electronic
means. The detailed instructions for e-voting are given as a
separate attachment to this Notice. The Members, whose
names appear in the Register of Members / List of Beneficial
Owners as on August 12, 2020, i.e. the date prior to the
commencement of book closure, being the cut-off date,
are entitled to vote on Resolutions set forth in this Notice.
Members may cast their votes on electronic voting system
from any place (remote e-voting). The remote e-voting
period will commence at 9.00 A.M. on Sunday, 16™ August,
2020 and will end at 5.00 P.M. on Wednesday, 19" August,
2020. Members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting
prior to the Thirty Third AGM may also participate in the
AGM through VC/OAVM but shall not be entitled to cast
their vote again. The Members joining the AGM through
VC/OAVM, who have not cast their vote by remote e-voting
shall be eligible to vote through e-voting system at the e-
AGM.

The Company has appointed M/s. Tumuluru & Company,
Company Secretaries Firm, to act as the Scrutinizer, to
scrutinize the entire e-voting process in a fair and
transparent manner. The Scrutinizer shall not later than 48
hours of conclusion of the AGM, submit his report of the
votes cast in favour or against, if any, to the Chairman of
the Company or a person authorised by him in writing, and
the result of the same will be disclosed forthwith. The
Company has appointed M/s. KFin Technologies Private
Limited as the Agency for the purpose of facilitating the
electronic voting.

In compliance with the above referred MCA Circulars and
SEBI Circular dated May 12, 2020, Notice of the AGM along
with the Annual Report 2019-20 is being sent only through
electronic mode to those Members whose email addresses
are registered with the Company / Depositories. Members
may note that the Notice and Annual Report 2019-20 will
also be available on the Company’s website
www.atfoods.com, websites of the Stock Exchangesi.e. BSE
Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited at
www.bseindia.com and www.nseindia.com respectively
and on the website of Company’s Registrar and Transfer
Agent, KFintech at https:// evoting.karvy.com.

For receiving all communication (including Annual Report)
from the Company electronically:

a) Members holding shares in physical mode and who
have not registered / updated their email address with
the Company are requested to register / update the
same by writing to the Company with details of folio
number and attfaching a self-attested copy of PAN
card at InvestorRedressal@atfoods.com or to KFintech
at einward.ris@kfinfech.com

b) Members holding shares in dematerialised mode are
requested to register / update their email addresses
with the relevant Depository Participant.
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23. Members are requested to note that, dividends if not
encashed for a consecutive period of 7 years from the date
of fransfer to Unpaid Dividend Account of the Company,
are liable to be fransferred fo the Investor Education and
Protection Fund ("IEPF”). The shares in respect of such
unclaimed dividends are also liable fo be fransferred o
the demat account of the IEPF Authority. In view of this,
Members are requested to claim their dividends from the
Company, within the stipulated timeline. The Members,
whose unclaimed dividends/shares have been transferred
to IEPF, may claim the same by making an online
application to the IEPF Authority in web Form No. IEPF-5
available on www.iepf.gov.in.

24. Unclaimed dividend for the financial year ended 315 March,
2013 will be due for transfer to IEPF on 315" August, 2020,
pursuant to the provisions of Section 124 of the Companies
Act, 2013. Inrespect of the said unclaimed dividend, it will
not be possible to entertain any claims received by
Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agents, KFintech,
after 16M August, 2020.

Details of unclaimed dividend in respect of the financial
year ended 31¢ March, 2013 and up to and including the
financial year ended 31 March, 2019 are available on the
Company’s website www.atfoods.com under Investor
Relations.

The unclaimed shares pertaining tfo the year 2012-13 will
also be transferred to IEPF of the Central Government on
or before 30™ September, 2020.

25. Members are requested to contact KFintech for encashing
the unclaimed dividends standing to the credit of their

account. The detailed dividend history and due dates for
transfer to |IEPF are available on the website of the
Company www.atfoods.com

26. Pursuant to Finance Act 2020, dividend income will be
taxable in the hands of shareholders w.e.f. April 1, 2020
and the Company is required to deduct tax at source from
dividend paid to shareholders at the prescribed rates. For
the prescribed rates for various categories, the shareholders
are requested to refer to the Finance Act, 2020 and
amendments thereof. The shareholders are requested to
update their PAN with the Company (ATFL) /KFintech (in
case of shares held in physical mode) and depositories (in
case of shares held in demat mode). A Resident individual
shareholder with PAN and who is not liable to pay income
tax can submit a yearly declaration in Form No. 15G/15H,
to avail the benefit of non-deduction of tax at source by
email fo einward.ris@kfintech.com by 11:59 p.m. IST on 12"
August, 2020. Shareholders are requested to note that in
case their PAN is not registered, the tax will be deducted
at a higher rate of 20%.

Non-resident shareholders can avail beneficial rates under
tax treaty between India and their country of residence,
subject to providing necessary documents i.e. No
Permanent Establishment and Beneficial Ownership
Declaration, Tax Residency Certificate, Form 10F, any other
document which may be required to avail the tax treaty
benefits by sending an email to einward.ris@kfintech.com.
The aforesaid declarations and documents need fo be
submitted by the shareholders by 11:59 p.m. IST on 12™
August, 2020.

27. Since the AGM will be held through VC / OAVM, the Route
Map is not annexed in this Notice.

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 AND THE LISTING REGULATIONS

Item No. 4

The Board, on the recommendation of the Audit Committee,
has approved the appointment and remuneration of the Cost
Auditor fo conduct the audit of the cost records of the
Company for the financial year 2020-21 at a fee not exceeding
%1,40,000/- (excluding taxes and out of pocket expenses).

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014, the remuneration payable to the Cost
Auditors has to be ratified by the shareholders of the Company.
Accordingly, consent of the Members is sought for passing an
Ordinary Resolution as set out at Item No. 4 of the Notice for
ratification of the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditor for
the financial year 2020-21.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their
relatives, of your Company is concerned or interested in the
said Resolution.

Your Directors recommend the Resolution for your approval.

Place : Gurugram
Date : 28™ May, 2020

By Order of the Board

for Agro Tech Foods Limited
Jyoti Chawla

Company Secretary

Registered Office:

31, Sarojini Devi Road,
Secunderabad - 500 003
Telangana, India.
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INSTRUCTIONS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING

(A.) In case a member receives an e-mail from the Company /
KFintech (for members whose e-mail addresses are registered
with the Company / Depository Participant(s)):

1.

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

Launch internet browser by typing the URL: https://
evoting.karvy.com

Entfer the login credentials (User ID and password given in
the e-mail). The E-Voting Event Number+Folio No. or DP ID
Client ID will be your User ID. However, if you are already
registered with KFintech for e-voting, you can use the
existing password for logging in. If required, please visit
https://evoting.karvy.com or contact toll-free numbers
1800- 425-8998 / 1800-345-4001 (from 9:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m.)
for your existing password.

After entering these details appropriately, click on "LOGIN”.

You will reach the Password change menu wherein you
are required to mandatorily change your password. The
new password shall comprise of minimum 8 characters with
at least one upper case (A-Z), one lower case (0-z), one
numeric value (0-9) and a special character. The system
will prompt you to change your password and update any
contact details like mobile, email etc. on first login. You
may also enter the secret question and answer of your
choice fo retrieve your password in case you forget it. It is
strongly recommended not to share your password with
any other person and take utmost care to keep your
password confidential.

You need to login again with the new credentials.

On successful login, the system will prompt you to select
the EVENT i.e., Agro Tech Foods Limited.

On the voting page, enter the number of shares as on the
cutoff date under FOR/AGAINST or alternately you may
enter partially any number in FOR and partially in AGAINST
but the total number in FOR/AGAINST taken together should
not exceed the total shareholding. You may also choose
the option ABSTAIN.

Members holding multiple folios / demat account shall
choose the voting process separately for each folio / demat
account.

Cast your vote by selecting an appropriate option and click
on SUBMIT. A confirmation box will be displayed. Click OK
to confirm else CANCEL to modify. Once you confirm, you
will not be allowed to modify your vote. During the voting
period, Members can login any number of times fill they
have voted on the Resolution.

Once the vote on the Resolution is cast by the Member,
he/she shall not be allowed to change it subsequently.

Members of the Company holding shares either in physical
form or in dematerialized form, as on 12 August, 2020, the
cutoff date (Record Date) may cast ftheir vote
electronically.

The Portal will be open for voting from 9.00 a.m. on 16"
August, 2020 and closes at 5.00 p.m. on 19" August, 2020.

Members of the Company who have purchased their
shares affer the dispafch of the notice but before the cutoff
date (12™ August, 2020) may contact KFintech at Tel No.
1800 345 4001 (toll free) to obtain login id and password or
send a request to einward.ris@kfintech.com

In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked
Questions (FAQs) for shareholders and e-voting User Manual

(8)

4.

for shareholders available at the download section of
https://evoting.KFintech.com or contact KFintech at Tel No.

1800 345 4001 (toll free).

In case of a member whose e-mail address is not registered
/ updated with the Company / KFintech / Depository
Participant(s), please follow the following steps to generate
your login credentials:

Members holding shares in physical mode, who have not
registered / updated their email addresses with the
Company, are requested to register / update the same by
writing to the Company at InvestorRedressal@atfoods.com
or by writing to KFintech at einward.ris@kfintech.com with
details of folio number and attfaching a self-attested copy
of PAN card.

Members holding shares in dematerialised mode who have
not registered their e-mail addresses with their Depository
Participant(s) are requested to register / update their email
addresses with the Depository Participant(s) with whom they
maintain their demat accounts.

After due verification, the Company / KFintech will forward
your login credentials o your registered email address.

Follow the instructions at Para A (1) to (10) to cast your
vote.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR PARTICIPATING THROUGH VC/ OAVM

1.

Members will be able to attend the Thirty Third AGM through
VC/OAVM through the video conferencing platform
provided by KFintech. This can be accessed at https://
evoting.kfintech.com under shareholders login by using the
remote e-voting credentials and selecting the EVENT for
the Company’s Thirty Third AGM. Please note that the
Members who do not have the User ID and Password for
e-voting or have forgotten the User ID and Password may
retrieve the same by following the remotfe e-voting
instructions mentioned in the Notice of AGM to avoid last
minute rush. Further, Members can also use the OTP based
login for logging in to the e-voting system.

Members will be required to use infernet with a good speed
to avoid any disturbance during the Meeting. It is
recommended fo join the Meeting through Google
Chrome for beftter experience.

Please note that Members connecting from mobile devices
or tabletfs or through laptops efc. connecting via mobile
hotspot, may experience Audio/Video loss due fo
fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore
recommended to use stable Wi-Fi or LAN connection to
mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

Members seeking any information with regard to the
accounts or any matter to be placed at the AGM, are
requested to write to the Company from their registered
email address, mentioning their name, DP ID and Client ID
No./Folio No. and Mobile No. to reach the Company’s
email address InvestorRedressal@atfoods.com on or before
14™ August, 2020. The same will be replied by the Company
suitably.

Members, who would like to express their views or ask
questions during the AGM with regard to the financial
statfements or any other matter to be placed at the AGM,
need to register themselves as a speaker by logging on to
https://emeetings.kfintech.com and clicking on the
‘Speaker Registration’ option available on the screen affer
login. The speaker registration will be open during 9.00 a.m.
on Monday, 17th August 2020 to 5.00 p.m. on Tuesday, 18th




Agro Tech Foods Limited

August, 2020. Only those Members who have registered
themselves as a speaker will be allowed to ask questions
during the AGM, depending upon the availability of time.
The Company reserves the right to restrict the number of
speakers depending on the availability of time for the AGM.

During the AGM, the Chairman shall, after response fo the
questions raised by the Members in advance, formally
propose to the Members participating through VC/OAVM
to vote on the Resolutions as set out in the Notice of the
Thirty Third AGM and announce the start of the casting of
vote through e-voting system. After the Members
partficipating through VC/OAVM, who are eligible and
interested to cast votes, have cast the votes, the e-voting
will be closed with the formal announcement of closure of
the Meeting.

Only those Members who will be present in the AGM
through the VC facility and have not casted their vote
through remote e-voting are eligible to vote through
evoting in the AGM.

Members who need assistance or help during the AGM,

can contfact KFin Technologies Private Limited, KFintech
Selenium Tower B, Plot No. 31 & 32, Financial District,
Nanakramguda, Gachibowli, Hyderabad - 500 032,
Telangana. Phone : +91 40 6716 2222.

GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS

1.

The Scrutinizer shall, immediately after the conclusion of
voting at the AGM, first count the votes cast during the
AGM, thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote
e-voting and make, not later than 48 hours of conclusion
of the AGM, a consolidated Scrutinizer’s Report of the total
votes cast in favour or against, if any, fo the Chairman or a
person authorised by him in writing, who shall countersign
the same.

The result declared along with the Scrutinizer’s Report shalll
be placed on the Company’s website www.atfoods.com
and on the website of www.kfintfech.com immediately. The
Company shall simultaneously forward the results to BSE
Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited,
where the shares of the Company are listed.
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ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ON DIRECTOR RECOMMENDED FOR
RE-APPOINTMENT AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING AS REQUIRED UNDER
REGULATION 36 OF THE SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE

REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015

Ms. Denise Lynn Hansen

A CPA from the State of Michigan and MBA in Integrative
Management from the Michigan State University, Denise is an
accomplished finance leader with extensive international
experience managing complexity in challenging business
environments. She has expertise in transforming financial
business partnering, developing control processes and policies,
negotiating complex contracts, establishing foreign subsidiaries
and improving financial results. With exceptional interpersonal
skills and proven ability to influence and motivate key
stakeholders. Denise has been a strategic leader with
experience in managing feams at corporate level as well as in
seed and mature markets. Over the last 25 years, Denise has
worked in some of the world’s leading companies like Herman
Miller Inc. and Mead Johnson Nutrition Company and is currently
employed with ConAgra Brands Inc. as Vice President,
International Finance responsible for Company’s international
finance organization, encompassing operations in over 50
countries.

Her DIN is 07583110
Date of Birth
18-10-1971

Date of Appoinment
24-08-2016

Companies (other than Agro Tech Foods Limited) in which Ms.
Denise Lynn Hansen holds Directorship and Committee
Membership:

Directorship:

Verde Valle, Mexico

Chairman of Board Committees
None

Member of Board Committees
None

Shareholding in the Company:

Ms. Denise Lynn Hansen does not hold any equity shares in the
Company.

Attendance record of the Directors seeking re-appointment

) Number of Meetings
Directors
Held Attended
Denise Lynn Hansen 4 3

Inter-se relationships between Board Members
There are no inter-se relationships between the Board Members.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

Your Directors hereby present their Annual Report,
together with the audited accounts of the Company
for the financial year ended 315 March, 2020.

1. PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY
1.1 Results

Your Company’s performance for the year ended
315" March, 2020 is as follows:

® Millions)
Particulars 2019-20 2018-19
Net Sales 8,343.63 8,230.56

Other Income* 41.13 42.55
Total Income 8,384.76 8,273.11
Operating Expenses 7,769.59 7,589.44

PBDIT 615.17  683.67
Depreciation 188.35 167.73
Interest 17.68 0.94
Profit Before Tax (PBT) 409.14 515.00
Taxes 69.93 175.93
Profit After Tax (PAT) 339.21 339.07

Other Comprehensive income (3.06) (0.50)
Total Comprehensive income 336.15  338.57

*Includes other operating revenue

Net Sales for the year were 1 % higher than Prior Year
with the Foods share of the business increasing by 400
bps to 31% of Total Revenues. The Foods business
reached a new high of ¥ 259 crore with a 15% growth
over Prior Year driven by robust growth in Act Il Ready
to Cook Popcorn and Sundrop Peanut Butter
supported by an aggressive new product roll out
including Sweet Corn, Extruded Breakfast Cereals,
Granola Cereals, Choco Spreads and Chocolate
Confectionery. The steady growth of the Foods
business reflects the continued solid progress being
made by the Company to be amongst India’s best
performing most respected Foods Companies. PBT
was down 21% vs PY and PAT was flat vs PY.

1.2 Key Indicators

FY'20 Gross Margin was lower than PY by % 4 Crore,
with a% 12 Crore increase in Foods GM largely but not
fully offsetting a % 16 crore reduction in Oils GM.

% in Crores
W B S s g &
£ ¥ B 18
n

The Company is reaching the end of a five year period
where losses in Edible Oils GM could not be fully
compensated by the growth in Foods GM because
of the lower share of the Foods business. Accordingly,
we are therefore approaching the inflexion point
where a fast-growing Foods business will more than
compensate for any potential losses in Edible Oils
placing the Company on a path of steady virtuous
growth in Revenues and Profits.
2. DIVIDEND
Given the continued strong cash flow of the Company
relative to the limited ongoing Capital Expenditure of
the Company, your Directors are pleased to
recommend a Dividend of % 3.00 per equity share of
the face value of ¥ 10/- each for the year ended
March 31¢, 2020 subject to the approval of the
shareholders at the Annual General Meeting to be
held on 20th August, 2020.
R Millions)

2019-20 2018-19
STATEMENT OF RETAINED EARNINGS
a) Atthe beginning of the year 2,902.53 2,634.90
b) Add: Profit for the year 339.21 339.07
c) Add: Other Comprehensive 3.06) (0.50)

Income (net of tax)

d) Less: Dividends* 58.77 58.42
e) Less: Dividends Distribution 12.52 12.52
Tax

f) Atthe end of the year 3,167.39 2,902.53

*Dividend given to Agro Tech ESOP Trust excluded of
% 2.15 mm (Previous year % 2.51 mm).

3. RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The Directors confirm that:

(@) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the
applicable accounting standards have been
followed along with proper explanation relating
to material departures;

(b) they have selected such accounting policies and
applied them consistently and made judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent
so as to give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Company at the end of the financial
year and of the profit and loss of the Company
for that period;

(©) they have taken proper and sufficient care for the
maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the
company and for preventing and detecting fraud
and other irregularities;

(d) they have prepared the annual accounts on a
going concern basis;
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(e) they have laid down internal financial controls to
be followed by the Company and that such
internal financial controls are adequate and were
operating effectively; and

(H they have devised proper systems to ensure
compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and that such systems were adequate and
operating effectively.

4. COVID- 19

In the last month of FY 2020, COVID-19, declared by
the World Health Organization a global pandemic,
developed rapidly into a global crisis, forcing
governments to enforce lock-downs of all economic
activity. The Ministry of Home Affairs vide order no. 40-
3/2020-DM-I(A) dated March 24, 2020 announced a
nation-wide lockdown as a measure to contain the
spread of Covid-19. For the Company, the focus
immediately shiffed fo ensuring the health and well-
being of all employees and on minimizing disruption
to the operations of the Company. The Company
immediately adopted a "Work froon Home’ model for
allits office-based employees. Owing to the lockdown,
the manufacturing operation and supply chain was
impacted in the second half of March 2020. However,
being in the manufacture of food products covered
under essential supplies, the Company has since then
seen a steady improvement in the supply chain with
increased regulator support and labour availability.
The Company is closely monitoring the impact of the
pandemic on all aspects of its business and is taking
appropriate measures and ensuring full compliance
with the directives issued by the Government in this
regard. As aresponsible memiber of the communities
that it operates in, the Company has contributed to
various Covid-19 relief programs run by the
Government and the Company has also contributed
to the PMCares Fund to support the Government
towards Covid-19 relief efforts. The Company is
confident that it will remain on track to join the ranks
of "India's Best Performing Most Respected Food
Companies”, supported by a strong balance sheet,
tight cost control initiatives, strong R&D model. A
diversified foods portfolio as a result of continued
innovation will help in navigating the challenges
presented by Covid-19.

5. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

In terms of the Listing Regulations, a report on
Corporate Governance along with Auditors” Report
on its compliance is annexed, forming part of the
Annual Report,

Additionally, this contains compliance report signed
by the CEO of the Company in connection with
compliance with the Code of Conduct, and also CEO/
CFO Certification as required by SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In line with the requirements of Companies Act, 2013,
your Company has constituted the Board Committees
and hasin place all the statutory Committees required
under the law. Details of Board Committees along with
their terms of reference, composition and meetings
of the Board and Board Committees held during the
year, are provided in the Corporate Governance
Report.

6. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORT
(MD&A)

Based on feedback fromm members on the Annual
Report and Accounts, this report includes MD&A as
appropriate so that duplication and overlap between
the Directors’ Report and a separate MD&A is avoided
and the entire materialis provided in a composite and
comprehensive document,

7. INDUSTRY STRUCTURE & DEVELOPMENTS

The rapid growth of the Food Industry continues,
particularly in the five categories which your Company
has chosen to compete in, which today account for
% 53,000 crore and have grown at a robust 15% per
annum over the last 5 years.

The challenge in capturing a profitable share of
growth of the Industry is fo have a balanced portfolio
which spans multiple price points and multiple
segments enabling your Company to have scale
across the supply chain - manufacturing,
tfransportation & warehousing and final distribution.
Your Company believes that with the multi-product
multi-price point portfolio now in hand there is a wide
runaway for growth which can enable the acquisition
of consumers and therefore Volumes which are margin
additive on a sustainable basis.

8. OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS

The continued growth of the Indian Foods market
represents an enormous opportunity for a steady
growth in Revenues and Profits.

The Company’s powerful Foods portfolio allows
representation today in 5 fast growing categories -
Ready to Cook Snacks, Ready to Eat Snacks, Spreads,
Breakfast Cereals and Chocolate Confectionery. Your
Director’s believe that these categories are sufficient
to power the Company into one of the strongest Food
Companies in India.

The primary threat to your Company’s P&L remains
the significant contribution of the Edible Oils business.
However, over time this has been significantly reduced
and in FY'20 the Foods business contributed to 31% of
Sales and 40% of Gross Margin. We are therefore
steadily moving towards a situation where a dominant
share of profits will come from our Foods business and
the potential adverse impact of this threat is being
steadily reduced.
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9. STATE OF THE COMPANY’S AFFAIRS

Your Company has registered a consistent growth of
14% CAGR in the Foods business over the last 10 years
through selective entry into fast growing categories.
This growth is now being further ramped up with 2 new
categories added in the back half of FY’20 the impact
of which is visible in the Q4 results of FY 20.

A Focus on consumer acquisition through a strong Value
for Money proposition enabled by a low-cost Capital
Expenditure and Operating Expenditure model means
that your Company is able to deliver significantly
superior products to competition at very competitive
prices. This is visible in recent launches in breakfast
cereals. In addition, the unique model of plant level
innovation with intensive collaboration with R&D and
Procurement with Marketing serving as the gatekeeper
ensures a seamless flow of innovation creating an
enormous runaway for growth as seen with the recent
launches of Chocolates and Sweet Corn.

Your Company today has very strong positions in both
Ready to Cook Snacks and Spreads. Similar positions
are now being built in the Breakfast Cereals and
Confectionery Categories with a c100% success rate
in new product launches.

A near national 6 plant Supply Chain for Ready to Eat
Snacks will serve as the backlbone of a multi-product/
multi- price point model which enables the Company
to offset the relatively smaller size of the business with
ameaningful portfolio to support profitable distribution
expansion.

The Company continued to focus on improving the
quality of the distribution network. In FY'20 the number
of active distributors increased further to 1100
customers significantly improving the robustness of the
network. This is also reflected in the continued strong
growth of the Foods business on the back of a solid
coverage of ¢ 400,000 stores.

In FY’20 the task of rebuilding the Unnao plant (which
caught fire in November, 2018) and building of the
plant at Chittoor was largely completed. Both plants
are expected to commence commercial production
in FY'21 and with this the Company will have a total
of 6 plants for Ready to Eat Snacks which will enable
profitable expansion of our Distribution Network. Work
on the 7™ plant at Kolkatta will start once we believe
the Mangaldai (Assam) plant is effectively leveraged
for supplying to Eastern India.

The Company is also effectively leveraging the plant
near Dhaka for improving penetration in Bangladesh
and well placed to benefit from the continued
economic growth of an important neighbour of India.
10. PRODUCT CATEGORIES

10.1 Ready to Cook Snacks:

Revenues from the Ready to Cook Snacks business
increased by 17% in FY'20 driven entirely by Volume

10

Growth. Infroduction of Sweet Corn enhanced the
total category growth by 160 bps with the Popcorn
business growing by 15% in Revenues. The entry into
the Sweet Corn category has been very well received
and the Company expects it to be a significant
contributor in the future.

10.2 Ready to Eat Shacks:

Revenues from the RTE Snacks business increased by
only 7% with the Category impacted most by the
lockdown in March, 2020 along with supply side issues
on Tortilla Chips (based entirely on third party suppliers
post the fire at the Unnao plant). Ready to Eat Popcorn
delivered strong growth with a more modest
performance in Extruded Snacks.

10.3 Spreads:

Revenues from the Spreads business increased by 17%
driven largely by a 14% growth in the base Peanut
Butter business supplemented by an additional 243
bps growth by the launch of Sundrop Cocoa Nut
Choco Spread. The launch of Choco Spreads reflects
the Company’s growing capabilities in Food
processing which makes possible SKU’s at extremely
attractive price points enabling in turn the
acceleration of category growth and the building of
a profitable business with minimal investments. Given
the task required on Choco Spreads, the Company
pushed back the launch of additional Nut Butters to
FY'21.

10.4 Breakfast Cereals:

In FY'20 the Company entered both the Extruded
Cereals and the Muesli/Granola categories with the
launch of Sundrop Popz and Sundrop Nutrify. Both
products have been extremely well received and are
significantly better than competitive offerings besides
being available at very competitive prices.

10.5 Chocolate Confectionery

In FY'20, the Company entered the Count Line
segment of Chocolate Confectionery with the launch
of Sundrop Duo. The entry was made through a
Coconut centered offering which was a significant
unmet consumer need in the Indian market. The
product has been extremely well received and the
Company is now proceeding to scale up packaging
capacities to be able to fully leverage the successful
launch of this product in a segment ignored by all the
existing players.

10.6 Edible Oils:

In FY'20, the Company focused on arresting the 3%
decline in Sundrop Edible Oils Volumes which was
witnessed in FY'19. This was partly achieved with a
decline of 1% in Volume translating into a 2% decline
in Revenues.

Revenues for the Crystal brand were also lower by 6%
(Molumes 10% lower) than PY reflecting the impact of
a very soft first half of the year.
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We will continue to manage the Edible Oils category
with minimal investments which enable us to support
strong growth of the Foods business.

11. RESEARCH, QUALITY & INNOVATION (RQl)

The unique Innovation Model created by the
Company has enabled an unprecedented level of
new product launches with near 100% success. The
model relies heavily on plant level innovation in
intensive collaboration with the R&D and Procurement
teams. With Marketing serving as a strong gatekeeper
this has led to the successful launches of Sweet Corn,
Choco Spreads, Breakfast Cereals and Chocolate
Confectionery all in a single year.

Innovation will continue to be the driver of growth for
your Company and we will make investments which
ensure that we deliver to consumers products which
address unmet consumer needs.

12. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, ABSORPTION,
TECHNOLOGY, FOREIGN EXCHANGE AND EMPLOYEE
PARTICULARS

A Statement giving details of conservation of energy,
technology absorption and foreign exchange
earnings and outgo in accordance with Rule 8(3) of
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is attached as
Annexure A and forms part of this report.

13. HUMAN RESOURCES / INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS
Engaged Employees are critical to the success of your
Company. In FY'20 your Company successfully
achieved an Engagement Score of 79%. The
continuing strong momentum in the Company driven
by solid Foods growth and Innovation has helped to
achieve this level.

Your Company will contfinue to ensure that we have
a highly engaged and productive organization to
deliver against our vision of being amongst “India’s
Best Performing Most Respected Food Companies”

14. KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS

The details of significant changes in the key financial
ratios are as follows:

2019-20 [2018-19 | % Variance]

(i) Debtors Turnover 10.73 12.58 -14.71%
(ii) Interest Coverage

Ratio 24.13 | 548.87 -95.60%

(iiiy Current Ratio 2.74 2.82 -2.84%

15. RETURN ON NET WORTH
The Return on Net worth as compared to the
immediately previous financial year is as follows:
2019-20 2018-19
8.32% 9.02%

(i) Return on Net Worth
16. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

The information required under Section 197(12) of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(2) of the
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Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Amendment Rules, 2016
thereunder in respect of the top ten employees in
terms of remuneration drawn and employees who
were in receipt of remuneration aggregating 31.02
crores or more or were employed for part of the year
and were in receipt of remuneration aggregating
Z8.50 lakhs per month or more during the financial year
ending 31¢"March, 2020 is provided in the Annexure B
forming part of this Report.

17. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR
INVESTMENTS

Loans, guarantees and investments covered under
Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 form part of
the notes to the financial statements provided in this
Annual Report.

18. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

All contracts or arrangements or tfransactions entered
into by the Company during the financial year with
related parties were in the ordinary course of business
and on an arm’s length basis. During the year, the
Company had not entered into any contract or
arrangement or transaction with related parties which
could be considered material in accordance with the
policy of the Company on materiality of related party
transactions, Companies Act, 2013 and Listing
Regulations. Form AOC-2 containing the note on the
aforesaid related party tfransactions is enclosed as
Annexure C and forms part of this Report.

The Policy on materiality of related party transactions
and dealing with related party transactions as
approved by the Board may be accessed on the
Company’s website.: http:.//www.atfoods.com/
templates/home tpl/pdf/other info/
policy dealing related party transactions.pdf

The related party disclosures, including detail of
tfransaction with Promoter group, form part of the
financial statements provided in this Annual Report.

19. EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION PLAN

The Company, vide special resolution in the Annual
General Meeting of the Company held on 25™ July
2012 had approved “Agro Tech Employee Stock
Option Plan” ("Plan”). The Plan was further modified
vide special resolution in the Annual General Meeting
held on 24" July 2015 to align it with the provisions of
SEBI (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations,
2014 ("SEBI Regulations”) and other applicable
provisions for the time being in force. The Plan is
administered by Agro Tech ESOP Trust ("Trust”) under
the supervision of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company
("Committee”). The Plan is in compliance with the
provisions of SEBI Regulations and there has been no
material change in the Plan during the year. Further
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details of the Plan are available on the welbsite of the
Company at www.atfoods.com.

20. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

Your Company has continued to drive the Corporate
Social Responsibility program under Poshan where we
provide Peanut Butter to under nourished children.
Major focus area for implementation of this program
is Bharuch district in Gujarat, where our Peanut Butter
factory is situated. Apart from Gujarat, the program is
also under implementation in Delhi, Hyderabad,
Kashipur and Kolkata where our offices and factories
are located. For FY20, a total number of 44,584
children covered during the program, an increase of
33% when compared to the last year coverage with
a consequent increase in supply of Peanut Butter by
42%. Your Company has also contributed % 2,00,000
to the Government of Telengana to provide CCTVs
to improve the safety measures for women employees
attending work at Kothur Industrial Area. Responding
to the Prime Minister’s call for contfributions to
PMCARES Fund in view of the Covid-19 Pandemic, Your
Company contributed % 20,00,000. Overall the CSR
spends during the year amount to % 68,62,235, an
increase by 50% when compared to the previous year
spending. This spending comes to about 1.41% of
average PBT for the last three years which is slightly
less than mandatory requirement of 2%. With the
increasing spends year on year, we are progressing
towards this goal.

As per the Companies Act, 2013 as amended by
Companies (Amendment), Act, 2017, all Companies
having net worth of ¥ 500 crore or more, or furnover
of ¥ 1,000 crore or more or a net profit of ¥ 5 crore or
more during the immediately preceding financial year
will be required to constitute a CSR Committee of the
Board of Directors comprising three or more directors,
atleast one of whom will be an Independent Director.

Aligning with the guidelines, the Company has
constituted a CSR Committee comprising of Lt. Gen.
D B Singh as Chairman, Mr. Sanjaya Kulkarni, Mr.
Narendra Ambwani, Mr. Arun Bewoor, Ms. Veena
Gidwani, Ms. Denise Lynn Hansen and Ms. Jill Ann
Rahman as its Members. The Committee is responsible
for formulating and monitoring the CSR Policy of the
Company. The CSR Policy of the Company, as
approved by the Board of Directors is available on
the Company’s Website:

http:/www.atfoods.com/templates/home tpl/pdf/
other info/ATFL9%20CSR%20POLICY.pdf

The program Poshan also received the 2014 South Asia
Platinum SABRE Award for Corporate Social
Responsibility.

The Annual Report on CSR activities is annexed
herewith as Annexure D and forms part of this Report.
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21. RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

The Company has formulated and adopted risk
assessment and minimization framework which has
been adopted by the Board at the Board Meeting
held on 1 May 2006. The Company has framed a risk
management policy and testing in accordance with
the laid down policy is being carried out periodically.
The Senior Management has been having regular
Meetings for reassessing the risk environment and
necessary steps are being taken to effectively mitigate
the identified risks. A Risk Management Committee
also has been constituted with a Committee of the
Directors and senior management to address issues
which may threaten the existence of the company.

22. WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY (VIGIL MECHANISM)

The vigil mechanism under Whistle Blower Policy has
been approved by the Board of Directors on 17th
October, 2014. This Whistle Blower Policy of the
Company provides opportunities to employees to
access in good faith, to the Management, concerns
(in certain cases to the Audit Committee) in case they
observe unethical or improper practices (not
necessarily a violation of law) in the Company and to
secure those employees from unfair termination and
unfair prejudicial employment practices. The policy
has also been uploaded on the website of the
Company : http://www.atfoods.com/templates/
home tpl/pdf/other info/ATFL WB%20Policy
%20final.pdf

23. INFORMATION SYSTEMS

Your Company confinues to focus on the use of
technology and automation to drive productivity to
work efficiently with our Customers & Suppliers while
making available to our Employees robust information
to ensure best in class analysis of the business and
identification of opportunities to improve shareholder
return.

24. FINANCE AND ACCOUNTS
24.1 Internal Controls

The Company has a robust system of internal controls
commensurate with the size and nature of its
operations, to ensure orderly and efficient conduct
of business. These conftrols ensure safeguarding of
assets, prevention, and detection of fraud and error,
accuracy and completeness of accounting records,
timely preparation of reliable financial information and
adherence to the Company’s policies, procedures
and statutory obligations.

Your Company has established standard operating
procedures for smooth and efficient operations in
addition to ensuring internal controls. Your Company
has also documented:

e acomprehensive Code of Conduct for the Board
Members and employees of your Company
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e An Employee Handbook

* Whistle Blower Policy defined to provide channel
of communication without fear

e Comprehensive framework for Risk Management,
and

e CEO/CFO Certification for Financial Reporting
Controls to the Board

The Company has appointed M/s. Grant Thornton
India LLP as Internal Auditors to ensure adequacy of
infernal control systems and make recommendations
thereto. Audit reports are circulated to management,
which takes prompt action as necessary.

The Audit Committee of the Board meets periodically
to review the performance as reported by Auditors.
The Internal and External Auditors also aftend the
meetings and convey their views on the adequacy
of internal control systems as well as financial
disclosures. The Audit Committee also issues directives
and/or recommendations for enhancement in scope
and coverage of specific areas, wherever felt
necessary.

24.2. Cautionary Statement

Statements in this Directors’ Report and Management
Discussion and Analysis describing the Company’s
objectives, projections, estimates and expectations
may constitute “forward looking statements” within
the meaning of applicable laws and regulations.
Actual results may differ materially from those either
expressed or implied.

24.3 Outlook

Your Company is rapidly approaching an inflexion
point where the natural profitable growth in the Foods
business will more than offset risks in the Edible Oils
business creating a P&L where tight control on costs
can enable the improved margin to flow through to
the bottom line. We believe that the category choices
that we have made and the relentless pursuit of the
Revenue and Margin goals on the Foods business will
ensure that we willbecome a significant player in the
Indian Foods Industry and join the ranks of India’s Best
Performing Most Respected Food Companies.
Infrastructure to support quadrupling of the Foods
business and therefore doubling total Revenue of the
Company. The Company has acquired land near
Kolkata for the 71 plant in India and a 100% Subsidiary
is operational in Bangladesh to address a rapidly
growing market with a population of 165 MM people.

25. DIRECTORS

In accordance with the provisions of Article 143 of
the Articles of Association of the Company, in so far
as it is not inconsistent with the relevant provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013, Ms. Denise Lynn Hansen
retires by rotation and being eligible, offers herself for
re-appointment. A brief profile of Ms. Denise Lynn
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Hansen is given in the notice of the 33rd Annual
General Meeting.

All the Independent Directors of the Company have
also given a confirmation to the Company as
provided under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act,
2013 and Regulation 25 (8) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations,
2015 that:

a. they are persons of integrity and possess relevant
expertise and experience;

b. i. they are or were not a promoter of the
Company or its holding, subsidiary or associate
Company or member of the promoter group
of the company;

ii. they are not related to promoters or other
directors in the Company, its holding,
subsidiary or associate Company;

c. they do not have or had any pecuniary
fransaction or relationship other than
remuneration as such director or having
fransaction not exceeding ten per cent of their
tfotal income or such amount as may be
prescribed with the company, its holding,
subsidiary or associate Company, or their
promoters, or directors, during the two
immediately preceding financial years or during
the current financial year;

d. none of their relatives -

(M is holding any security of or interest in the

company, its holding, subsidiary or associate
company during the fwo immediately
preceding financial years or during the current
financial year:
Provided that the relative may hold security
or interest in the company of face value not
exceeding fifty lakh rupees or two per cent of
the paid-up capital of the company, its
holding, subsidiary or associate company or
such higher sum as may be prescribed;

(i is indebted to the company, its holding,
subsidiary or associate company or their
promoters, or directors, in excess of such
amount as may be prescribed during the two
immediately preceding financial years or
during the current financial year;

(i) has given a guarantee or provided any
security in connection with the indebtedness
of any third person to the company, its holding,
subsidiary or associate company or their
promoters, or directors of such holding
company, for such amount as may be
prescribed during the two immediately
preceding financial years or during the current
financial year; or
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(iv) has or had any other pecuniary tfransaction or
relationship with the company, its holding,
subsidiary or associate company, or their
promoters, or directors, amounting to two per
cent or more of its gross turnover or total
income or fifty lakh rupees or such higher
amount as may prescribed from time to time,
whichever is lower, singly orin combination with
the transactions referred to in sub-clause (i),
(i) or (iity during the two immediately preceding
financial years or during the current financial
year.

e. neither they nor any of their relatives -

() hold or has held the position of a key
managerial personnel or is or has been
employee of the Company or its holding,
subsidiary or associate Company in any of the
three financial years immediately preceding
the financial year in which they were proposed
to be appointed;

(i) is or has been an employee or proprietor or a
partner, in any of the three financial years
immediately preceding the financial year in
which they were proposed to be appointed,
of—

(A) a firm of auditors or company secretaries in
practice or cost auditors of the Company or
its holding, subsidiary or associate Company;
or

(B) any legal or a consulting firm that has or had
any transaction with the Company, its holding,
subsidiary or associate Company amounting
to ten per cent or more of the gross turnover
of such firm;

(iiiy held together with any relatives two per cent
or more of the total voting power of the
Company; or

(iv) is a Chief Executive or director, by whatever
name called, of any non-profit organization
that receives twenty-five per cent or more of
its receipts from the Company, any of its
promoters, directors or its holding, subsidiary
or associate Company or that holds two per
cent or more of the total voting power of the
Company;

(v) is a material supplier, service provider or
customer or alessor or lessee of the Company;

f.  they are not a non-independent director of any
other company on the board of which any non-
independent director of the Company is an
independent director.

g. they are not aware of any circumstance or

situation, which exist or may be reasonably
anticipated, that could impair or impact their
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ability to discharge their duties with an objective
independent judgment and without any external
influence.

h. they possess appropriate skills, experience and
knowledge in one or more fields of finance, law,
management, sales, marketing, administration,
research, corporate governance, technical
operations or other disciplines related to the
company’s business.

Lt. Gen. D B Singh, Mr. Sanjaya Kulkarni, Mr. Narendra
Ambwani, Mr. Arun Bewoor and Ms. Veena Gidwani
were re-appointed as non-executive and
Independent Directors by the shareholders’” at the
32" Annual General Meeting held on 171 July, 2019,
for a second consecutive term of five years fill 16™
July 2024, not liable to retire by rotation.

Hence, none of the independent Directors will retire
at the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

26. MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

The Board of Directors met 4 times during the period
April to March in the year 2019-2020 on the following
dates:

1. 24" April, 2019
2. 16" July, 2019
3. 234 October, 2019
4, 22 January, 2020

27. AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company’s Audit Committee presently comprises
of six Directors, all except one are non-executive and
Independent Directors. This is in compliance with
Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. Lt.
Gen. D.B. Singh, an Independent Director, is the
Chairman of the Committee while Mr. Sanjaya
Kulkarni, Mr.Narendra Ambwani, Mr. Arun Bewoor, Ms.
Denise Lynn Hansen and Ms. Veena Gidwani are its
Members. The Charter of the Committee isin line with
the requirements of Section 177 of the Companies Act,
2013 and the relevant clauses of the Listing
Regulations.

28. CRITERIA FOR REMUNERATING DIRECTORS, KEY
MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL AND OTHER EMPLOYEES

The performance of the Company’s Key Managerial
Personnel, Whole time Director and Employees is
measured on the progress being made on the
strategic vision of the Company and Profitability.
Progress against the strategic vision of the Company
is measured by continued improvement in Gross
Margin and share of the Foods business in the total
Net Sales of the Company. Profitability is measured
using Profit After Tax as a single measure.

The details as required under Rule 5 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
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Personnel) Rules, 2014 is being provided as an
Annexure B to this Report.

29. EVALUATION OF THE BOARD

The Company has formulated a Remuneration Policy
in line with the requirements of the Companies Act,
2013. The performance evaluation of independent
directors is done by the entire Board of Directors
(excluding the director being evaluated). On the basis
of the report of performance evaluation, it shall be
determined whether to extend or continue the term
of appointment of the independent directors.

The annual evaluation of the Board is done at three
levels as (i) Board as a whole; (i) Committees of the
Board and (i) Individual Directors and Chairperson.
A detailed Questionnaire is circulated to all individual
directors. The Directors are evaluated on the basis of
the following performance evaluation criteria namely
knowledge and competency, fulfilment of functions,
ability to function as a team, initiative, availability and
attendance, commitment, contribution and Integrity.
The Additional criteria for Independent directors are
independence, independent views and judgment.

The remuneration / commission to Non-Executive and
Independent Directors shall be fixed as per the
provisions contained under Companies Act, 2013. The
Non- Executive / Independent Director may receive
remuneration by way of fees for attending each
meeting of Board or Committee thereof, provided
that the amount of such fees shall not exceed
% 1,00,000/- (X one lakh only) per meeting of the Board
or Committee or such amount as may be prescribed
by the Central Government from time to time.

For Independent Women Directors, the sitting fee paid
is not less than the sitting fee payable to other
directors.

Commission may be paid within the monetary ceiling
limit approved by shareholders, subject to the limit not
exceeding 1% of the profits of the Company
computed as per the applicable provisions of the Act.

An Independent Director shall not be entitled to any
stock options of the Company.

Copy of the Nomination and Remuneration policy is
annexed herewith as Annexure E and forms part of
this Report and is also uploaded on the welbsite of the
Company, http://.atfoods.com/templates/home tpl/
pdf/other_info/Nomination%20and%20Remuneration
%20Policy.pdf

30. TRAINING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

Every new Independent Director of the Board attends
an orientation. To familiarize the new inductees with
the strategy, operations, business and functions of your
Company, the Senior Management make
presentations to the inductees about the Company’s
strategy, operations and products.
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The Company also encourages and supports its
Directors to update themselves with the rapidly
changing regulatory environment. Also, at the time
of appointment of independent directors, the
Company issues a formal letter of appointment
describing their roles, functions, duties and
responsibilities as a Director. The appointment letters
issued to independent directors are uploaded on the
website, _http://www.atfoods.com/templates/
home tpl/pdf/other info/terms conditions

appointment_independent directors.pdf
31. AUDITORS

M/s Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP, Chartered
Accountants, were appointed as the Statutory
Auditors of the Company by the shareholders’ at the
32" Annual General Meeting held on 171 July, 2019,
to hold office from the conclusion of the 32" Annuall
General Meeting till the conclusion of the 37" Annual
General Meeting.

The Report given by the Auditors M/s Deloitte Haskins
& Sells LLP, Chartered Accountants on the financial
statements of the Company for financial year 2019-
20 is part of the Annual Report. There has been no
qualification, reservation or adverse remark or
disclaimerin their Report. During the year under review,
the Auditors had not reported any matter under
Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 and
hence, no detail is required to be disclosed under
Section 134(3)(ca) of the Companies Act, 2013.

32. COST AUDIT

The Company is required to maintain the cost records
as specified by the Central Government under Section
148 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and accordingly
such accounts and records are made and maintained
by the Company. An Audit of the Cost Accounts
maintained by the Company is also conducted by a
Cost Auditor appointed by the Board subject to the
approval of Shareholders.

33. SECRETARIAL AUDIT

M/s. Tumuluru & Company, Company Secretaries Firm
has been appointed to conduct the Secretarial Audit
of the Company as required under the provisions of
Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of
the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and Regulation 24A
of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 and also to
provide the Secretarial Compliance Report for the
financial year 2019-20. Copy of the Secretarial Audit
Report in Form MR-3 is given as an Annexure F to this
Director’s Report. The Secretarial Audit Report does
not contain any qualification or adverse remarks.

34. SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

Your subsidiary, Sundrop Foods India Private Limited
has continued to perform the role of aiding the
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expansion of distribution and display of your products.
At the end of FY'20 the number of sales staff on the
rolls of the Company were 460.

Your company’s wholly owned subsidiary Agro Tech
Foods (Bangladesh) Pvt. Ltd has commenced
production in FY'18. This has enabled the Company
to build scale in Bangladesh and benefit from the
economic growth of a neighboring emerging market.

Your Company will also be working towards leveraging
your Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary Sundrop
Foods Lanka (Private) Limited and seek to establish a
local low-cost production model which will enable us
to benefit from the growth of our neighboring
countries.

During the year, the Board of Directors reviewed the
affairs of the subsidiary Companies. The Company has
published the audited consolidated financial
statements for the financial year 2019-20 and the same
forms part of this Annual Report. This Annual Report
does not contain the financial statements of our
subsidiaries. The statements highlighting the summnmary
of the financial performance of the subsidiaries in the
prescribed format is annexed as Annexure G o this
Report. The audited financial statements and related
information of subsidiaries are available for inspection
electronically and will be provided to any shareholder
on demand. The separate audited financial
statements in respect of each subsidiary Companies
is also available on the website of your Company.
http://www.atfoods.com/ investor-relations/annual-
reports.html.

35. ANNUAL RETURN

An extract of the Annual Return in Form MGT-9 as
provided under Section 92(3) of the Companies Act,
2013 and Rule 12 of the Companies (Management &
Administration) Rules, 2014 prepared as on 315 March,
2020 is attached as an Annexure H to this Directors'
Report.

36. BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY REPORT

SEBI (LODR) (Fifth Amendment) Regulations, 2019
notified on 26™ December 2019 mandated inclusion
of Business Responsibility Report (BRR) as part of the
Annual Report for top 1000 listed entities based on
market capitalization. In compliance with the
Regulation, the BRR is provided as part of this Annual
Report.

37. GENERAL

Your Directors state that no disclosures or reporting are
being made in respect of the following items as there
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were no applicable transactions or events on these

items during the year under review:

a. Details relating to deposits covered under Chapter
V of the Act.

b. Issue of equity shares with differential rights as to
dividend, voting or otherwise.

c. lIssue of shares (including sweat equity shares) to
employees of the Company under any scheme
save and except under the ESOP scheme referred
to in this Report.

d. The Managing Director of the Company does not
receive any remuneration or commission from any
of its subsidiaries.

e. No significant or material orders were passed by
the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which impact
the going concern status and Company’s
operations in future.

f.  The Company has complied with the provisions
relating to constitution of Internal Complaints
Committee and no cases reported or filed during
the year pursuant to the Sexual Harassment of
Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013.

g. During the year, your Company has not accepted
any public deposits under Chapter V of
Companies Act, 2013.

h. In terms of provisions of Investor Education and

Protection Fund (Awareness and Protection of
Investors) Rules, 2001,  4,97,466/- (as on 315 March,
2020) of unpaid /unclaimed dividends will be
transferred to Investor Education and Protection
Fund.
During the year the Company has transferred 8,776
unclaimed shares to IEPF account on 220
November, 2019. The detailed list of unclaimed
shares transferred to IEPF Authority is available in
the Company’s website www.atfoods.com

38. APPRECIATION

The Board places on record their appreciation for the

contribution of its customers, employees, distributors,

co-packers, suppliers and all other stakeholders
towards performance of the Company during the
year under review.

On Behalf of the Board
Sachin Gopal Lt. Gen. D.B. Singh
Managing Director & CEO Director
DIN 07439079 DIN 00239637
Place : Gurugram
Date : 28™ May, 2020
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ANNEXURES TO DIRECTOR’S REPORT

ANNEXURE A

PARTICULARS OF ENERGY CONSERVATION, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND
FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

(Information under Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014

1. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

Energy conservation is an indicator of how efficiently
a company can conduct its operations. ATFL
recognizes the importance of energy conservation
and has undertaken various energy efficient practices
that have strengthened the Company’s commitment
tfowards becoming an environment friendly
organization.

Your Company continues to use energy efficient and
sustainable HVAC programs at manufacturing facilities
established at Kothur, Telangana, Kashipur,
Uttarakhand, Unnao, Uftar Pradesh and Jhagadia,
Gujarat and the new plant at Mangaldai, Assam. In
addition, the Company has ensured that all new
lighting is moving to LED lamps together with a phasing
out of all non-LED lighting through a phased
replacement program. Solar power is also explored
for installation at manufacturing unifs.

2. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

In FY’20 your Company continued to use Technology
to drive Competitive Advantage and provide high
quality food products to our consumers. This included
the launch of peanut butter with chocolate and
chocolate almond spread designed to give
consumers a unique option of healthy and tasty
spread in an easy to use format and launch of Sundrop
Duo, a coconut filled chocolatey product as an
indulgence. Your company has also launched Nutrify,
an oats-based breakfast cereal which can also be a
snack alongwith launch of shelf stable Sweet corn with
seasoning under ready to cook format and roasted
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chickpeas with seasoning. Your company also
invested in in-house manufacturing of bulk chocolates
for inhouse use.

3. RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT (R&D)

Your Company has spent about % 34.26 Million
(including capital R&D of T 11.62 Million), this year
towards Research and Development totaling o about
0.41% of the Company’s turnover. Specific areas in
which R & D was carried out by the Company include
development of chocolate-based spreads, enrobed
products and peanut butter based products, gourmet
popcorn range in sweet and savory both categories.
There are also new variants developed for launch in
breakfast cereals, tortilla chips, extruded savory
snacks, Ready to Eat Popcorn and Indian snacks.

4. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO
(Accrual basis)

3 MM
Foreign Exchange earned
in ferms of inflows 11.42
Foreign Exchange outgo
in ferms of outflows 32.09

On Behalf of the Board

Sachin Gopal
Managing Director & CEO
DIN 07439079

Place : Gurugram
Date ; 28™ May, 2020

Lt. Gen. D.B. Singh
Director
DIN 00239637
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ANNEXURE B

DETAILS PERTAINING TO REMUNERATION AS REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 197(12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ
WITH RULE 5(1) and (2) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES,
2014

(A) The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director and KMPs during the financial year 2019-20 and
ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the employees of the Company for the
financial year 2019-20:

S. Name of the Director/KMP Remuneration of | % age increase in the | Ratio of the remuneration of
No.| and Designation Directors remuneration in the each Director to the median
/ KMP for Financial | FY 2019-20 remuneration of the
year 2019-20in% employees

1. | Ms. Jill Ann Rahman

Chairperson - - -
2. | Ms. Denise Lynn Hansen

Non-Executive Director - - -
3. | Lt. Gen. D B Singh

Non-Executive Independent Director 1,065,000 -156.81% 2.1:1
4. | Mr. Sanjaya Kulkarni

Non-Executive Independent Director 790,000 -24.04% 1.58:1
5. | Mr. Narendra Ambwani

Non-Executive Independent Director 1,365,000 7.90% 2.73:1
6. | Mr. Arun Bewoor

Non-Executive Independent Director 1,365,000 7.90% 2.73:1
7. Ms. Veena Gidwani

Non-Executive Independent Director 1,365,000 7.90% 2.73:1
8. | Mr. Sachin Gopal

Managing Director & CEO 20,683,686 -24.83% 41.32:1
9. Mr. Arijit Datta®

Chief Financial Officer 2,395,895 - Not Applicable
10.| Mr. KPN Srinivas@

Chief Financial Officer 2,676,398 - Not Applicable
11. | Ms. Jyoti Chawla

Company Secretary 2,685,742 54.94% Not Applicable

*  Comparative details of Mr. Arijit Datta is not being provided as he was not the Chief Financial Officer for full
year in the previous year. He resigned as CFO (KMP) w.e.f 15f August 2019. It excludes gratuity of 2 1.19 million
paid as resigned during the year.

@ Comparative details of Mr. KPN Srinivas is not being provided as he was not the Chief Financial Officer for full
year in the previous year. He was appointed as CFO w.e.f 1 August 2019.

Remuneration as given above does not include long-term compensated absences benefit accrued and gratuity
benefit accrued since the same are computed based on actuarial valuation for all the employees and the
amounts attributable to the managerial personnel cannot be ascertained separately.

In the financial year, there was an increase of 8% in the median remuneration of employees;

- There were 541 permanent employees on the rolls of Company as on 31 March , 2020;

- The Company follows a practice of bench marking the salaries of positions in similar Companies and adjusts
the salaries of employees to make those competitive in the market. Other factors considered for salary revision
are salary inflation in the market, reward for performance and retention risk. The average increase in the
remuneration of employees was 9% reflecting the efforts put in by the employees for a steady growth in the
core consumer foods business by 15 % and overall business grew by 1 %.

- Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel
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in the last financial year i.e. 2019-20 was 9% whereas there was no increase in the managerial remuneration for
the same financial year. Increase in the salaries of employees are in line with the market bench marking and
there are

- no exceptional circumstances and increases for managerial remuneration.

- Itishereby affirmed that the remuneration paid is as per the Remuneration Policy for Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel and other Employees.

B) Information under Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(2) of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and forming part of the Directors Report
for the financial year ended 31st March, 2020

A. Employed throughout the year : top ten employees in terms of remuneration drawn and employees who were
in receipt of remuneration aggregating ¥ 1.02 crores or more

S. | NAME OF THE EMPLOYEE |AGE| QUALIFICATIONS DESIGNATION/ DATE OF EXPERIENCE[ REMU- % OF LAST EMPLOYMENT
NO. NATURE OF DUTIES COMMENCEMENT]| (YEARS) | NERATION EQUITY
OF EMPLOYMENT 3 SHARES HELD
1. | Sachin Gopal 60 | B.A., MBA Managing Director & CEO 02.04.2007 38 2,06,83,686 0.19 Procter & Gamble
2. | N Narasimha Rao 60 | B.Sc., Master of Sr VP HR & Corporate 24.07.2006 34 1,46,83,593 - Reliance Infocom
Personnel Mgmt. [ Communications
3. [ Asheesh Kumar Sharma | 50 | B.Sc., PGDBM VP- Marketing 02.07.2007 27 1,16,86,596 - Gillete India Ltd
4. | Dharmesh Kumar 56 | M.Tech. MBA VP Supply Chain 08.07.2008 30 50,75,299 - Procter & Gamble
Srivastava
5. | Sanjay K Srivastava 50 | B.Sc., B.Tech. Head of Manufacturing 12.06.2000 29 59,36,079 - Siel Food & Fertilizers Industries
6. | Lalit Vij 51 | B.Com, MBA ICWA | Head of Procurement 16.04.2005 27 58,10,634 - Siel Food & Fertilizers Industries
and Packing Material
7. | Rikesh Ramesh Kotwal 37 | BE Civil, MBA General Manager 23.04.2012 16 45,51,063 - Wipro Consumer Care
Sales-West
8. | KP N Srinivas 40 | B.Com, M.Com, CA | Chief Financial Officer 27.04.2009 11 41,61,259 - nil
9. | Aparna Mathur 52 | B.Sc, Diploma in Senior Manager IS - ERP 27.07.1989 31 35,638,431 - AP Mahesh Co-Op Urban Bank
Computer
10.| J Kalpalatha 51 |B.Com General Manager Finance 05.07.1988 31 34,30,169 - nil

B. Employed partly during the year : employees who were in receipt of remunerationof 28,50,000/- and above per month

S. [ NAME OF THE EMPLOYEE |AGE|  QUALIFICATIONS DESIGNATION/ DATE OF EXPERIENCE| REMU- % OF LAST EMPLOYMENT [ DATE OF
NO. NATURE OF DUTIES COMMENCEMENT| (YEARS) | NERATION EQuITY LEAVING
OF EMPLOYMENT 3 SHARES HELD
1 | Nilesh Agarwal * 43 B.Com, PGDBM Head of Sales 08.06.2008 22 26,54,468 - Print-O-Graphics 31.05.2019
2 | Arijit Datta # § 42 | M.Com, CA Chief Financial Officer 01.11.2006 16 23,95,895 - Eveready Industries | 09.08.2019
India Ltd.

*Please refer MGT-9 Remuneration of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

NOTES:
1. All appointments are contractual.
2. No director is related to any other director or employee of the Company listed above.

3. Remuneration received / receivable includes salary, bonus, commission, medical expenses, Company’s confribution to Superannuation Funds, rent/allowance paid for
providing residential accommodation and where it is not possible fo ascertain the actual expenditure incurred by the Company in providing a perquisite, the monetary value
of such perquisites calculated in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961, and rules made there under.

* The above remuneration doesn’t include the amount paid to resigned employee towards gratuity, and ex-gratia of ¥ 3.27 milion.
# The above remuneration doesn’t include the amount paid to resigned employee towards gratuity of ¥ 1.19 million.

$ Resigned as CFO on 01.08.2019. On Behalf of the Board
Place : Gurugram Sachin Gopal Lt. Gen. D.B. Singh
Date : 28" May, 2020 Managing Director & CEO Director

DIN 07439079 DIN 00239637
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FORM NO. AOC -2

ANNEXURE C

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,

2014.

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company with related parties
referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transaction
under third proviso thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis - Not Applicable

SL. No. Particulars Details
a) | Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship Not Applicable
b) | Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction Not Applicable
¢) | Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction Not Applicable
d) | Salientterms of the contracts or arrangements or fransaction including Not Applicable
the value, if any
e) | Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or Not Applicable
fransactions’
1)) Date of approval by the Board Not Applicable
g) | Amount paid as advances, if any Not Applicable
h) | Date on which the special resolution was passed in General meeting Not Applicable

as required under first proviso to section 188

2. Details of contfracts or arrangements or fransactions at Arm’s length basis.

SL. No. Particulars Details
a) Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship
) | Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction * Please refer the
c) | Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction note given below
d) | Salientterms of the contracts or arrangements or fransaction including
the value, if any
e) | Date of approval by the Board
f | Amount paid as advances, if any

* The detail of fransactions between the Company and its related parties, names, nature of such contracts/
arrangements/transaction and other detail is set out in Notes to Accounts under note number 42 forming part of
the standalone Financial Statements.

On Behalf of the Board

Sachin Gopal

Managing Director & CEO

DIN 07439079

Place: Gurugram
Date: 28" May, 2020
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ANNEXURE D
ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES
(Pursuant to Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013)

Obijectives:

Your Company contributes to the society in addressing social issues like Malnourishment. Being in Foods business
and the manufacturers of healthy foods like Peanut Butter etc., the Company strongly believes that we have an
opportunity to play a key role in addressing one of serious social issues; Malnourishment.

Programs:

We have developed a program on the name of Poshan and under this program, the Company continues to
partner with Government to provide Peanut Butter at Anganwadis run by the Government and Child Malnourishment
Treatment Centers. Peanut Butter is rich in good quality Protein and it supplements the food given to the children at
Anganwadis. Major focus area for implementation of this program is Bharuch district in Gujarat, where our Peanut
Butter factory is situated. Apart from Gujarat, the program is also under implementation in Delhi, Hyderabad,
Kashipur and Kolkata where our offices and factories are located. For FY20, a total number of 44,584 children
covered during the program, an increase of 33% when compared to the last year coverage with a consequent
increase in supply of Peanut Butter by 42%. Your Company has also contributed % 2,00,000 to the Government of
Telengana to provide CCTVs to improve the safety measures for women employees attending work at Kothur
Industrial Area. Responding to the Prime Minister’s call for contributions to PMCARES in view of the Covid-19
Pandemic, Your Company contributed ¥ 20,00,000. The details of the policy are available on the website,
www.atfoods.com

CSR Committee:

The Committee consists of the following Board Members:
Lt. Gen. D B Singh - Chairman
Mr. Sanjaya Kulkarni

Mr. Narendra Ambwani

Mr. Arun Bewoor

Ms. Veena Gidwani

Ms. Denise Lynn Hansen

Ms. Jill Ann Rahman

Financial Details:

NOo O AN~

Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder prescribe that every Company having a
net worth of ¥ 500/- crores or more, or turnover of ¥ 1,000/- crores or more or a net profit of ¥ 5 crores or more during
immediately preceding financial year shall ensure that the Company spends, in every financial year, at least 2% of
the average net profits made during the three immediately preceding financial years, in pursuance of its Corporate
Social Responsibility policy. The provisions pertaining to CSR as prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 are
applicable to your Company. The financial details as required to be disclosed are as follows:

Particulars % Millions
Average net profit of the company for last three financial years 487.39
Prescribed CSR Expenditure (2% of the average net profit as computed above) 9.75
Details of CSR spent during the financial year:

Total amount to be spent for the financial year 9.75
Total amount spent during the year (1.41% of avg. net profit) 6.86
Amount unspent 2.89
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% in Millions
Details of amount spent on CSR activities during the financial year 2019-20
CSR project or Sectorin Projects or Amount| Amount [ Cumulative |Amount spent;
activity which the programs outlay [spent on the |expenditure Direct or
identified Project is (DLocal area or other (budget) projects up to the through
covered (2) Specify the State reporting | implementing
and district where period agency
projects or programs
was undertaken
Poshan: Under | Malnutrition | The program is currently Q.75 4.66 4.66 Entire amount
this, We are and hunger | running in the Bharuch district spent directly
providing eradication |of Gujarat ,Delhi, Kolkata in by the
as additional West Bengal, Hyderabad in Company
nutritious Telangana, Vijayawada in
supplement to Andhra Pradesh and
the children at Kashipur in Uttarakhand and
Anganwadis is being extended to several
and schools. states in India on a
progressive basis.
PMCARES Fund To support the Govenment 2.00 2.00
towards Covid-19 relief efforts
Improve the Given amount to Govt. of 0.20 0.20
safety measures Telangana to provide CCTV
for women Camera at Kothur Industrial
employees Areqa
Total 9.75 6.86 6.86

The Poshan program is designed to address malnourishment amongst children, working with Government
Anganwadi’s and Child Malnourishment Treatment Centers using Peanut Butter which is a rich source of protein
and highly effective to fight malnutrition. Major focus area for implementation of this program is Bharuch district in
Gujarat, where our Peanut Butter factory is situated. Apart from Gujarat, the program is also under implementation
in Delhi, Hyderabad, Kashipur and Kolkata where our offices and factories are located.

Overall the CSR spends during the year amount to % 68,62,235, an increase by 50% when compared to the previous
year spending. This spending comes to about 1.41% of average PBT for the last three years which is slightly less than
mandatory requirement of 2% of average Net Profit of last three financial years to be spent behind CSR activities
but with the increasing spends year on year, we are progressing towards this goal.

CSR Committee Responsibility Statement

The CSR Committee confirms that the implementation and monitoring of the CSR activities of the Company are in
compliance with the CSR objectives and CSR Policy of the Company.

On Behalf of the Board

Sachin Gopal Lt. Gen. D.B. Singh
Managing Director & CEO Director
DIN 07439079 DIN 00239637

Place : Gurugram
Date : 28" May, 2020

22



Agro Tech Foods Limited

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY
1. Introduction

The purpose of Nomination and Remuneration
Committee is as under:

- to identify persons who are qualified to become
directors and who may be appointed in senior
management in accordance with the criteria laid
down, and recommend to the Board their
appointment and removal ;

- to carry out evaluation of every director’s
performance ;

- to formulate the criteria for determining
qualifications, positive attributes and
independence of a director ;

- torecommend to the Board a policy, relating to
the remuneration for the directors, key managerial
personnel and other employees.

In terms of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013
and Regulation 19 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations 2015,
as amended from time to time, this policy on
nomination and remuneration of Directors, Key
Managerial Personnel (KMP), Senior Management
and other employees of the Company has been
formulated by the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee of the Company and approved by the
Board of Directors vide its resolution dated 17t
October, 2014. This policy shall act as a guideline for
determining, inter-alia, qualifications, positive
aftributes and independence of a Director, matters
relating to the remuneration, appointment, removal
and evaluation of performance of the Directors, Key
Managerial Personnel, Senior Management and other
employees.

2. Objective of the Policy

The policy is framed with the objective(s):

1. Thatthe level and composition of remuneration is
reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and
motivate directors of the quality required to run
the Company successfully.

2. That the relationship of remuneration to
performance is clear and meets appropriate
performance benchmarks.

3. That the remuneration to Directors, Key
Managerial Personnel (KMP), and other
employees of the Company involves a balance
between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short
and long-term performance objectives
appropriate to the working of the Company and
its goals.
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4. Tolay down criteria and terms and conditions with
regard to identifying persons who are qualified to
become Directors (Executive and Non-executive)
and persons who may be appointed in Senior
Management, Key Managerial positions and to
determine their remuneration.

5. Ensuring a transparent board nomination process
with the diversity of thought, experience,
knowledge, perspective and gender in the Board.

6. To determine remuneration based on the
Company’s size and financial position and trends
and practices on remuneration prevailing in peer
companies, in the industry.

7. To carry out evaluation of the performance of
Directors, as well as Key Managerial and Senior
Management Personnel and to provide for
reward(s) linked directly to their effort,
performance, dedication and achievement
relating to the Company’s operations.

8. To retain, motivate and promote talent and to
ensure long term sustainability of talented
managerial persons and create competitive
advantage.

9. To lay down criteria for appointment, removal of
directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior
Management Personnel and evaluation of their
performance.

10. To meet the requirement of the disclosure of
remuneration policy and the evaluation criteriain
its Annual Report.

In the context of the aforesaid criteria the following
policy has been formulated by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee and adopted by the Board
of Directors at its meeting held on 171 October, 2014.

3. Definitions:
In this Policy unless the context otherwise requires:

1. ‘Act’ means Companies Act, 2013 and rules
thereunder.

2. 'Board of Directors’ or ‘Board’, in relation to the
Company, means the collective body of the
directors of the Company.

3. 'Committee’ means Nomination and
Remuneration Committee of the Company as
constituted or reconstituted by the Board.

'Company' means Agro Tech Foods Limited.
5. 'Directors’ means Directors of the Company.

‘Independent Director’ means a director referred
to in Section 149 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013.
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7. ‘Key Managerial Personnel’ (KMP) means:

a. Chief Executive Officer and / or Managing
Director

Whole-time Director

Chief Financial Officer

Company Secretary

Such other officer as may be prescribed

© Q0600

‘Ministry” means the Ministry of Corporate Affairs.

‘Regulations’ refers to and comprise of Companies
Act, 2013, and related Rules, Listing Agreement
and such other rules and provisions as applicable
to the matters dealt in by this Policy.

10. “Senior Management Personnel” for this purpose
shall mean employees of the company who are
members of its core management team excluding
Board of Directors. It would comprise all members
of management one level below the executive
director(s), including the functional / vertical
heads.

Unless the context otherwise requires, words and
expressions used in this policy and not defined herein
but defined in the Companies Act, 2013 as may be
amended from time to time shall have the meaning
respectively assigned to them therein.

4. Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Nomination and Remuneration Commifttee will
consist of three or more non-executive directors, out
of which at least one-half shall be independent
director(s), provided that chairperson of the
Company may be appointed as a member of this
Committee but shall not chair such Committee.

The chairperson of the committee or, in his absence,
any other member of the committee authorised by
him in this behalf shall attend the general meetings
of the company.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall
meet as often as required.

5. Policy for appointment, removal and performance
evaluation of Director, KMP and Senior
Management

Appointment criteria and qualifications

a) The Committee shall identify and ascertain the
integrity, qualification, expertise, experience and
independence of the person for appointment as
Director, KMP or at Senior Management level and
recommend to the Board his / her appointment.

b) A person should possess adequate qualification,
expertise and experience for the position he / she
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is considered for appointment. The Committee has
discretion to decide whether qualification,
expertise and experience possessed by a person
is sufficient / satisfactory for the concerned
posifion.

c) The company shall not appoint or continue the
employment of any person as managing director,
whole-fime director or manager who is below the
age of twenty-one years or has attained the age
of seventy years provided that appointment of a
person who has attained the age of seventy years
may be made by passing a special resolution in
which case the explanatory statement annexed
to the notice for such motion shall indicate the
justification for appointing such person.

d) Appointment of Independent Directors is subject
to compliance of provisions of Section 149 of the
Companies Act, 2013, read with schedule IV and
rules thereunder and provisions of Regulation 17
and 17A of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015.

Term / Tenure
a) Managing Director/Whole-time Director:

The Company shall appoint or re-appoint any
person as its Managing Director / Whole-time
Director for a term not exceeding five years at a
time. No re-appointment shall be made earlier
than one year before the expiry of term.

b) Independent Director:

- Subject to provisions of Section 152, an
Independent Director shall hold office for a term
up to five consecutive years on the Board of the
Company and will be eligible for re-appointment
on passing of a special resolution by the Company
and disclosure of such appointment in the Board's
report.

- NoIndependent Director shall hold office for more
than two consecutive terms, but such
Independent Director shall be eligible for
appointment after expiry of three years of ceasing
to become an Independent Director. Provided
that an Independent Director shall not, during the
said period of three years, be appointed in or be
associated with the Company in any other
capacity, either directly or indirectly.

- At the time of appointment of Independent
Director it should be ensured that number of
Boards on which such Independent Director serves
is restricted to seven listed companies as an
Independent Director and three listed companies
as an Independent Director in case such person is
serving as a Whole-time Director of a listed
company.
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Evaluation

1. Performance evaluation of Independent Directors

a. The Committee shall lay down the evaluation
criteria for performance evaluation of
independent directors.

b. The Company shall disclose the criteria for
performance evaluation, as laid down by the
Nomination Committee, in its Annual Report.

c. The performance evaluation of independent
directors shall be done by the entire Board of
Directors (excluding the director being
evaluated).

d. On the basis of the report of performance
evaluation, it shall be determined whether to
extend or continue the term of appointment
of the independent directors.

2. The Committee shall also lay down the evaluation
criteria for performance evaluation of directors
other than independent directors and Senior
Management.

3. The Committee shall carry out evaluation of
performance of every Director, KMP and Senior
Management Personnel at regular intervals

(yearly).

4. Independent Director shall hold at least one
meeting in a year, without attendance of non-
independent directors (Non-ID’s) and members of
management to review :

a. performance of Non-IDs and BOD as a whole

b. performance of the Chairperson taking into
consideration views of NEDs/ EDs

c. quantity/quality/flow of information from the
management to the Board to effectively
perform their duties

Removal

Due to reasons for any disqualification mentioned in
the Act or under any other applicable Act, rules and
regulations thereunder, the Committee may
recommend, to the Board with reasons recorded in
writing, removal of a Director, KMP or Senior
Management Personnel subject to the provisions and
compliance of the said Act, rules and regulations.

Retirement

The Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel
shall retire as per the applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder
and the prevailing policy of the Company. The Board
will have the discretion to retain the Director, KMP,
Senior Management Personnel in the same position/
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remuneration or otherwise even after attaining the
retirement age, for the benefit of the Company.

6. Matters relating to the Remuneration for the Whole-
time Director, KMP, Senior Management Personnel

a) The remuneration / compensation /
commission etc. to the Whole-time Director,
KMP, Senior Management Personnel and other
Employees will be determined by the
Committee and recommended to the Board
for approval. The remuneration /
compensation / commission etc. shall be
subject to the prior/post approval of the
shareholders of the Company and Central
Government, wherever required.

) The remuneration to be paid to the Managing
Director/Whole-time Director shall be in
accordance with the conditions laid down in
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and
the rules made thereunder.

¢c) Increments to the existing remuneration/
compensation structure may be
recommended by the Committee to the
Board which should be within the slabs
approved by the Shareholders in the case of
Managing Director/ Whole-time Director.

d) Where any insurance is taken by the Company
on behalf of its Managing Director / Whole-
time Director, Chief Executive Officer, Chief
Financial Officer, the Company Secretary and
any other employees for indemnifying them
against any liability, the premium paid on such
insurance shall not be treated as part of the
remuneration payable to any such personnel.
Provided that if such person is proved to be
guilty, the premium paid on such insurance
shall be freated as part of the remuneration.

7. Remuneration to Managing Director / Whole-time
Director, KMP, Senior Management Personnel

a) Fixed pay:

The Managing Director/Whole-time Director/ KMP and
Senior Management Personnel shall be eligible for a
monthly remuneration as may be approved by the
Board on the recommendation of the Committee. The
breakup of the pay scale and quantum of perquisites
and other benefits including, employer’s contribution
to P.F. pension scheme, medical expenses, club fees
etfc. shall be decided and approved by the Board/
the Person authorized by the Board on the
recommendation of the Committee and approved
by the shareholders and Central Government,
wherever required.
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b) Minimum Remuneration:

If, in any financial year, the Company has no profits
or its profits are inadequate, the Company shall pay
remuneration to its Managing Director/Whole-time
Director in accordance with the provisions of
Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 and if it is not
able to comply with such provisions, with the previous
approval of the Central Government.

c) Provisions for excess remuneration:

If any Managing Director/Whole-time Director draws
or receives, directly or indirectly by way of
remuneration any such sums in excess of the limits
prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 or without
the prior sanction of the Central Government, where
required, he / she shall refund such sums to the
Company and until such sum is refunded, hold it in
trust for the Company. The Company shall not waive
recovery of such sum refundable to it unless permitted
by the Central Government.

8. Remuneration to Non- Executive / Independent
Director:

a) Remuneration / Commission:

The remuneration / commission shall be fixed as
per the provisions contained under Companies
Act, 2013.

b) Sitting Fees:

The Non- Executive / Independent Director may
receive remuneration by way of fees for attending
each meeting of Board or Committee thereof.
Provided that the amount of such fees shall not
exceed % 1,00,000 (Rupees one lakh only) per
meeting of the Board or Committee or such
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amount as may be prescribed by the Cenftral
Government from time to fime.

For Independent Women Directors, the sitting fee
shall not be less than the sitting fee payable to
other directors.

¢c) Commission:

Commission may be paid within the monetary
ceiling limit approved by shareholders, subject to
the limit not exceeding 1% of the profits of the
Company computed as per the applicable
provisions of the Act.

d) Stock Options:

An Independent Director shall not be entitled to
any stock options of the Company.

9. Disclosure

The above Policy needs to be disclosed in the
Board’s report.

10. Amendments to the Policy

The Board of Directors on its own and / or as per the
recommendations of Nomination and Remuneration
Committee can amend this Policy, as and when
deemed fit.

In case of any amendment(s), clarification(s),
circular(s) etc. issued by the relevant authorities, not
being consistent with the provisions laid down under
this Policy, then such amendment(s), clarification(s),
circular(s) etc. shall prevail upon the provisions
hereunder and this Policy shall stand amended
accordingly from the effective date as laid down
under such amendment(s), clarification(s), circular(s)
etc.
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ANNEXURE F

FORM NO. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

(Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014)

To.

The Members,

Agro Tech Foods Limited
31, Sarojini Devi Road
Secunderabad-500003

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the
compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by Agro Tech
Foods Limited (hereinafter called the Company).
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that
provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the
corporate conducts/statutory compliances and
expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company's books,
papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and
other records maintained by the Company and also
the information provided by the Company, its officers,
agents and authorized representatives during the
conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in
our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period
covering the financial year ended on March 31¢, 2020
(herein after called as Audit Period) complied with
the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that
the Company has proper Board-processes and
compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the
manner and subject to the reporting made
hereinafter.

We have examined the books, papers, minute books,

forms and returns filed and other records maintained

by the Company for the financial year ended on

March 31¢, 2020 according to the provisions of;

i. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules
made there under;

ii. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956
('SCRA" and the rules made there under;

ii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations
and Bye-laws framed there under;

iv. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the
rules and regulations made there under to the
extent of
a) Foreign Direct Investment
b) Overseas Direct Investment and
c) External Commercial Borrowings (not

applicable during the Audit period)

v. The following Regulations and Guidelines
prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act"):-

27

a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011;

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue
of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2009; Not Applicable for the Audit
Period

d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share
Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014;

e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue
and listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008;
Not Applicable for the Audit Period

f. The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act
and dealing with client;

g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009 and
Not Applicable for the Audit Period

h. The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998; Not
Applicable for the Audit Period

vi. We further report that having regard to the
compliance system prevailing in the Company
and on examination of the relevant documents
and records in pursuance thereof, on test- check
basis, the Company has complied with the
following laws applicable specifically to the
Company:

(a) Food Safety and Standards Act, 2006

(b) Agricultural Produce Grading and Marking Act,
1937

We have also examined compliance with the
applicable clauses of the following:

() Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of
Company Secretaries of India.

(i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015.

During the period under review the Company has
complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned
above.
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We further report that -

®

(i)

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly
constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and
Independent Directors. The changes in the
composition of the Board of Directors that took
place during the period under review were carried
out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to
schedule the Board Meetings agenda and
detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven
days in advance, and a system exists for seeking
and obtaining further information and
clarifications on the agenda items before the
meeting and for meaningful participation at the
meeting.

(iiy Majority decision is carried through while the

dissenting members' views are captured and
recorded as part of the minutes.

We further report that there are adequate systems
and processes in the Company commensurate
with the size and operations of the Company to
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a.

Place
Date

monitor and ensure compliance with applicable
laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period:
The Company has spent a sum of ¥ 6.86 Million
tfowards Corporate Social Responsibility
representing 1.41 % of its average net profits made
during the three-immediate preceding financial
years. 2% of the average net profits of the three
preceding financial years are % 9.75 Million.

for Tumuluru & Company
Company Secretaries

B V Saravana Kumar
Partner

ACS No. 26944
C.P.No. 11727
: Hyderabad
: 28™ May, 2020

Note : This report is o be read with our letter of even
date by the Secretarial Auditors, which is available
on the website of the Company www.atfoods.com.
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The Members

Agro Tech Foods Limited
31, Sarojini Devi Road
Secunderabad-500003

Our report of even date is to be read along with this
letter.

1.

Maintenance of secretarial record is the
responsibility of the management of the company.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
secretarial records based on our audit.

We have followed the audit practices and
processes as were appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurance about the correctness of
the contents of the Secretarial records. The
verification was done on test basis fo ensure that
correct facts are reflected in secretarial records.
We believe that the processes and practices, we
followed provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

We have not verified the correctness and
appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the company.

Where ever required, we have obtained the
Management representation about the
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5.

Place
Date

Enclosure - A

compliance of laws, rules and regulations and
happening of events efc.

The compliance of the provisions of Corporate
and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,
standards is the responsibility of management. Our
examination was limited to the verification of
procedures on test basis.

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance
as to the future viability of the company nor of
the efficacy or effectiveness with which the
management has conducted the affairs of the
company.

for Tumuluru & Company
Company Secretaries

B V Saravana Kumar
Partner

ACS No. 26944
C.P.No. 11727

: Hyderabad
: 28™ May, 2020

Note : This report is to be read with our letter of even
date by the Secretarial Auditors, which is available
on the website of the Company www.atfoods.com.
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ANNEXURE H

Form No. MGT - 9
Extract of annual Return as on the Financial Year ended on 315 March 2020

(Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014

I. Registration and Other Details:

@ | CIN L15142TG1986PLC006957

(i) | Registration Date 21/11/1986

(i) | Name of the Company AGRO TECH FOODS LIMITED

(iv) | Category / Sub-Category of the Company LIMITED COMPANY

(v) | Address of the registered office and 31, SAROJINI DEVI ROAD, SECUNDERABAD - 500 003
contact details T.No. 040-66650240 Fax No.040-27800947

(vi) | Whether listed company (Yes / No) YES

(vi) | Name, Address and contact details of KFin Technologies Private Limited

Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any

Karvy Selenium Tower B, Plot No.31-32, Gachibowli,
Financial District, Nanakramguda, Hyderabad-500032
T.N0.040-67161605, email - einward.ris@karvy.com

Il. Principal Business Activities of the Company:

SI. | Name and Description of NIC Code of the % to total turnover of the company
No. | Main Products Services Product/service

1. Edible Oils 104 69

2. Ofthers-Processed food products 107 31
lll. Particulars of Holding, Subsidiary and Associate Companies:

SI. | Name and address of the company CIN Holding, % of Applicable
No. Subsidiary | share Section
/ Associate | held

1 CAG-Tech (Mauritius) Limited Not Applicable Holding 51.77 2(87)(ii)
2 | Sundrop Foods India Private Limited UO1119TG1990PTCO11259 Subsidiary 100 2(87)(ii)
3 | Agro Tech Foods (Bangladesh) Pvt. Ltd. | Not Applicable Subsidiary 100 2(87)(ii)
4 Sundrop Foods Lanka (Private) Limited | Not Applicable Subsidiary 100 2(87)(ii)
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IV. Share Holding Pattern (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)
(i) Category-wise Share Holding

Category of Shareholders

No. of Shares held af the

beginning of the year 1/4/2019

No. of Shares held at the end

of the year 31/3/2020

% Change
during the
year

Demat

Physical Total

% of Total
Shares

Demat

Physical Total

% of Total
Shares

A. Promoters

(1) Indian

a) Individual / HUF

b) Central Govt.

c) State Govt.(5)

d) Bodies Corp.

e) Banks / Fl

f) Any other

Sub-total (A) (1)

(2) Foreign

a) NRI(s) Individual (s)

) Other - Individual

c) Bodies Corp.

12,616,61

9 - 12,616,619

12,616,619

12,616,619

51.77

d) Banks/FI's

e) Any other

Sub-total A (2)

12,616,61

9 - 12,616,619

12,616,619 -

12,616,619

51.77

Total Shareholding of promoter

(A)=A(1) + A(2)

12,616,61

9 - 12,616,619

12,616,619 -

12,616,619

51.77

B. Public Shareholding

1. Institutions

a) Mutual Funds

763,936

400 764,336

713,197

400 | 713,597

-0.21

b) Banks / FI

19,325

- 19,325

65,377

65,377

0.19

c) Central Govt,

d) State Govt.(s)

e) Venture Capital Funds

) Insurance Companies

Q) Flis/FPI's

2,026,157

300 2,026,457

2,091,437

300 ]2,091,737

0.26

h) Foreign Venture Capital Funds

i) Others (specify)

Sub-total (B)(1):-

2,809,418

700 2,810,118

2,870,011

700 (2,870,711

11.78

0.25

2. Non-Institutions

(a) Bodies Corporate

2,340,688

5,757 | 2,346,245

1,975,472

5491 11,980,963

-1.50

()

@) Individual shareholders
holding nominal share
capital upto ¥ 2 lakhs

2,519,202

219,762 | 2,738,964

11.24

2,565,977

106,604 12,762,581

11.34

0.10

(i) Individual shareholders
holding nominal share
capitalin excess of ¥ 2 lakhs

2,358,071

2,358,071

9.68

2,518,382

2,518,382

10.33

0.65
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(@)

- Clearing Members 4,466 - 4,466 0.02 19,021 19,021 0.08 0.06

- Foreign Banks - - - - -

- Non Resident Indians/ 233,503 200 233,703 0.96 456,907 200 457,107 1.87 0.91
NRI Repatriable

- NBFCs Reqistered with RBI 5,594 5,594 0.02 7.501 - 7.501 0.03 0.01

- Alternate Investment Fund 250.000 250.000 1.02 258.000 - 258.000 1.06 0.04

- |EPE 144,064 -1 144,064 0.58 152.606 - 152,606 1 0.63 0.05

- Ofther Trust 1,500 - 1,500 0.01 2,900 - 2900] 0.01 -

Trusts 859,920 859,920 3.53 722,873 - 722,873 297 -0.56

Sub-total B(2) 8,717,008 225,519 | 8,942,527 36.70 | 8,679,639 | 202,295 | 8,881,934 | 36.45 -0.25

Total Public Shareholding

(A)=B(1) + B(2) 11,526,426 | 226219 11,752,645 48.23 111,549,650 | 202,995 (11,752,645 | 48.23 -

C. Shares held by

Custodian for GDRs & ADRs - - - - - - - - -

Grand Total (A+B+C) 24143045| 226219 24,369,264 | 100.00 | 24,166,269 | 202,995 |24,369,264 | 100.00 -

(ii) Shareholding of Promoter-

S.No Shareholder’s Name Shareholding af the Share holding at the % change in

beginning of the year

end of the year

share holding
during the year

No. of | % of total | % of Shares | No. of | % of fotal | % of Shares
Shares | Sharesof | Pledged / | Shares | Sharesof | Pledged /
the encumbered the encumbered
company |to total shares company [fo total shares
1 CAG TECH (MAURITIUS) LIMITED 12,616,619  51.77 12,616,619 51.77 -

(iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change) for Financial Year 01.04.2019 to 31.03.2020

Shareholding at the  [Cumulative shareholding
beginning of the year during the year
No. of % of total No. of % of total
Shares  [shares of the|  Shares  |[shares of the
company company
At the beginning of the year 01.04.2019
Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters Share holding
during the year specifying the reasons for increase / decrease No change No change

(e.g. dllotment / transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc):

At the end of the year 31.03.2020

iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten shareholders (Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRSs)
(Annexure at the end of the Directors Report)

Shareholding at the  |Cumulative shareholding
beginning of the year during the year
No. of % of total No. of % of total
Shares  [shares of the|  Shares  |shares of the
company company

At the beginning of the year 01.04.2019

Date wise Increase / Decrease in Share holding during the

year specifying the reasons for increase / decrease
(e.g. adllotment / transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc):

At the end of the year 31.03.2020
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v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel
For each of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

1 Ms. Veena Vishindas Gidwani- Director Shareholding at the | Cumulative shareholding
beginning of the year during the year
No. of % of total No. of % of total
Shares  [shares of the|  Shares  |shares of the
company company
At the beginning of the year 01.04.2019 500 0.002 500 0.002
Date wise Increase / Decrease in Share holding during the year
specifying the reasons for increase / decrease (e.g. allotment /
tfransfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc):
At the end of the year 31.03.2020 500 0.002 500 0.002
2 Mr. Sachin Gopal- Managing Director & CEO Shareholding af the  [Cumulative shareholding
beginning of the year during the year
No. of % of total No. of % of total
Shares  [shares of the|  Shares  |shares of the
company company
At the beginning of the year 01.04.2019 45,672 0.19 45,672 0.19
Date wise Increase / Decrease in Share holding during the year
specifying the reasons for increase / decrease (e.g. allotment /
tfransfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc):
At the end of the year 31.03.2020 45,672 0.19 45,672 0.19
3 Mr. Arijit Datta-Chief Financial Officer# Shareholding at the  [Cumulative shareholding
beginning of the year during the period
No. of % of total No. of % of total
Shares  [shares of the| Shares  |shares of the
company company
At the beginning of the year 01.04.2019 - - - -
Date wise Increase / Decrease in Share holding during the year
specifying the reasons for increase / decrease (e.g. allotment /
tfransfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc):
As at 01.08.2019 - - - -
4 Mr. KPN Srinivas-Chief Financial Officer@ Shareholding at the  [Cumulative shareholding
beginning of the year during the period
No. of % of total No. of % of total
Shares  [shares of the| Shares  |shares of the
company company

As on 01.08.2019

Date wise Increase / Decrease in Share holding during the year
specifying the reasons for increase / decrease (e.g. allotment /
tfransfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc):

As at 31.03.2020
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5 Ms. Jyoti Chawla, Company Secretary Shareholding at the  [Cumulative shareholding
beginning of the year during the year

No. of |%oftotalsharesy  No. of  |% of total shares

Shares  |of the company|  Shares  |of the company

At the beginning of the year 01.04.2019 -

Date wise Increase / Decrease in Share holding during the year
specifying the reasons for increase / decrease (e.g. allotment /
fransfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc):

As at 31.03.2020 -

# Mr. Arijit Datta resigned as Chief Financial Officer on 1st August, 2019
@ Mr. KPN Srinivas appointed as Chief Financial Officer on 1st August. 2019

V. INDEBTEDNESS :

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding / accrued but not due for payment

Secured Loans | Unsecured | Deposits Total
excluding depositsy  Loans Indebtedness

Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year 01.04.2019
i. Principal Amount - - - -
i. Inferest due but not paid - - - -
ii. Interest accrued but not due - - - -
Total (i + ii + iii ) - - - -
Change in Indebtedness during the financial year
Addition 47,000,000 - - 47,000,000
Reduction - - - -
Net Change 47,000,000 - - 47,000,000
Indebtedness at the end of the financial year 31.03.2020
i.  Principal Amount 47,000,000 - - 47,000,000
i. Inferest due but not paid - - - -
ii. Interest accrued but not due 410,091 - - 410,091
Total (i + i +ii ) 47,410,091 - - 47,410,091
VI. Remuneration of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:
A. Remuneration to Managing Director - Mr. Sachin Gopal (in®
Sl. Particulars of Remuneration Total
No. Amount*
1. | Gross Salary-

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in the section 17(1) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 19,202,752

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17 (2) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 113,918

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) of the Income Tax Act, 1961
2. | Stock Option
3. | Sweat Equity
4, | Commission

- As % of Profit

- Other, specify
5. | Others-

Employer contribution to Provident Fund 1,367,016

Total (A) 20,683,686

*above remuneration is on accrual basis

Note : Remuneration as given above does not include long-term compensated absences benefit accrued and
gratuity benefit accrued since the same are computed based on actuarial valuation for all employees and the
amounts attributable to Managing Director cannot be ascertained separately.
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B. Remuneration to other Directors :
Sl. Particulars of Remuneration Name of Directors Total
No. Lt. Gen DB | Mr.Sanjaya | M. Arun  |Mr. Narendra| Ms. Veena | Amount
Singh Kulkarni Bewoor | Ambwani | Gidwani (in3)
1. | Independent Directors
Fee for aftending board
committee meetings 675,000 400,000 975,000 975,000 975,000 | 4,000,000
Commission 390,000 390,000 390,000 390,000 390,000 | 1,950,000
Others, please specify - - - - - -
Total (1) 1,065,000 790,000 | 1,365,000 | 1,365,000 1,365,000 | 5,950,000
2. | Other Non-Executive Directors
Fee for aftending board meetings - - - - - -
Commission - - - - - -
Others - - - - - -
Total (2) - - - - - -
Total (B) = (1+2) 1,065,000 790,000 | 1,365,000 | 1,365,000 1,365,000 | 5,950,000
C. Remuneration to key managerial personnel other than MD/Manager:
Sl. Particulars of Remuneration Name of Key Managerial Personnel Total
No. . . Amount*
Jyoti Chawla | Arijit Datta # [KPN Srinivas @ (in )
(CS) (CFO) (CFO)
1. | Gross Salary-
a) Salary as per provisions contained in the
section 17(1) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 2,602,976 2,221,191 2,464,381 7,288,548
b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the Income
Tax Act, 1961 6,367 97.058 117,787 221,212
c) Profitsin lieu of salary under section 17(3)
of the Income Tax Act, 1961
2. | Stock Option
3. | Sweat Equity
4. | Commission
- As % of Profit
- Other, specify
5. | Others -
Employer contribution to Provident Fund 76,399 77,646 94230 248,275
Total 2,685,742 2,395,895 2,676,398 7,758,035
*above remuneration is on accrual basis.
#  Mr. Arijit Datta resigned as Chief Financial Officer on 15 August, 2019. The above remuneration excludes

gratuity of ¥ 1.19 million paid as resigned during the year.
@ Mr. KPN Srinivas appointed as Chief Financial Officer w.e.f 15t August, 2019.

Note 1: Remuneration as given above does not include long-term compensated absences benefit accrued and
gratuity benefit accrued since the same are computed based on actuarial valuation for all employees and the
amounts attributable to Key Managerial Personnel cannot be ascertained separately.

VIL.

Penalties / Punishment / Compounding offences:

There were no penaltfies / punishment / compounding of offences for the year ending 315 March, 2020.
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Directors present the Company’s Report on Corporate Governance pursuant to the Securities and Exchange
Board of India ("SEBI”) (Listing Obligatfions and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 for the year ended 31+
March, 2020.

1. COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Your Company’s Philosophy on Corporate Governance is built on a foundation of ethical and transparent business
operations. The Company fosters a culture which focuses on a healthy balance between performance and
organizational health. This culture inspires frust among all stakeholders and strengthens the Board and management
accountability.

The Company has adopted the values of good governance, sustainability and teamwork to create long-term
value for its stakeholders. The practice of responsible governance has enabled it to achieve sustainable growth,
while meeting the aspirations of its stakeholders and fulfilling societal expectations. Leveraging the principles of
integrity, execution excellence, customer orientation and leadership in an ethical manner, the Company continues
to take the necessary steps towards growth and to enhance value for its shareholders. The sound governance
processes and systems guide the Company on its journey towards continued success.

2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS
A) Composition and category of the Board

The composition of the Board of Directors of the Company is in conformity with the Code of Corporate Governance
under the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. Details of the Board of Directors
and their Directorships/ Memberships in Board/ Board Committees respectively, of other Companies (excluding
Agro Tech Foods Limited, Private Limited Companies, Foreign Companies and Other Directorships) are as under:

S| N f Direct f Relationship| No. of Directorship in | No. of Memberships/

No. ame ot Director Cat_egory o with Other | other Companies # Chairmanship of
Director Directors Board Committees in

other Companies *
1 | Ms. Jill Ann Rahman Chairperson None - -
Non-Executive

2 [Ms. Denise Lynn Hansen Non-Executive None - -

3 |Lt. Gen. D.B. Singh Independent None - -

4 [ Mr. Sanjaya Kulkarni Independent None 4 3

5 |Mr. Arun Bewoor Independent None 3 4

6 | Mr. Narendra Ambwani Independent None 4 5

7 |Ms. Veena Vishindas Gidwani Independent None - -

8 [Mr. Sachin Gopal Executive None - -

# Other directorships exclude Private Limited Companies, Foreign Companies and Companies under Section 8
of the Companies Act, 2013.

Only membership in Audit Committee and Stakeholders' Relationship Committee have been reckoned for
other committee memberships.

*
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PARTICULARS OF DIRECTORSHIPS AND COMMITTEES HELD IN OTHER LISTED COMPANIES INCLUDING PRIVATE COMPANIES
& FOREIGN COMPANIES

Sl. Name of the Other Directorships Other Committee Membership*
No. Director Name of the Company Type of Company Position Committee Position
1 | Ms. Jill Ann Verde Valle, Mexico Foreign Non- Executive | - -
Rahman Company Director
2 | Ms. Denise Verde Valle, Mexico Foreign Non- Executive | - -
Lynn Hansen Company Director
3 | L. Gen. - - - -
D.B. Singh
4. | Mr. Sanjaya TPL Plastech Limited Listed Independent Audit Committee | Chairman
Director &
Chairman
Time Technoplast Limited| Listed Independent Audit Committee | Member
Director
Motilal Oswal Home Unlisted Independent Audit Committee | Chairman
Finance Ltd Director
Supreme Treon Private Unlisted Independent - -
Limited Director
Indian Direct Equity Unlisted Promoter Director | - -
Advisors Pvt. Ltd & Managing
Director
NED Energy Ltd Unlisted Independent - -
Director
5. | Mr. Arun BASF India Limited Listed Independent Audit Committee | Member
Bewoor Director Stakeholders Member
Relationship
Jasmine Concrete Unlisted Independent
Exports Pvt. Ltd Director &
Chairman
Underwater Services Unlisted Independent Audit Committee | Chairman
Company Limited Director &
Chairman
Eternis Fine Chemicals Unlisted Independent Audit Committee | Member
Limited Director
6. | Mr. Narendra | Godrej Consumer Listed Independent Audit Committee | Member
Ambwani Products Limited Director
RPG Life Sciences Ltd. Listed Independent Stakeholders Chairman
Director Relationship
Audit Committee | Member
Parag Milk Foods Limited | Listed Independent Audit Committee | Member
Director
UTV Software Unlisted Independent Audit Committee | Member
Communications Limited Director
Zeus Career & Unlisted Promoter - -
Performance Coach Director &
Pvt Ltd. Chairman
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Sl. Name of the Other Directorships Other Committee Membership*
No. Director Name of the Company Type of Company Position Committee Position
7 | Ms. Veena - - - - -
Gidwani
8. | Mr. Sachin - - - - -
Gopal

* Only Audit & Stakeholders Relationship Committees considered

None of the Independent Directors have any pecuniary relationship or fransactions with the Company, its promoters,
its Senior Management or its subsidiaries which in the judgment of Board may affect the independence of the
Director except receiving sitting fees for attending Board/ Committee Meetings and Commission from the Company.

B) Non-Executive Directors’ compensation and disclosures

All fees paid to Non-Executive Directors including Independent Directors are fixed by the Board of Directors based
on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. The Company has no Employee Stock
Option Scheme for Non-Executive Directors and hence, no stock options are granted to Non-Executive Directors,
including Independent Directors.

None of the Directors are related to each other, the Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives. Also, none of the
Non-Executive Directors, except Ms. Veena Vishindas Gidwani who holds 500 shares, hold any shares or convertible
instruments in the Company.

The details of the methodology adopted by the Company for familiarizing the Independent Directors with the
business and operations of the Company is uploaded on the website and can be accessed on http://
www.atfoods.com/investor-relations/other-information.htmi

C) Other provisions as to Board and Committees
i) Number of Board Meetings held in Financial Year 2019-20 with dates and attendance of Directors:

Four Board Meetings were held during the Financial Year 2019-2020. They were held on 24™ April, 2019, 16™ July,
2019, 23 October, 2019 and 22" January, 2020.

The attendance record of each Director was as under:

SINo. | Name of Director No. Qf Board No. of Board Meetings | Attendance of
Meetings held aftended last AGM
1. Lt. Gen. D.B. Singh 4 3 No
2. Mr. Sanjaya Kulkarni 4 2 No
3. Mr. Arun Bewoor 4 4 Yes
4, Mr. Narendra Ambwani 4 4 Yes
5. Ms. Veena Vishindas Gidwani 4 4 Yes
6. Ms. Denise Lynn Hansen 4 3 Yes
7. Ms. Jill Ann Rahman 4 2 No
8. Mr. Sachin Gopal 4 4 Yes

(AGM - Annual General Meeting)

ii) Information to be made available to the Board includes among others:

* Review of annual operating plans of business, capital budgets and updates.

* Quarterly results of the Company and its operating divisions or business segments.
*  Minutes of Meeting of Audit Committee and other Committees of the Board.

e Information onrecruitment and remuneration of senior officers just below the Board level including appointment
or removal of Chief Financial Officer and the Company Secretary.

e Materially important show cause, demand, prosecution and penalty notices.
e Fatal or serious accidents or dangerous occurrences.
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iv)

V)

vi)
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Any materially significant effluent or pollution problems.

Any materially relevant default in financial obligations fo and by the Company or substantial non-payment for
goods sold by the Company.

Any issue which involves possible public or product liability claims of a substantial nature including any judgment
or order which may have passed strictures on the conduct of the Company or taken an adverse view regarding
another enterprise that can have negative implications on the Company.

Details of any joint venture or collaboration agreement.

Transactions that involve substantial payment towards goodwill, brand equity or intellectual property.
Significant labour problems and their proposed solutions.

Significant development on human resources and industrial relations fronts.

Sale of material nature of investments, subsidiaries, assets, which is not in the normal course of business.

Quarterly details of foreign exchange exposure and the steps taken by Management to limit the risks of adverse
exchange rate movement and non-compliance of any regulatory or statutory provision or listing requirements
as well as shareholder services such as non-payment of dividend and delays in share transfer.

The Board of the Company is/will be routinely presented with all information under the above heads whenever
applicable and materially significant. These are/will be submitted either as part of the agenda papers well in
advance of the Board Meetings or are/will be tabled during the course of the Board Meetings with the approval
of the Chairman.

Secretarial Standards relating to Meetings:

The Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI) has established Secretarial Standards relating o the Meetings
of the Board and Committees thereof, Annual General Meetings, Dividends, Registers & Records, Minutes and
Transmission of Shares & Debentures, etc., of these, the Secretarial Standards on Meetings of the Board of
Directors and the General Meetings have been made mandatory with effect from 15 July, 2015 and their
revised version have been made effective from 15 October, 2017. Agro Tech Foods Limited complies with the
mandatory Standards fully.

All the Directors have informed the Company about their Directorship and Committee’s memibership in other
listed and unlisted public limited companies and have notified changes from fime to time. As at the year end,
none of the Directors is a Member of more than ten Board-level Committees or a Chairman of more than five
such Committees, as required under Chapter IV of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015. Also, none of the Independent Directors are serving as such in more than seven listed entities.

Independent Directors' Meeting

During the year, the Independent Directors met on 227 January, 2020 without the presence of non-independent
directors and members of management, inter alia, to review their role, functions and duties. They further reviewed
the guidelines of professional conduct as enumerated in Schedule IV (Code for Independent Directors) of the
Companies Act, 2013. During the said meeting, the Independent Directors reviewed the performance of non-
executive Director, including the Chairman and the Board as a whole.

They also assessed the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the company management
and the Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform its duties and found them
to be satisfactory.

The Board aoffirms its opinion that the independent directors fulfill the conditions specified in SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended, and are independent of the Management.
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D) The Board has identified the following core skills/expertise/competencies which are required for the effective
functioning of the Company which are currently available with the board

S. | Name of the Core skills/expertise/ Educational &

No.| Director competencies Professional Qualifications

1. | JiIlAnn Rahman Progressive Brand Building MBA in Marketing
& P & L Leadership

2. | Denise Lynn Hansen Transforming Financial Business CPA, MBA in Integrative
& Developing Control Processes Management

3. | Lt. Gen. D B. Singh Strategic Leadership & B Tech
People Development

4,. | Sanjaya Kulkarni Fiduciary Understanding & [IT, Mumbai, MBA, Ahmedabad
Risk Management

5. | Arun Bewoor Operational Leadership & Honors Degree in Physics
People Development and Mathematics

6. | Narendra Ambwani Brand Building & IIT Kanpur and Post
Strategic Leadership Graduate Diploma in Business

Administration - IIM Ahmedabad
7. | Veena Vishindas Brand Building, Reputation Business Management Graduate,
Gidwani Management & Corporate Training Post Graduate specialisation in
Marketing & Advertising
8. | Sachin Gopal Strategic & Operational Leadership MBA from IIM Ahmedabad
3. AUDIT COMMITTEE
A) Composition

B)

)

The Company’s Audit Committee presently comprises of six directors, all except one (Ms. Denise Lynn Hansen)
are non-executive and Independent Directors. This is in compliance with Chapter IV of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015. Lt. Gen. D.B. Singh, an Independent Director, is
the Chairman of the Committee while Mr. Sanjaya Kulkarni, Mr. Narendra Ambwani, Mr. Arun Bewoor, Ms.
Denise Lynn Hansen and Ms. Veena Vishindas Gidwani are its Members. The Managing Director & CEO, Chief
Financial Officer, the Internal Auditors and the Statutory Auditors attend the meetings by invitation. Ms. Jyofi
Chawla, Company Secretary acts as Secretary to the Committee.

Meetings and attendance during the year

The Committee met 5 times during the year 2019-2020 on 24" April, 2019, 16™ July, 2019, 23 October, 2019,
227 January, 2020 and 5™ March, 2020.The attendance record of each Director was as under:

Sl. | Name of Director No. of Meetings held | No. of Meetings attended
No.

Lt. Gen. D.B. Singh

Mr. Sanjaya Kulkarni

Mr. Arun Bewoor

Mr. Narendra Ambwani

Ms.Veena Vishindas Gidwani

OO B o] —
oo |onfor|on| on
w|o|orfor|no| w

Ms. Denise Lynn Hansen

Permanent Invitees

The Managing Director & CEO and Chief Financial Officer are permanent Invitees. The representatives of the
statutory auditors and internal auditors are also the permanent invitees and they have attended all the meetings
held during the year except the meeting held on 5™ March, 2020.

Terms of Reference of Audit Commitiee

The primary objective of the Committee is to monitor and provide an effective supervision of the financial
reporting process, to ensure accurate and timely disclosures with highest level of fransparency, integrity and
quality of financial reporting. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee covers all the matters specified
under Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and those enumerated in Regulation18 of the Listing Regulations.
The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are as under:
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oversight of the listed entity’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to
ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible;

recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the listed entity;
approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory auditors;

reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements and auditor's report thereon before
submission to the board for approval, with particular reference to:

(a) matters required to be included in the director’s responsibility statement to be included in the board’s
report in terms of clause (c) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013;

(b) changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same;

(c) magjor accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by management;
(@) significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings;

(e) compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements;

(f) disclosure of any related party fransactions;

(@ modified opinion(s) in the draft audit report;

reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the board for
approval;

reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised through an issue (public
issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated
in the offer document / prospectus / notice and the report submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring
the utilisation of proceeds of a public or rights issue, and making appropriate recommendations to the board
to take up steps in this matter;

reviewing and monitoring the auditor’sindependence and performance, and effectiveness of audit process;
approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the listed entity with related parties;

scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

valuation of undertakings or assets of the listed entity, wherever it is necessary;

evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;

reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of the internal
control systems;

reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal audit
department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure coverage and
frequency of internal audit;

discussion with infernal auditors of any significant findings and follow up there on;

reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors info matters where there is suspected
fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting the matter to the
board;

discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as well
as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern;

tolook into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders, shareholders
(in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors;

to review the functioning of the whistle blower mechanism;

approval of appointment of chief financial officer after assessing the qualifications, experience and
background, etc. of the candidate;

Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the audit committee.

reviewing the utilization of loans and/ or advances from/investment by the holding company in the subsidiary
exceeding rupees 100 crore or 10% of the asset size of the subsidiary, whichever is lower including existing
loans / advances / investments.
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The audit committee shall mandatorily review the following information:
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4.
A)

B)

management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations;

statement of significant related party fransactions (as defined by the audit committee), submitted by
management;

management letters / letters of intfernal control weaknesses issued by the statutory auditors;
intfernal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses;

the appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the chief internal auditor shall be subject to review
by the audit committee; and

statement of deviations:

quarterly statement of deviation(s) including report of monitoring agency, if applicable, submitted to stock
exchange(s) in terms of Regulation 32(1).

annual statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer document/ prospectus/
notice in terms of Regulation 32(7).

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Terms of Reference of Nomination and Remuneration Committee

to identify persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior management
in accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the Board their appointment and removal ;

to carry out evaluation of every director’s performance ;
to formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director:

to recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration for the directors, key managerial personnel
and other employees.

Composition, Meetings and Attendance during the year

The Company’s Nomination and Remuneration Committee presently comprises of Seven directors, majority
being non-executive and Independent Directors. Lt. Gen. D.B. Singh an Independent Director, is the current
Chairman of the Committee while Ms. Denise Lynn Hansen, Mr. Sanjaya Kulkarni, Mr. Narendra Ambwani,
Mr. Arun Bewoor, Ms. Veena Vishindas Gidwani and Ms. Jill Ann Rahman are its Members.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee Meetings were held twice during the year 2019-20 on
24th April, 2019 and 16th July, 2019.

SI. | Name of Director No. of Meetings Held No. of Meetings attended
No.

1. |Lt. Gen. D.B. Singh

Mr. Sanjaya Kulkarni

Mr. Arun Bewoor

Mr. Narendra Ambwani

Ms. Veena Vishindas Gidwani
Ms. Denise Lynn Hansen

Ms. Jill Ann Rahman

IS IS
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C) Ciiteria for performance Evaluation of Board

D)

One of the key functions of the Board is to monitor and review the Board evaluation frammework. The Board
works with the Nomination and Remuneration Committee to lay down the evaluation criteria for the performance
of the Chairman, the Board, Board committees, and executive / non-executive / independent directors through
apeer evaluation, excluding the director being evaluated. The performance evaluation of independent directors
is done by the entire Board of Directors (excluding the director being evaluated). On the basis of the report of
performance evaluation, it shall be determined whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the
independent directors.

The annual evaluation of the Board is done at three levels as (i) Board as a whole; (i) Committees of the Board
and (iii) Individual Directors and Chairperson. A detailed Questionnaire is circulated to all individual directors.
The Directors are evaluated on the basis of the following performance evaluation criteria namely knowledge
and competency, fulfillment of functions, ability to function as a team, initiative, availability and attendance,
commitment, contribution and integrity. The Additional criteria for Independent directors are Independence,
Independent views and judgment.

Details of Remuneration paid to the Directors

Managing Director & CEO Mr. Sachin Gopal is paid remuneration as per the terms approved by the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors of the Company and the Shareholders of the Company.
The remuneration of Managing Director & CEO comprises of salary, perquisites and allowances, conftributions
to Provident Fund and Superannuation. Further, Managing Director & CEQO is entitled to performance incentive
for each financial year, as may be determined by the Board on the recommendation of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee. The Nomination and Remuneration policy forms part of the Directors’ Report as an
Annexure.

(i) Remuneration to Managing Director & CEO for the year ended 31st March, 2020: (ind®

Name of the Director

Sitting Salary | Contribution to Other Performance
Fees (Incl. Provident/ perquisites linked
Committee Pension and and incentives /
Meetings) other funds allowances Bonus

Total

Mr. Sachin Gopal Nil 8,709,037 1,480,935 10,493,714 Nil 20,683,686

Note : Above Remuneration is on accrual basis and does not include long-termn compensated absences benefit
accrued and gratuity benefit accrued since the same are computed based on actuarial valuation for all
employees and the amounts attributable to Managing Director cannot be ascertained separately.

There were no Stock Options granted by the Company during the financial year ended March 31, 2020.

(ii) Remuneration paid to Non-Executive Independent Directors for the year ended 31st March, 2020:

Sr. No.| Name of Director Sitting Fee (in %) Commission (in %) Total (in )
1. Lt. Gen. D B Singh 6,75,000 3,90,000 10,65,000
2. Mr. Sanjaya Kulkarni 4,00,000 3,90,000 7,90,000
3. Mr. Narendra Ambwani 9,75,000 3,90,000 13,65,000
4. Mr. Arun Bewoor 9,75,000 3,90,000 13,65,000
5. Ms. Veena Gidwani 9,75,000 3,90,000 13,65,000
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The Company has no Stock Option Scheme for Non-Executive Directors and hence no stock options have
been granted to Non-Executive Directors, including Independent Directors.

Criteria for making payments to Non-Executive Directors

Non-Executive Directors of the Company are entitled to remuneration by way of commission for each financial
year, up to a maximum of  3,90,000/-individually, as approved by the Shareholders. Payment of commission
is determined inter alia, on the basis of the Company’s performance and regulatory provisions.

The Company also pays sitting fees to its Non-Executive Independent Directors as permitted by the provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013 for attending Meetings of the Board and other Committees of the Board. The
sitting fees for the meetings paid to the Non-Executive Independent Directors are as under.

Audit Committee % 75,000/-

Board Meeting % 1,00,000/-

Other Meetings % 25,000/-

The appointment of Executive Directors is governed by Resolutions passed by the Board of Directors and the
shareholders of the Company, which covers the tferms and conditions of such appointment.

STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE (SRC)

Composition

The Stakeholders Relationship Committee presently comprises of five Non-Executive Independent Directors
namely Lt. Gen.D.B. Singh (Chairman), Mr. Sanjaya Kulkarni, Mr. Arun Bewoor, Mr. Narendra Ambwani and Ms.
Veena Vishindas Gidwani.

Terms of Reference

The terms of reference are:

to review and redress the Shareholders” and Investors” Grievances and queries in relation to transfer of shares,
non-receipt of Balance Sheets, declaration of dividends, approval of sub-division, consolidation, tfransmission,
issue of duplicate shares and general meetings etc.

review of measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by shareholders.

review of adherence to the service standards adopted by the Company in respect of various services being
rendered by the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent.

review of the various measures and initiatives taken by the Company for reducing the quantum of unclaimed
dividends and ensuring timely receipt of dividend warrants/annual reports/ statutory notices by the shareholders
of the Company.

Meeting and Attendance during the year

The Committee met four tfimes during the year 2019-20. All queries have been resolved to the satisfaction of the
shareholders/investors. The Committee focuses on the strengthening of investor relations. The status on
compliances is reported to the Board as an agenda item.

Name and designation of Compliance Officer: Ms. Jyoti Chawla, Company Secretary. The e-mail id for investor
grievances is InvestorRedressal@atfoods.com

Number of Shareholder’s complaints received and attended during the financial year ended 31st March 2020

Nature of Complaints Received Attended Pending
Non receipt of Dividend warrants 27 27 -
Transmission of shares 7 7 -
Issue of duplicate share certificates / 24 24 -
indemnity Duplicates

Ofthers* 281 281 -
Total 339 339 -

*

This includes the following

a) Change of address / updation of Telephone / Mobile Number
b) Loss/Misplacement of share certificates

c) SEBI letter regarding non credit of demat shares

47



A)

B)

Agro Tech Foods Limited

d) Bank mandate

e) Non-receipt of tfransfer/Split/Consolidation/ Duplicate issue

f) Revalidation of Dividend Warrant/Correction letter/ correction of Dividend Warrants

g) Non-receipt of Annual Report

h) Procedure for transmission/ split/ consolidation/ duplicates

i) Exchange of share certificates

j)  Signature updation/Specimen Sign updation, etc.

k) [EPF 5 matters for claiming back the shares and unclaimed/unpaid dividend from IEPF Authority

The Company has attended to the stakeholders/ investors grievances/ correspondence generally within a

period of 7 to 10 days except in cases where constrained by disputes of legal impediments.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE

In compliance with the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, Corporate Social Responsibility

Committee has been constituted.

The terms of reference of the Commitiee

() formulate and recommend to the Board, a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy which shall indicate the
activities to be undertaken by the company as specified in Schedule VII;

(i) recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the activities referred to in clause (i); and

(iiiy monitor the Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of the company from time to time.

Composition, Meetings and Attendance during the year

Name of the Member Category Attendance at the CSR Commit-
tee meeting held on April 24, 2019

Lt. Gen. D.B. Singh Independent Non- Yes

Executive Director (Chairperson)

Mr. Sanjaya Kulkarni Independent Non-Executive Director No

Mr. Narendra Ambwani Independent Non-Executive Director Yes

Mr. Arun Bewoor Independent Non-Executive Director Yes

Ms. Veena Vishindas Gidwani | Independent Non-Executive Director Yes

Ms. Denise Lynn Hansen Non-Executive Director No

Ms. Jill Ann Rahman Non-Executive Director No

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company has formulated and adopted risk assessment and minimization framework which has been
adopted by the Board at the Board Meeting held on 15 May 2006, and on 17" October, 2014. The Company
has framed a Risk Management Policy and testing in accordance with the laid down policy is being carried out
periodically. The Senior Management has been having regular Meetings for reassessing the risk environment
and necessary steps are being taken to effectively mitigate the identified risks. A Risk Management Committee
also has been constituted, though not mandatory. The Company’s Risk Management Committee comprises of
8 directors, majority being Non Executive and Independent Directors. Lt. Gen. D.B. Singh an Independent Director,
is the Chairman of the Committee while, Ms. Denise Lynn Hansen, Mr. Sanjaya Kulkarni, Mr. Narendra Ambwani,
Mr. Arun Bewoor, Ms. Veena Vishindas Gidwani, Ms. Jilll Ann Rahman, Mr. Sachin Gopal, Mr. KPN Srinivas and
Ms. Jyoti Chawla (Company Secretary) are its Members.
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The attendance record of members is as under:

Sl. No. Name of Director No. of Meetings held No. of Meetings attended
1. Lt. Gen. D.B. Singh 1
Mr. Sanjaya Kulkarni 1
Mr. Arun Bewoor 1
Mr. Narendra Ambwani 1
Ms. Veena Vishindas Gidwani 1
Mr. Sachin Gopal 1
1

1

1

1

Ms. Denise Lynn Hansen
Ms. Jill Ann Rahman

9. Mr. KPN Srinivas

10. Ms. Jyoti Chawla

The Risk Management Committee Meeting was held during the year 2019-20 on 22"January, 2020.
SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

The Company has three wholly owned subsidiaries, Sundrop Foods India Private Limited, Agro Tech Foods
(Bangladesh) Private Limited and Sundrop Foods Lanka (Private) Limited. During the year 2019-20, Sundrop
Foods India Private Limited has continued to perform the role of aiding the expansion of distribution and display
of your products. This is a non-material and unlisted Company. Agro Tech Foods (Bangladesh) Private Limited
has been incorporated on 8™ April, 2012 and the Company has commenced its operations in December, 2017
and has commenced production in FY18. This is an unlisted Company. Sundrop Foods Lanka (Private) Limited
has been incorporated on 271 January, 2015. The establishment of this subsidiary has enabled the Company to
build scale in Sri Lanka and benefit from the economic growth of a neighboring emerging market. This is an
unlisted Company. The policy for determining material subsidiaries is posted on the website of the Company
http://www.atfoods.com/ pdf/policy determining material subsidiary.pdf

GENERAL BODY MEETINGS
Location and time of last three Annual General Meetings:
The Annual General Meetings of the shareholders of the Company for the last three years were held as under:

X INO OO
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Year Venue Date Time

2018-19 | Hotel Green Park, 7-1-25, Green Lands, Begumpet, 171 July, 2019 10.00 A.M.
Hyderabad- 500016, Telangana

2017-18 | Hotel Green Park, 7-1-25, Green Lands, Begumpet, 26™ July, 2018 10.00 A.M.
Hyderabad-500016, Telangana

2016-17 | The Manohar, Old Airport Exit Road, Begumpet, 26™ July, 2017 10.00 A.M.
Hyderabad-500016, Telangana

The following Special Resolutions were passed by the Members at the last three Annual General Meetings:
Annual General Meeting held on 17" July, 2019 :

There were 5 special resolutions passed by the Shareholders at the 32" Annual General Meeting held on July
17, 2019 and the details are given as below:

a. Reappointment of Lt. Gen D B Singh as a non-executive Independent Director of the Company,who has
already attained the age of 75 years, for a second consecutive term of five years from the date of Annual
General Meeting i.e. 17M July, 2019 to 16™ July, 2024, not be liable to retire by rotation.

b. Reappointment of Mr. Arun Bewoor as a non-executive Independent Director of the Company, who has
already attained the age of 75 years, for a second consecutive term of five years from the date of Annual
General Meeting i.e. 17M July, 2019 to 16™ July, 2024, not be liable to retire by rotation.

c. Reappointment of Mr. Sanjaya Kulkarni as a non-executive Independent Director of the Company, for a
second consecutive term of five years from the date of Annual General Meeting i.e. 17% July, 2019 to 16"
July, 2024, not be liable to retire by rotation.
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d. Reappointment of Mr. Narendra Ambwani as a non-executive Independent Director of the Company, for
a second consecutive term of five years from the date of Annual General Meetingi.e. 17M July, 2019 to 16™
July, 2024, not be liable to retire by rotation.

e. Reappointment of Ms. Veena Gidwani as a non-executive Independent Director of the Company, for a
second consecutive term of five years from the date of Annual General Meeting i.e. 171 July, 2019 to 16™
July, 2024, not be liable to retire by rotation.

Annual General Meeting held on 26™ July, 2018
No special resolutions were passed
Annual General Meeting held on 26™ July, 2017
No special resolutions were passed

(i) No special resolution was passed through postal ballot during the year. No special resolution is proposed to be

10.

conducted through postal ballot.
MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

The Quarterly, Half-Yearly and Annual Results are generally published by the Company in Hyderabad and
Mumbai editions of the Business Standard / Financial Express and Nava Telangana / Mana Telangana. The
Half-Yearly reports are not sent to the shareholders. The results are also being posted on the Company’s website
www.atfoods.com

The audio recordings of the analyst calls and presentation made to analysts are also uploaded on the welbsite
of the Company. It also displays official news releases, wherever applicable. The Compliance Report on
Corporate Governance as per SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 are filed electronically with National Stock
Exchange of India Limited & BSE Limited.

Management Discussion and Analysis Report forms part of the Annual Report.

. GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Annual General Meeting
Date and Time 20 August 2020 at 4.00 PM (IST)

Venue : Pursuant to the Circular No: 20/2020 dated May 5, 2020 of Ministry
of Corporate Affairs, the AGM will be conveyed through Video
Conferencing / Other audio-visual means

Financial Year 2020-21 © April 1, 2020 to March 31, 2021

First quarter results :July, 2020

Half yearly results . October, 2020

Third quarter results . January, 2021

Annual results : April, 2021

Dates of Book Closure :13™ August to 20™ August, 2020 (both days inclusive)
Dividend payment date . within 30 days of the AGM date

Listing on Stock Exchanges . The Company’s equity shares are listed on BSE Limited (BSE),

Pheroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street, Mumbai - 400 001 and
National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE), Exchange Plaza,
Bandra- Kurla Complex, Bandra (E), Mumbai - 400 051.

The listing fees for the year 2019-20 has been paid to BSE and NSE.
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F. Stock Code . |Stock Exchange Code
BSE Scrip code 500215
Co. code 1311
NSE Scrip Code ATFL
Series EQ - Rolling Settlement

G. Market Price Data

Monthly High/Low quotation of shares tfraded on BSE Limited, (BSE) and National Stock Exchange of India
Limited (NSE) for 2019-2020 is given below:

BSE” NSE” Total volumes
Year Month High % lowg | Volumes | iqp 7 lowg | Volumes BstaégSE
(Nos) (Nos)
2019 | April 617.80 561.00 17426 | 619.00 564.60 188095 205521
2019 May 580.00 498.00 16166 | 581.00 501.60 205442 221608
2019 | June 574.75 480.15 7907 | 549.45 484.00 284357 292264
2019 | July 538.00 466.00 4754 | 529.00 475.25 304626 309380
2019 | August 514.15 471.00 7437 | 511.00 466.05 141679 149116
2019 | September 520.00 468.50 113238 | 517.85 466.10 292475 405713
2019 October 708.00 466.00 21365 | 661.50 473.00 219159 240524
2019 November 654.35 562.20 13112 | 666.00 561.25 161967 175079
2019 December 654.80 589.05 10077 | 653.45 590.20 175095 185172
2020 | January 738.10 631.00 25005 | 737.00 630.00 299217 324222
2020 February 732.80 637.00 8193 | 731.75 635.20 157065 165258
2020 March 655.00 350.00 24286 | 657.05 348.20 224675 248961

* Source: Website of BSE & NSE

H. Stock Performance
BSE Sensex Vs. ATFL Share price from April' 19 to March' 20*

45,000 800
40000 — T | 700
35,000 T~ — 600
;o0 [
25,000
20,000
15,000
10,000

5,000 00

J

400

SENSEX

300

200

& — SENSEX

ATFL Price

*Source welbsite of BSE

51



Agro Tech Foods Limited

I. Registrars and Share Transfer Agents

The Company’s equity shares being in compulsory demat list are transferable through the depository system for
which the Company has established connectivity through M/s. KFin Technologies Private Limited and they are the
Registrars and Share Transfer Agents (Both Physical and Depository).

Address :  Karvy Selenium Tower B, Plot 31-32,
Financial District, Nanakramguda, Gachibowli,
Hyderabad-500032, Telangana,

Tel No. + 91-40-67161606, Fax: + 91-40-23420814.

email . einward.ris@kfintech.com
J. Share Transfer System

The applications for transfer of shares received by the Company in physical form are processed and registered
within 20 days of receipt of the documents valid in all respects. After such processing, the duly transferred share
certificates shall be despatched to transferee who lodged the shares for fransfer. Shares under objection are
returned within a week’s time. The Share Transfer Committee meets generally thrice in a month to consider the
transfer applications and other proposals. SEBI has amended the Regulations 40 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations and
pursuant to same, with effect from 15t April 2019, the Company shall not process, except in case of transmission or
tfransposition of securities, any request for effecting transfer of securities unless the securities are held in the
dematerialized form with a depository.

K. Distribution of shareholding as on 31¢ March, 2020 as under:

Range Shareh:?ié?; Shar/;t?élto?;?sl o-of Shr?:ds % of shareholding
1- 5000 14,021 91.58 1,378,813 5.66
5001-10000 790 517 578,960 2.37
10001-20000 263 171 389,624 1.60
20001-30000 67 0.44 172,012 0.70
30001-40000 34 0.22 120,859 0.50
40001-50000 2 0.17 120,821 0.50
50001-100000 51 0.33 365,028 1.50
100000 & above 58 0.38 21,243,147 87.17
15,310 100.00 24,369,264 100.00

The categories of Shareholding as on 31st March, 2020 was as under :

S. No. | Category No. of Shares held % of shareholding
1. Promoter (CAG - Tech (Mauiritius) Limited) 12,616,619 51.77
2. Non-resident individuals/Flls/OCBs 166,540 0.68
3. Bank/Financial Institutions,

Insurance Companies and Mutual Funds 778,974 3.20
4, Directors and their relatives 46,172 0.19
5. Other Bodies Corporates 1,980,963 8.13
6. General Public 8,779,996 36.03

Total 24,369,264 100.00

L. Dematerialisation of Shares

The equity shares of the Company which are in compulsory demat list with effect from 26™ June, 2000 are available
for tfrading under National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited
(CDSL). The International Securities Identification Number allotted to the Company’s equity shares is INE209A01019.
As on date, a total of 24,166,269 equity shares forming 99.17% of the total paid up equity share of 24,369,264 stands
dematerialised. All requests for dematerialisation of shares are processed within the time frame of 1-4 days fime.
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M. Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any convertible instruments, conversion date and likely impact on Equity
Not applicable as the Company has not made any such issue.
N. Commodity Price Risk / Foreign Exchange Risk and Hedging Activities

Your Company has a robust framework and governance mechanism in place to ensure that the organization is
adequately protected from the market voldatility in terms of price and availability based on procurement feam’s
monitoring and intelligence, forecasts of commodity prices and movements. A robust planning and strategy ensure
the Company’s interests are protected despite volatility in commodity prices.

Your Company has managed the foreign exchange risk with appropriate hedging activities in accordance with
policies of the Company. The Company uses forward exchange contracts to hedge against its foreign currency
exposures relating o the underlying transactions and firm commitment. Foreign exchange exposures are covered
except for exposures which are open and no firm date of settlement is available. There are no materially uncovered
exchange rate risks in the contexts of the Company’s imports and exports. The Company does not enter into any
derivative instruments for trading or speculative purposes. The details of foreign exchange exposures as on 31¢
March, 2020 are disclosed in Note 47 in Notes to the standalone IndAS financial statements.

O. Plant Locations

Gujarat . Plot No. 902/2, GIDC, Jhagadia, 393 110, Dist. Bharuch, Gujarat

Telongana : Plot No. 80, Nandigaon Village, Shadnagar Mandal, Kothur , Telangana - 509 210
Uttar Pradesh : Akrampur Industrial Area, Near T V Tower, Akrampur, Unnao, U.P.209801

Assam . Vill-Ramhari, Mangaldai, Distt-Darrang, Assam 784125

Uttarakhand : Khasara No-66/1, Bajpur Road, Narain Nagar Industrial Area, dist-U.S. Nagar,

Kashipur, Uttarakhand.
P. Address for correspondence
The addresses for correspondence are as under :

For both physical KFin Technologies Private Limited

and electronic form Karvy Selenium Tower B, Plot 31-32, Gachibowli
Financial District, Nanakramguda, Hyderabad-500032
Phone:-040-67161606, Fax:-040-23001153, Email: - einward.ris@kfintech.com

For any other matter  In addition to our Registrar, shareholders can
and unresolved contact the Registered Office of the Company
Complaints and contact person's details are given below:
Jyoti Chawla, Company Secretary,
Agro Tech Foods Limited
31, Sarojini Devi Road, Secunderabad - 500 003.
Phone: 040-66650240, Fax : 040-27800947, Email:-InvestorRedressal@atfoods.com

Q. The Company has obtained the revised credit rating from CRISIL during the year on the Bank Facilities of the
Company from CRISIL AA-/stable to CRISIL AA-/Negative.

R. Asrequired under Part C of Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 as amended from time to time, the Certificate fromm a Company Secretary in practice that none of the
directors on the Board of the Company have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing
as Directors of Companies by the Board / Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority is given as
an Annexure to this Report.
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12. DISCLOSURES

0}

(i)

Basis of related party transactions

There have been no material significant related party tfransactions that may have potential conflict with
the interest of the Company at large.

The particulars of tfransactions between the Company and its related parties (As specified in INAAS- 24
"Related Party Disclosures”), is set out in Notes to Accounts under note number 42 forming part of the
standalone, INdAS Financial Statements. These transactions are not likely to have any conflict with the
Company’s interests.

All details relating to financial and commercial fransactions where Directors may have a potential interest
are provided to the Board and interested Directors neither participate in the discussions, nor do they vote
on such matters.

The details of fransactions with related parties are placed before the Audit Committee and the Committee
has reviewed the same for the year ended 315 March, 2020.

The policy on dealing with related party transactions has been posted on the welbsite of the Company and
can be found on http://www.atfoods.com/pdf/policy dedling related party transactions

Strictures and Penalties

No strictures or penalties have been imposed on the Company by the Stock Exchanges or by SEBI or by any
statutory authority on any matters related to capital markets during the last three years.

(i) Vigil Mechanism/Whistle Blower Policy

The vigil mechanism under Whistle Blower Policy has been approved by the Board of Directors on 17
October, 2014. This Whistle Blower Policy of the Company provides opportunities to employees to access in
good faith, to the Management, concerns (in certain cases to the Audit Committee) in case they observe
unethical or improper practices (not necessarily a violation of law) in the Company and to secure those
employees from unfair termination and unfair prejudicial employment practices.

The Whistle Blower Policy has been communicated to all Board Members and Employees of the Company
and also posted under Investor Relations (Corporate Governance) link of the Company’s web site,
www.atfoods.com as required by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015.

http:// www.atfoods.com/templates/home_tpl/pdf/other_info/ATFL WB%20Policy%20final.pdf

The Company affirms that it has not denied any personnel access to the Audit Committee of the Company
(in respect of matters involving alleged misconduct) and it will provide protection to “whistle blowers” from
unfair termination and other unfair prejudicial employment practices.

(iv) The Company has not raised any funds through preferential allotment or qualified institutional placement,

hence there is no question of utilization of such funds.

(v) There have been no instances where the Board has not accepted any recommendation of any Committee

of the Board which is mandatorily required during the financial year.

(vi) The Company and its subsidiary i.e. Sundrop Foods India Private Limited have paid/payable, on a

consolidated basis, the total fees of INR 6.25 Million to its statutory auditorsi.e. M/s B SR & Associates LLP (INR
0.58 Million) for the services provided till July 16, 2019 and M/s Deloitte Haskins and Sells LLP (INR 5.67 Million)
and all entities in the network firm/network entity, for all the services performed during the year since July
17, 2019.

(vii)Disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and

Redressal) Act, 2013

a. number of complaints filed during the financial year - Nil

b. number of complaints disposed off during the financial year - NA
c. number of complaints pending as on end of the financial year- Nil
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(vii) Disclosure of Accounting Treatment

The Company has complied with the appropriate accounting policies and has ensured that they have
been applied consistently. There have been no deviations from the tfreatment prescribed in the Accounting
Standards. The Management reviews the accounting tfreatments adopted and wherever deviations noted,
will be presented in the Financial Statements. A detailed report on significant accounting policies is provided
elsewhere in the Annual Report.

(ix) Disclosure on Website

Following information has been disseminated on the website of the Company at www.atfoods.com
Details of business of the Company

Terms and Conditions of appointment of Independent Directors

Composition of various Committees of Board of Directors

Code of Conduct for Board of Directors and Senior Management Personnel
Details of establishment of vigil mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy

Criteria of making payments to Non-Executive Directors

Policy on dealing with Related Party Transactions

Policy for determining “material subsidiaries’

Details of familiarization programmes imparted to Independent Directors
Policy for determination of materiality of events

. Contact information of the Compliance Officer/ Nodal Officer of the Company who are responsible for
assisting and handling investor grievances

. Financial information including:
() notice of meeting of the board of directors where financial results were discussed;

(i) financial results, on conclusion of the meeting of the board of directors where the financial results were
approved;

(i) complete copy of the annual report including balance sheet, profit and loss account, directors report,
corporate governance report etc;

13. Shareholding pattern
14. Schedule of analyst or institutional investor meet and presentations made by the Company
15. Newspaper Publications Copies for items specified in Regulation 47(1) of LODR Regulations
16. Credit ratings obtained by the Company
17. Financial Statements of its subsidiaries

(x) Management

 The Management Discussion and Analysis Report as part of Directors” Report to the shareholders is provided
elsewhere in the Annual Report.

(i) Fortheyearended 31 March, 2020, your Company’s Board has obtained Senior Management affirmations
that there has been no material, financial and commercial transactions where they have personal interest
that may have a potential conflict with the interests of the Company at large.

(xi) Shareholders Information

The quarterly results are sent to the stock exchange on which the Company is listed and also displays the same
on its own welb-site.

(xii) Prohibition of Insider Trading

In compliance with the provisions of the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 as amended, the
Company has adopted a Policy for prohibition of Insider Trading for Directors and specified employees and
designated persons. The Policy provides for periodic disclosures and pre-clearance for dealing in Company’s
shares and prohibits such transaction by the Directors and specified employees while in possession of unpublished
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price sensitive information (UPSI) in relation to the Company and during the period when the Trading Window is
closed. The Company has also formulated a policy on inquiry in case of leak of UPSI.

(xiii) Share Transfer Committee

The present Members of the Committee are Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the Company,
and the General Manager of M/s. KFin Technologies Private Limited, the Registrars and Share Transfer Agents.
Committee met 10 fimes during the year 2019-2020. All the applications for share transfers received during the
year 2019-2020 have been approved.

(xiv)iLegal Proceedings

There are some pending cases relating to disputes over title to shares, in which the Company has been made
a party. These cases are however not material in nature.

(xv) Code of Conduct

Code of Conduct approved by the Board of Directors has been communicated to all Board Members and
Employees of the Company and also posted on Corporate Governance link of the Company’s web site,
www.atfoods.com. As required under Chapter IV of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, all Board Members and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed compliance with the
Code of Conduct.

Ceriificate of Compliance with the Code of Conduct for Board Members and Senior Management Personnel

To
The Members of
Agro Tech Foods Limited.

I, Sachin Gopal, Managing Director & CEO of the Company, hereby certify that the Board Members and Senior
Management Personnel have affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct for the year ended March 31,
2020.

For Agro Tech Foods Limited
Place : Gurugram Sachin Gopal
Date : 28" May, 2020 Managing Director & CEO

(xvi) CEO/ CFO CERTIFICATION

The CEO (Managing Director) and CFO certification for the year ended 315 March, 2020 has been annexed af
the end of this Report. Similarly, the CEO and CFO have also given quarterly cerfification on financial results
while placing the quarterly financial results before the Board in terms of Regulation 33(2) of the Listing Regulations.

13. COMPLIANCE WITH NON-MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS
Discretionary requirements under Part E of Schedule Il of the Listing Regulations are as under:
i) Chairperson of the Board

The present Chairperson of the Board is a foreign national and Non-Executive Director. The expenses in connection
with her official foreign travel to India are paid by Conagra Brands Inc., where she is employed.

ii) Shareholder rights

The quarterly, half-yearly and annual financial results of the Company are published in newspapers on an alll
India basis and are also posted on the Company’s website, www.atfoods.com . Significant events if any are
also posted on this website under the ‘Investor relations’ section. The complete Annual Report is sent to every
Shareholder of the Company.

iii) Separate posts of Chairperson and Chief Executive Officer

The Chairperson of the Company and Managing Director & CEO are both different persons appointed in the
Company to carry out individual responsibilities.
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iv) Reporting of Internal Auditor

M/s. Grant Thornton India, LLP, the Internal Auditor reports directly to the Audit Committee based on the inputs
provided by the Management on their observations on a quarterly basis.

The Company has complied, to the extent applicable to it, and unless otherwise stated, with all the corporate
governance requirements specified in Regulation 17 to 27 and Regulation 46(2) of the Listing Regulations as
amended, covering the Board of Directors, Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee,
Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Risk Management Committee, Vigil Mechanism, Related Party Transactions,
obligations with respect to the Directors, Independent Directors and senior management, other Corporate
Governance requirements and disclosures on the website of the Company.

14. AUDITOR’S CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

As required under Regulation 34(3) read with Part E Schedule V of the Listing Regulations, the statutory auditor’s
certificate that the Company has complied with the conditions of corporate governance is given as an annexure
to the Boards’ Report.
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Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and Chief Financial Officer (CFO) Certification

In compliance with Regulation 17(8) read with Part B of Schedule Il of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 We, Sachin Gopal, Managing Director & CEO and KPN Srinivas, Chief Financial
Officer of Agro Tech Foods Limited, to the best of our knowledge and belief certify to the Board that:

a. We have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year ended 31 March, 2020
and that to the best of our knowledge and belief:

i) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain
statements that might be misleading

i) these statements together present a true and fair view of the listed entity’s affairs and are in compliance
with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations

b. There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the listed entity during the
year which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the listed entity’s code of conduct.

c. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and that we
have evaluated the effectiveness of the internal control systems of the listed entity pertaining to financial
reporting and we have disclosed to the auditors and the Audit Committee, deficienciesin the design or operation
of internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify
these deficiencies;

d. We have indicated to the auditors and the Audit Committee
i) Significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year ended 31 March, 2020;

i) Significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same have been disclosed in the
notes to the financial statements; and

i) Instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the
management or an employee having a significant role in the listed entity’s internal control system over
financial reporting.

Sachin Gopal KPN Srinivas
Managing Director & CEO Chief Financial Officer

Place : Gurugram
Date : 28" May, 2020
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

To,

The Members of

Agro Tech Foods Limited

31, Sargjini Devi Road, Secunderabad - 500 003

| BV Saravana Kumar, Company Secretary in Practice, Partner of Tumuluru & Company have examined the relevant
registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of Agro Tech Foods Limited having
CIN L15142TG1986PLC0O06957 and having registered office at 31, Sarojini Devi Road, Secunderabad - 500 003,
Telangana India (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’), produced before me/us by the Company for the
purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause
10(0) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
as amended.

In my/our opinion and to the best of my/our information and according to the verifications (including Directors
Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations
furnished to me / us by the Company & its officers, I/We hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of
the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending on 315 March, 2020 have been debarred or disqualified
from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India,
Ministry of Corporate Affairs, or any such other Statutory Authority.

SIl. No. | DIN Name of the Director Designation

1. 07693684 Jill Ann Rahman Non-Executive Chairperson
2. 07583110 Denise Lynn Hansen Non- Executive Director

3. 07439079 Sachin Gopal Managing Director and CEO
4, 00239637 Dharam Bir Singh Independent Director

5. 00024276 Arun Madhav Bewoor Independent Director

6. 00102575 Sanjay Shrikrishna Kulkarni Independent Director

7. 00236658 Narendra Kumar Anand Ambwani Independent Director

8. 06890544 Veena Vishindas Gidwani Independent Director

For Tumuluru & Company
Company Secretaries

Sd/-

B V Saravana Kumar
Partner

ACS No.; 26944

CPNo.: 11727

UDIN : A026944B000222568

Place : Hyderabad
Date : 11" May, 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To the members of
AGRO TECH FOODS LIMITED

1.
2.

This certificate is issued in accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated September 17, 2019.

We, Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP, Chartered Accountants, the Statutory Auditors of Agro Tech Foods Limited
(“the Company”), have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by the Company,
for the year ended on March 31,2020, as stipulated in regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of regulation
46(2) and para C and D of Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015, as amended (“the Listing Regulations”).

Managements’ Responsibility

3.

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. This
responsibility includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control and procedures to
ensure the compliance with the conditions of the Corporate Governance stipulated in Listing Regulations.

Auditor’s Responsibility

4,

Our responsibility is limited to examining the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the
Company for ensuring compliance with the conditions of the Corporate Governance. Itis neither an audit
nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

We have examined the books of account and other relevant records and documents maintained by the
Company for the purposes of providing reasonable assurance on the compliance with Corporate Governance
requirements by the Company.

We have carried out an examination of the relevant records of the Company in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Certification of Corporate Governance issued by the Institute of the Chartered Accountants of India
(the ICAI), the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act 2013, in so far as
applicable for the purpose of this certificate and as per the Guidance Note on Reports or Certificates for
Special Purposes issued by the ICAI which requires that we comply with the ethical requirements of the Code
of Ethics issued by the ICAL.

We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality Control (SQC) 1,
Quality Control for Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of Historical Financial Information, and Other Assurance
and Related Services Engagements.

Opinion

8.

Based on our examination of the relevant records and according to the information and explanations provided
to us and the presentations provided by the Management, we certify that the Company has complied with
the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in regulations 17 to 27 and clauses () to (i) of regulation
46(2) and para C and D of ScheduleV of the Listing Regulations during the year ended March 31, 2020.

We state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the
efficiency or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Deloitte Haskins & SellsLLP
Chartered Accountants
(F.R.N. 117366W /W-100018)

Sumit Trivedi

Partner

(Membership No. 209354)
UDIN: 20209354AAAAFS7887

Secunderabad
May 28, 2020
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BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY REPORT

(Pursuant to Regulation 34(2)(f) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)
SECTION A : GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE COMPANY

Sr. No. | Particulars Company Information
1. Corporate Identity Number (CIN) of the L15142TG1986PLC006957
Company
2. Name of the Company Agro Tech Foods Limited
3. Registered address 31, Sargjini Devi Road, Secunderabad-500003, Telangana.
4, Website www.atfoods.com
5. E-mail id InvestorRedressal@atfoods.com
6. Financial Year reported 15 April, 2019 to 31sf March 2020
7. Sector(s) that the Company is engaged Edible Oil-NIC Code 10402
in (industrial activity code-wise)* Processing of edible nuts-NIC Code 10793
Other semi-processed, processed or instant foods n.e.c.-
NIC Code 10799
8. List three key products/services that the Edible Oils, Ready to Cook Snacks, Ready to Eat Snacks
Company manufactures/provides and Spreads
(as in balance sheet)
9. Total number of locations where business | (a) Number of international locations :
activity is undertaken by the Company Bangladesh & Sri Lanka
(a) Number of international locations : (b) Number of national locations:
(b) Number of national locations Registered Office : Secunderabad
Corporate Office: Gurugram
Manufacturing Units: Jhagadia, Kashipur, Unnao,
Mangaldoi, Kothur
Regional offices: Secunderabad,
Mumbai, Kolkata, Gurugram
10. Markets served by the Company Local/State/National/International: National & International

SECTION B : FINANCIAL DETAILS OF THE COMPANY

1.

Paid up Capital

% 243,692,640

in 4 above has been incurred

2. Total Turnover/ Total Income % 8,384.76 Millions
3. Total profit after taxes % 339.21 Millions
4 Total Spending on Corporate Social % 6,862,235
Responsibility (CSR) as percentage 1.41%
of profit after tax (%)
5. List of activities in which expenditure Major areas in which the aforementioned expenditure has

been incurred include the following:

i. Project Poshan-Eradicating malnourishment amongst children

ii. Contribution made to the PM CARES Fund in view of the
Covid-19 Pandemic

iii. Improve the safety measures for women employees

iv. Contribution to Shekinah Foundation for providing mid-
day meal to student
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SECTION C : OTHER DETAILS

1.

Does the Company have any subsidiary company/companies

Yes

2.

Do the subsidiary company/companies participate in the
BR initiatives of the parent company ? If yes, then indicate
the number of such subsidiary company(s)

No

Do any other entity/entities (e.g. suppliers, distributors etc.)

that the Company does business with, participate in the BR
initiatives of the Company ? If yes, then indicate the percentage
of such entity/entities? (Less than 30%, 30-60%, More than 60%)

No

SECT

ION D : BR INFORMATION

Details of Director/Directors
responsible for BR

Mr. Sachin Gopal
Managing Director
DIN: 07439079

Principle-wise (as per National
Voluntary Guidelines (NVGs))
Business Responsibility Policy/policies

Details of compliance (Reply in Yes/No)

independent audit/evaluation of
the working of this policy by an
internal or external agency?

No.| Questions P1 P2 P3 P4 P5 P6 p7 P8 P9
1. | Do you have a policy/policies for: | Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
2. |Hasthe policy being formulatedin| Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
consultation with the relevant
stakeholders?
3. |Does the policy conform to any| The Policies are aligned to the legal requirements.
national/international standards?
4 |Has the policy being approved by | The policies are noted by the Board of Directors of the Company.
the Board? Implementation of policy decision is carried out by the
If yes, has it been signed by MD/ | management,
Owner/CEO/appropriate Board
Director?
5 |Does the company have al| Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
specified committee of the Board/
Director/Official fo oversee the
implementation of the policy?
6 |Indicate the link for the policy to | Policies which are internal o the Company are available on the intranet
be viewed online? portal of the Company. Other policies are available on the website of the
Company, www.atfoods.com and the links are as follows:
http://atfoods.com/pdf/codeofconduct/codeofconductsep-
16a.pdf
http://atfoods.com/pdf/ATFL%20CSR%20POLICY.pdf
7 |Has the policy been formally| v Y Y Y \ Y Y Y Y
communicated to all relevant
internal and external stakeholders?
8 |Does the company have in-house| Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
structure to implement the policy/policies
9 |Does the company have af VY Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
grievance redressal mechanism
related to the policy/policies to
address stakeholders’ grievances
related to the policy/policies?
10 |Has the company carried out| The Internal Audit of the Company which is performed by an

independent external auditor periodically looks at the
implementation of the relevant policies.
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2(a) If answer to the question at serial number 1 against any principle, is ‘No’, please explain why:

(Tick up to 2 options)

1 | The company has not understood
the Principles

2 | The company is not at a stage
where it finds itself in a position to
formulate and implement the
policies on specified principles

3 | The company does not have
financial or manpower resources
available for the task

4 | Itis planned to be done within next
6 months

5 | Itis planned to be done within the
next 1 year

6 | Any other reason (please specify)

3. |Governance related to BR:

(o) Indicate the frequency with which
the Board of Directors, Committee
of the Board or CEO to assess the
BR performance of the

In compliance with SEBI (LODR) (Fifth Amendment) Regulations, 2019
noftified on 26" December, 2019, the Company is publishing first fime
its Business Responsibility Report as part of the Annual Report for
FY2019-20. It is also available on the Company’s website
www.atfoods.com. It is proposed to be assessed annually.

Company. Within 3 months, 3-6
months, Annually, More than 1 year

Does the Company publish a BR or
a Sustainability Report? What is the
hyperlink for viewing this report?
How frequently it is published?

(®)

SECTION E : PRINCIPLE-WISE PERFORMANCE

Principle 1 : Businesses should conduct and govern
themselves with Ethics, Transparency and
Accountability

Agro Tech Foods Limited is committed to adhere to
the highest standards of integrity and ethics. In order
to maintain these standards, it has adopted the *Code
of Conduct’, which lays down the principles and
standards in its dealing with all its stakeholders,
including employees, customers, suppliers,
government and the community. The Code sets out
the principle guidelines that should govern the actions
of the employees and the Board of Directors in the
course of conduct of business of the Company. The
Company has adopted a *Whistle blower policy’ to
highlight any concerns and for a proper redressal of
the same.

The COC Policy provides guidelines on ethics, bribery
and corruption to be abided by all the members of
the group. Itismandatory for allemployees to undergo
the COC Policy. The Guidelines are communicated
to our key associates like vendors, suppliers and it is
expected that they will follow it during their interaction
with Agro Tech. Any actual or potential violation of
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the Code, would receive appropriate intervention by
the Company.

Principle 2 : Businesses should provide goods and
services that are safe and contribute to sustainability
throughout their life cycle

The Company is committed to develop and produce
wholesome and safe food products to deliver against
its vision of being amongst “India’s Best Performing
Most Respected Food Companies”. The Company’s
commitment is to ensure compliance with relevant
standards of environment, health and safety
commencing at the product research & development
stage itself and is extended to the entire life cycle of
product. The Environment Management practices of
the Company focus on conservation of natural
resources and waste management. The Company’s
environmental commitment is demonstrated through
its Guidelines for management of health, safety and
environment, extended to all our manufacturing units
and business associates. Further, at the factory
locations, the Company endeavors to create jobs for
the local communities. The Company is committed
to promoting its brands in ways that educate
consumers through product labeling, advertising and
promotion of safe usage of Products.
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Sustainable Products: The Company endeavors to
embed the principles of sustainability, as far as
practicable, intfo the various stages of product life-
cycle, including procurement of raw material/service,
manufacturing of product or delivery of service,
fransportation of raw materials and finished goods,
and disposal by consumers.

Maximizing Resource Efficiency: The Company has
been continuously improving its resource use
efficiencies, especially that of common resources
such as water and energy. Resource efficiency is
infegrated into product and process design and is a
critical component in the creation of physical
infrastructure, operations, logistics and waste
management,

Sustainable Sourcing: Vendors/service providers and
large outsourced manufacturing facilities are
encouraged to adopt management practices
detailed under International Standards such as ISO
@001, ISO 14001, ISO 22001 and ATFL’s Corporate
Environment, Health and Safety (EHS) Guidelines.
Contract manufacturing agreements provide for
compliance with accepted standards on issues
related to EHS, human rights and labour practices.
Most of the outsourced manufacturing units of the
Foods Business are HACCP (Hazard Analysis and
Critical Control Point) based and continue to focus
on improvement in energy efficiency. These
inferventions are some of the examples of the
Company’s sustainability practices being adopted by
its supply chain network partners.

Responsible Sourcing: The Company procures a
significant amount of input materials from local
farmers and intermediate processors of agricultural
commodities. The Company puts efforts in driving the
growth of local economy and continue to work with
the local producers and communities. For example,
factories are located across India to optimize logistics
and give employment to local people.

The Company always endeavors to minimize the
waste generation from its manufacturing operations.
The Company has initiated well documented process
and executed agreement with the certified Vendor
to ensure compliance with the Extended Producer
Responsibility (EPR) defined under the Plastic Waste
Management Rules. In FY 19-20, the Company
completed collection and disposal of 30% its post-
consumer mulfi-layer plastic packaging waste. The
Company has also established well defined Waste
Management System at the manufacturing sites and
allhazardous and non-hazardous waste are disposed
through appropriate channels and approved
vendors.
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Principle 3 : Businesses should promote the well being
of all employees

The Company considers human resource as the most
valuable assets and essential for persistent growth of
business. Being one of the core components of the
Company’s philosophy, the same reflects in its
approach towards health and safety of employees
at the work place. The Company’s systems and
processes are designed to enhance employee
capability, engagement, vitality and well-being to
ensure that employees add superior value which help
business stay competitive and enabling the Company
to achieve its ambitious growth plans. ATFL's Code of
Conduct provides the guidelines for employee’s well-
being related to participation, benefits, medical
assistance, freedom, gender equality, good
environment and harassment free workplace. A
strong mechanism is in place for deployment of
guidelines and grievance redressal.

The Company follows the philosophy of “Grow our
own timber” to promote its personnel internally based
on their knowledge/skills vis-a-vis the job/role
requirements. ATFL conducts every year an employee
engagement survey to assess the work place
sentiment and views of the employees. In FY'20 your
Company successfully achieved an Engagement
Score of 79%.

Information with reference to BRR framework :

1. Please indicate the Total number of employees-
541

2. Please indicate the Total number of employees
hired on temporary/contractual/casual basis-
208

3. Please indicate the Number of permanent
women employees- 27

4. Please indicate the Number of permanent
employees with disabilities- Nil

5. Do you have an employee association that is
recognized by management? - No

6. What percentage of your permanent employees
is members of this recognized employee
association?- N/A

7. Please indicate the Number of complaints
relating to child labour, forced labour,
involuntary labour, sexual harassment in the
last financial year and pending, as on the end
of the financial year
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No. Category

No of complaints filed
during the financial year

No of complaints
pending as on end of the financial year

1. Child labour/forced Nil Nil
labour/involuntary labour

2. Sexual harassment Nil Nil

3. Discriminatory employment Nil Nil

8. What percentage of your under mentioned
employees were given safety & skill up-
gradation training in the last year?

(a) Permanent Employees- 80%
(b) Permanent Women Employees- 80%

(c) Casual/Temporary/Contractual Employees-
80%

(d) Employees with Disabilities-NA

Principle 4: Businesses should respect the interests of,
and be responsive towards all stakeholders, especially
those who are disadvantaged, vulnerable and
marginalized

The Company has mapped its intfernal and external
stakeholders in a structured way and carries out
engagements with employees, shareholders,
customers, suppliers, business partners, communities,
society and Government etc. The Company has put
in place systems and procedures to identify, prioritise
and address the needs and concerns of its
stakeholders across businesses and units in a
continuous, consistent and systematic manner. It also
identifies the interests of its internal stakeholders like
employees through feedback surveys and other
periodic reviews. The external stakeholders are
mapped through various sales and marketing
activities such as customer contact programs, channel
partner meetings, trainings, etc. Being in Foods
business and the manufacturers of healthy foods like
Peanut Butter etc, the Company conftributes to the
society in addressing social issues like Malnourishment.
The Company has developed a program named
‘Poshan’ and continues to partner with Government
to provide Peanut Butter at Anganwadis run by the
Government and Child Malnourishment Treatment
Centers in various States. The Company also support
other programs like Shekina Foundation, Hyderabad
for providing Mid-day meal to students. In FY'20, the
Company has also contributed to PM Cares Fund to
support the Government efforts in dealing with
unprecedented situation posed by COVID-19
pandemic.

Principle 5: Businesses should respect and promote
human rights

The Company’s Code of Conduct covers the

guidelines on human rights and are applicable to all
the employees and associates of company. There
have been no complaints received in the past
financial year. The Company promotes the Code of
Conduct which apart from other things ensures that
there are no instances of sexual harassment, child
labour or discriminatory practices. With a view to
building awareness and educating employees on
policies on human rights, the Company’s Code of
Conduct is briefed and made part of the induction
programs to be rolled out to employees.

Principle 6: Businesses should respect, protect, and
make efforts to restore the environment

Allthe Company’s manufacturing units have policies
on environment, health and safety measures in line
with the Environment, Health and Safety Guidelines
adopted by the Company and it extends to all
Suppliers, Contractors and others. The Company pro-
actively addresses issues such as global warming
which is impacted by global consumption of plastics
and addressed by the Company through
comprehensive EPR implementation. The Company
has mechanism in place to identify and assess
potential environmental risks. The Company also
monitors hazardous wastes and emissions in its
manufacturing units and the wastes and emissions are
within permissible limits as laid down by the regulators.
The Company does not have project related to Clean
Development Mechanism.

The Company has undertaken initiatives on clean
technology, energy efficiency, renewable energy.
Some of the initiatives are highlighted below:

* Reduction on dependency on diesel, furnace
oil with a focus to shift to clean fuel

e Energy efficiency initiatives include-
implementing energy efficient lighting fixtures,
retrofitting high efficiency motors and
installation of variable frequency drives at alll
manufacturing units

e Opportunitiesin the field of renewable energy
source are being implemented such as
rooftop solar etfc.

The Emissions/Waste generated by the company was
within the permissible limits given by CPCB/SPCB for
the financial year being reported. There are no
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pending EHS show cause notices as at the end of the
financial year.

Principle 7: Businesses, when engaged in influencing
public and regulatory policy, should do so in a
responsible manner

The Company is a member of the following trade/
chamber/ association:

a) Federation of Indian Chamber of Commerce and
Industry

b) The Federation of Telangana Chambers of
Commerce and Industry

c) Confederation of Indian Industry

d) Bombay Chamber of Commerce and Industry
e) The Indian Society of Advertisers

) Indian Vanaspati Producers Association

Q) Kumaun Garhwal Chamber of Commerce &
Industry

The Company participates in various seminars,
conferences organized by these associations from
time to time with an intention of mutual learning and
awareness about regulatory changes and
contribution in development of processes. The
Company contributes in development of industry and
government bodies in regulatory, operational and
other areas by working along with these institutions.

Principle 8: Businesses should support inclusive growth
and equitable development

The Company has specified programmes in pursuit
of the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy and
the focus areas at present is eradicating malnutrition
and promoting healthcare. The Company has
developed a program named ‘Poshan’ and
continues to partner with Government to provide one
of our Product "Peanut Butter” at Anganwadis run by
the Government and Child Malnourishment
Treatment Centers in various States, as the Peanut
Butter is a rich source of protein and highly effective
to fight malnutrition and it has proved to be a good
supplement in addressing malnourishment in various
parts of the world. The Company identify areas where
the malnourishment is prevalent and through
Anganwadi centers, it provides Peanut Butter for the
children attending Anganwadi centers. Each child
gets 32 gms of Peanut Butter everyday for 3 months.
Since itisrich in protein, the product works effectively
in addressing malnourishment especially in the areas
of stunting and wasting. The Company has started
this program in 2012 and the coverage has gone up
to 44,584 children per year in FY 20. The Company’s
factory is situated in Jhagadia, Gujarat so majority of
the children are from the surrounding areas of
Jhagadia. Apart from Gujarat, this program has also
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been extended to West Bengal, Uttarakhand,
Telangana and Delhi.

Apart from the Poshan program, the Company also
supports meal program at Shekina Foundation,
Hyderabad, where physically handicapped children
study. The Company supports for providing Mid-day
meal to students. Also, the Company contributed to
government organized activities such as PM CARES
etc.

These initiatives are implemented by the Company’s
infernal feams or in partnership with non-profit
organizations. This helps in increasing reach as well as
ensuring the adoption of initiative by communities. The
CSR project have been constantly evaluated and
fracked to ensure maximum impact. The government
machinery attached Anganwadi centers in Gujarat
conducted an internal assessment centers on the
efficacy of the infervention and on finding positive
results, they recommended to continue with the
program. The in-house committee organizing these
activities monitors the implementation closely in such
a way that the community adopts these programs
successfully.

The financial and impact details are covered in the
Directors’ Report in the CSR section of the report and
CSR section of this report as above.

Principle 9: Businesses should engage with and provide
value to their customers in a responsible manner

The Company always endeavors to educate
consumers on healthy lifestyle and nutritional values.
The Company promotes taglines for good health such
as Strong Banne ka Tasty Tareeka (Tastier Way to get
Stronger). The Company values the consumer opinion,
concerns and feedback provided. For receiving and
resolving customer complaints, there are adequate
systems in place to address them. Customers may
reqister their grievances over the dedicated helpline.

There is one consumer case pending as at the end of
the financial year which is being dealt with
appropriately before the respective consumer forums.
The Company adheres to all applicable laws and
regulations on product labelling. Additional
information about the product is displayed over and
above the mandated law wherever applicable. There
is no case filed by any stakeholder against the
company regarding unfair frade practices,
iresponsible advertising and/or anti competitive
behaviour during the last five years. The Company
generally do not conduct any consumer survey/
consumer satisfaction tfrends but do conduct
consumer testing before launching the new products
and keep in mind consumer’s feedback and
perception.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF AGRO TECH FOODS LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial
Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone
financial statements of Agro Tech Foods Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at
March 31, 2020, and the Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash
Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in
Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the
information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act™) in the manner so required and give a true
and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act
read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, ("Ind AS”) and
other accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2020, and its profit, total comprehensive
income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for
the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit of the standalone financial

statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act
(SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibility for the
Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section
of our report. We are independent of the Company
in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI)
together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the standalone financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the
Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfiled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the standalone financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the standalone financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters. We have determined the matters
described below to be the key audit matters to be
communicated in our report.

Srl. Key Audit Matter
No.

Auditor’s Response

1 |Revenue recognition - Sale of goods

Refer Note 3 (h) "Revenue Recognition” of the
Standalone Financial Statements under
Significant Accounting Policies.

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when
conftrol of the products being sold is transferred
to the customer, which is mainly upon delivery
and when there are no longer any unfulfilled
obligations.

The fiming of revenue recognition is relevant to
the reported performance of the Company. The
Management considers revenue as a key
measure for evaluation of performance. There is
a risk of revenue being recorded before control
is fransferred.

We have performed the following principal audit
procedures in relation to revenue recognised which
include a combination of testing internal controls and
substantive testing as under:

* Assessing the appropriateness of the Company's
revenue recognition accounting policies in line
with Ind AS 115 ("Revenue fromm Contracts with
Customers") and testing thereof.

e Evaluating the integrity of the general information
and technology ('IT") control environment and
testing the operating effectiveness of key IT
application controls.

e Understanding the revenue recognition process,
evaluating the design and implementation of
Company's controls in respect of revenue
recognition.

* Testing the effectiveness of such controls over
revenue cut-off at year end.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (confinued)

Testing the supporting documentation for sales
fransactions recorded during the period closer
to the year end and subsequent to the year end,
including examination of credit notes issued
subsequent to the year end to determine whether
revenue was recognised in correct period.

Performing analytical procedures on current year
revenue based on monthly frends and where
appropriate, conducting further enquiries and
testing.

Assessment of impairment in the investment in a
subsidiary

The Company has investments in subsidiaries and
the Management assessed that there are
impairment indicators in respect of its investment
in Agro Tech Foods (Bangladesh) Pvt. Ltd.

Accordingly, the Management estimated the
recoverable value of investment in Agro Tech
Foods (Bangladesh) Pvt. Ltd., the carrying value
of which as at March 31, 2020 is ¥ 141.27 million.

The evaluation of the recoverable amount
involves determination of the most appropriate
valuation method and the inputs used in the
valuation model.

We have performed the following principal audit
procedures, including involving our valuation specialists,
in relation to assessment of impairment of investment
in Agro Tech Foods (Bangladesh) Pvt. Ltd. :

Assessed whether the methodology established
by Management to identify indications of
impairment and the quantification thereof was
appropriate.

Evaluated the design and implementation of
conftrol relating to Management’s estimation of
recoverable amount of investment.

Evaluated the Management’s valuation method
used and the accuracy of the inputs used in the
model to determine the recoverable value.

Evaluated the inputs used to assess their
reasonableness, tested the sensitivity of the
recoverable value to the change in the inputs
used and tested the arithmetical accuracy of the
model.

Existence of Inventories

As at March 31, 2020, the Company carried
inventories aggregating T 774.69 million,
comprising 15% of the fotal assets of the
Company as on that date, which inventories are
geographically spread across mulfiple locations
such as factories/ depots.

These inventories are physically verified by the
Management in accordance with a physical
verification plan.

Owing to the COVID-19 related lock-down, we
were unable to parficipate in the year-end
physical verification of inventories carried out by
the Management at the year-end. For the
aforementioned reason and also since the
inventory balance is material, the existence and
condition thereof has been considered as a key
audit matter.

We have performed the following principal audit
procedures in relation to validating the existence and
condition of inventories, which include a combination
of testing internal controls and substantive testing as
under:

Understood Management’s control over physical
inventory counts.

Evaluation of the design and tfesting the
operating effectiveness of the internal controls
relating to physical inventory counts.

Evaluation of the design and testing the
operating effectiveness of the internal controls
relating to purchases, sales and inventories
including automated controls.

Performed alternate procedures including
inspection of documentation of the subsequent
sale of inventories to audit the existence and
condition of inventory as per guidance provided
in SA 501 “Audit Evidence - Specific
Considerations for Selected Iltems” and have
obtained sufficient appropriate audit evidence.
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*  We have also performed roll-forward procedures
for establishing the existence of inventory as at
year-end by validating purchases, sales, stock
movement of inventory during the intervening
period i.e. from the date physical verification was
done ftill the year end date.

e \Verification of documentary evidences of
damaged and expired stock and the adequacy
of recorded allowance in respect of these.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and
Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for
the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Report of the Directors
and Management Discussion & Analysis, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements,
standalone financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

e Our opinion on the standalone financial
statements does not cover the other information
and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

e In connection with our audit of the standalone
financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the standalone financial
statements or our knowledge obtained during the
course of our audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

e |If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone
Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for
the matters stated in Section 134(56) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these standalone
financial statements that give a true and fair view of
the financial position, financial performance including
other comprehensive income, cash flows and
changes in equity of the Company in accordance
with the Ind AS and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
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implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to
the preparation and presentation of the standalone
financial statement that give a tfrue and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements,
management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability fo continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for
overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Standalone
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the standalone financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we
exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the standalone financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
infentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal financial
control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act,
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion
on whether the Company has adequate intfernal
financial controls system in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of
management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or condifions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the standalone financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
contfent of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
standalone financial statements represent the
underlying fransactions and events in a manner
that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the
standalone financial statements that, individually or
in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic
decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
standalone financial statements may be influenced.
We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative
factorsin (i) planning the scope of our audit work and
in evaluating the results of our work; and (i) fo evaluate
the effect of any identified misstatements in the
standalone financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with
governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
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audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in intfernal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with
a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged
with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the
standalone financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matters

The comparative financial information for the year
ended March 31, 2019 included in these standalone
financial statements have been audited by the
predecessor auditor. The report of the predecessor
auditor on the comparative financial information
expressed an unmodified opinion.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements is
not modified in respect of the above matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based
on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information
and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the
purposes of our audit,

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as
required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those
books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and
Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, the
Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes
in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement
with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial
statements comply with the Ind AS specified under
Section 133 of the Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations
received from the directors as on March 31, 2020
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f)

9

h)

taken on record by the Board of Directors, none
of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2020
from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of
such controls, refer to our separate report in
*Annexure A”. Our report expresses an unmodified
opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial
controls over financial reporting.

With respect to the other matters to be included
in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as
amended, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations
given to us, the remuneration paid / payable by
the Company to its directors during the year is in
accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of
the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included
in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:
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The Company has disclosed the impact of
pending litigations on its financial position in ifs
standalone financial statements;

The Company did not have any long-term
contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses;

There has been no delay in transferring amounts,
required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report)
Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Governmentin terms of Section 143(11) of the Act,
we give in "Annexure B” a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the
Order.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

Sumit Trivedi

Partner
Membership No. 209354
UDIN: 20209354AAAAFQ8272

Place: Secunderabad
Date: May 28, 2020
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ANNEXURE -A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1 (f) under ‘Report on Other
Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our
report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over
financial reporting of Agro Tech Foods Limited (“the
Company”) as of March 31, 2020 in conjunction with
our audit of the standalone financial statements of
the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial
Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for
establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets,
the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is fo express an opinion on the
Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting (the “"Guidance Note”)
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under
Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively
in all material respects.
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Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and
their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that
a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating
the design and operating effectiveness of internal
confrol based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial
controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting

A company's infernal financial control over financial
reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A Company's
internal financial control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain
to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions
and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention
or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have
a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial
conftrols over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management
override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
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controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree
of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate
internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over
financial reporting were operating effectively as at
March 31, 2020, based on the criteria for internal
financial control over financial reporting established
by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance
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Note on Audit of Internal Financial Conftrols Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

Sumit Trivedi

Partner

Membership No. 209354
UDIN: 20209354AAAAFQ8272

Place : Secunderabad
Date . May 28, 2020
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ANNEXURE-B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other
Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our
report of even date)

() (@) The Company has maintained proper records
showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) The fixed assets were physically verified during
the year by the Management in accordance
with a regular programme of verification
which, in our opinion, provides for physical
verification of all the fixed assets at reasonable
intervals. According to the information and
explanation given to us, no material
discrepancies were noticed on such
verification.

(c) According to the information and
explanations given to us and the records
examined by us and based on the
examination of the registered sale deed
provided to us, we report that, the title deeds,
comprising all the immovable properties of
land and buildings which are freehold, are
held in the name of the Company as at the
balance sheet date.

In respect ofimmovable properties of land and
buildings that have been taken on lease and
disclosed as right of use assets in the financial
statements, the lease agreements are in the
name of the Company, where the Company
is the lessee in the agreement, except for
immovable property of land at Jhagadia
admeasuring 1,00,000 sg. mtrs., having a
carrying value of ¥ 59.54 million as at March
31, 2020, in respect of which the lease deed is
pending execution.

(i) Asexplained to us, the inventories were physically
verified during the year by the Management at
reasonable intervals and no material
discrepancies were noticed on physical
verification.

(i) The Company has not granted any loans, secured
orunsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or other parties covered in the register
maintained under section 189 of the Companies
Act, 2013.
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(iv) In our opinion and according to the information

(2

and explanations given to us, the Company has
complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and
186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of grant
of loans, making investments and providing
guarantees and securities, as applicable.

According to the information and explanations
given to us, the Company has not accepted any
deposit falling within the purview of the provisions
of Section 73 to 76 of the Companies Act, 2013.
There are no unclaimed deposits.

(vi) The maintenance of cost records has been

specified by the Central Government under
section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 for
manufacture of edible oils. We have broadly
reviewed the cost records maintained by the
Company pursuant to the Companies (Cost
Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, as amended,
prescribed by the Central Government under sub-
section (1) of Section 148 of the Companies Act,
2013, and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the
prescribed cost records have been made and
maintained. We have, however, not made a
detailed examination of the cost records with a
view to determine whether they are accurate or
complete.

(vii) According to the information and explanations

given to us, in respect of statutory dues:

(a) The Company has been regular in depositing
undisputed statutory dues, including Provident
Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-
tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Customs Duty, Excise
Duty, Value Added Tax, cess and other
material statutory dues applicable to it with
the appropriate authorities.

(b) There were no undisputed amounts payable
in respect of Provident Fund, Employees’ State
Insurance, Income-tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax,
Customs Duty, Excise Duty, Value Added Tax,
cess and other material statutory dues in
arrears as at March 31, 2020 for a period of
more than six months from the date they
became payable.



Agro Tech Foods Limited

ANNEXURE-B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(c) Details of dues of Income-tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty, and Value Added Tax which
have not been deposited as on March 31, 2020 on account of disputes are given below:

Tax, 2005

Tax

(Appeals), Dehradhun

Name of Statute Nature of Forum where Dispute Period to which| Amount Amount
Dues is Pending the Amount Involved Unpaid
Relates R in Million) |X in Million)
Income Tax Act, 1961 Income-tax |Income tax Appellate| 2010-11 69.35 3.88
Tribunal, Hyderabad 2011-12 33.31 28.31
2012-13 31.09 16.59
2013-14 10.96 10.96
Commissioner of 2017-18 12.90 2.08
Income-tax appeals
Central Excise Act, 1944 | Excise duty | Central Excise and Service Tax| 2009-12 28.10 27.10
Appellate Tribunal 2015-16 299 2.00
Gujarat Sales Tax Act,|sales tax Deputy commissioner of Sales|  1998-99 0.22 0.12
1970 Tax (Appeals), Ahmedabad
Gujarat Sales Tax Act,|sales tax Sales tax appellate Tribunal,| 1999-2000 0.12 0.12
1970 Ahmedabad
Bihar Sales Tax Act, 1981 | sales tax Joint  Commissioner of| 2001-02 0.82 0.62
Commercial Taxes (Appeals),
Patna
Tamil Nadu, Sales Tax Act, | sales tax Assistant  Commissioner|  2002-03 0.26 0.26
1959 (Appeals), Commercial Taxes,
Chennai
Delhi Sales Tax Act, 1975 | sales tax Additional commissioner,| 2003-04 0.95 0.95
Commercial Taxes, Delhi
Central Sales Tax Act,| Central sales| Additional commissioner,| 2004-05 2.03 1.63
1956 tax Commercial Taxes, Delhi
Central Sales Tax Act,| Central sales| Superintendent of Taxes,| 2009-10 0.36 0.36
1956 tax Guwahati
Andhra Pradesh General| sales tax Sales tax appellate Tribunal,| 1997-98 2.16 0.10
Sales Tax Act, 1956 Hyderabad
West Bengal Sales Tax Act, | sales tax Sales tax appellate Tribunal,| 2001-02 0.72 0.72
1994 Kolkata
West Bengal Value Added| Value added| Appellate & Revisional Board,| 2009-10 4.39 4.39
Tax Act, 2003 fax West Bengal
Uttar Pradesh Value| Value added| Deputy Commissioner 2014-15 0.12 0.10
Added Tax Act, 2008 tax Appeals, Ghaziabad
Uttrakhand Value Added| Value added| Joint Commissioner 2012-13 0.57 0.46

There are no dues of Service Tax as on March 31, 2020 on account of disputes.
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(viii) In our opinion and according to the information
and explanations given to us, the Company has
not defaulted in the repayment of loan to bank.
The Company has not taken any loans or
borrowings from financial institutions and
Government and has not issued any debentures.

(ixX) In our opinion and according to the information
and explanations given to us, the term loan taken
has been applied by the Company during the
year for the purposes for which it was taken. The
Company has not raised moneys by way of initial
public offer or further public offer (including debt
instruments).

) To the best of our knowledge and according to
the information and explanations given to us, no
fraud by the Company and no fraud on the
Company by its officers or employees has been
noticed or reported during the year.

(i) In our opinion and according to the information
and explanations given to us, the Company has
paid / provided managerial remuneration in
accordance with the requisite approvals
mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read
with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013.

i) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence
reporting under clause (xii) of the Order is not
applicable.

iy In our opinion and according to the information
and explanations given to us, the Company is in
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compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013, where applicable, for all
fransactions with the related parties and the
details of related party transactions have been
disclosed in the financial statements as required
by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv)During the year the Company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or fully or partly convertible debentures and
hence reporting under clause (xiv) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

(xv) In our opinion and according to the information
and explanations given to us, during the year the
Company has not entered into any non-cash
fransactions with its directors or persons connected
with them and hence provisions of Section 192 of
the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable.

(xvi) The Company is not required to be registered
under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934,

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration Number: 17366W/W- 100018)

Sumit Trivedi

Partner

Membership No. 209354
UDIN: 20209354AAAAFQ8272

Place: Secunderabad
Date: May 28, 2020



Agro Tech Foods Limited

BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2020

(Al amounts are in ¥ millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)
Notes As at As at

Particulars March 31,2020 March 31, 2019
I Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 4 1,626.21 1,500.54
Capital work-in-progress 4 549.93 119.88
Right of use assets 5 221.16 -
Intfangible assets 6 191.82 213.93
Financial assets
() Investments 7 185.22 168.34
(iiy Other financial assets 8 24.04 27.70
Other non-current assets 9 268.06 366.41
Total non-current assets 3,066.44 2,396.80
Current assets
Inventories 10 774.69 837.85
Financial assets
() Investments 11 139.24 350.66
(i) Trade receivables 12 747.04 808.86
(iiiy Cash and cash equivalents 13 (0) 29.51 32.35
(iv) Bank balances other than (i) above 13 (b) 4.24 4.32
(v) Other financial assets 14 121.68 145.26
Other current assets 15 227.59 155.09
Total current assets 2,043.99 2,334.39
Total assets 5,110.43 4,731.19
Il Equity and liabilities
Equity
Equity share capital 16 243.69 243.69
Other equity 17 3,831.60 3,514.08
Total equity 4,075.29 3.757.77
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
() Borrowings 18 37.60 -
(i) Lease liabilities 19 144.59 -
Provisions 20 15.73 13.52
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 34 91.94 131.73
Total non-current liabilities 289.86 145.25
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Trade payables 21
- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 64.40 44,38
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 484.50 643.65
(ii) Lease liabilities 22 16.86 -
(iiiy Other financial liabilities 23 90.72 51.31
Other current liabilities 24 51.66 35.09
Provisions 25 37.14 53.74
Total current liabilities 745.28 828.17
Total equity and liabilities 5,110.43 4,731.19
The accompanying notes 110 50 are an integral part of the standalone financial statements.
In terms of our report attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants Sachin GOpGl Lt.Gen.D.B. Singh
F.R.N: 117366W/W-100018 Managing Director & CEO Director
Sumit Trivedi DIN 07439079 DIN 00239637
Partner K P N Srinivas Jyoti Chawla
Membership No.209354 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Place: Secunderabad Place: Gurugram
Date: May 28, 2020 Date: May 28, 2020
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

(Al amounts are in ¥ millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

Particulars Notes For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
| Revenue from operations
Sale of products 26 8,343.63 8,230.56
Other operating revenues 7.18 4.78
8,350.81 8,235.34
Il Otherincome 27 33.95 37.77
Il Total income (I+11) 8,384.76 8,273.11
IV Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 28 4,306.59 4,195.15
Purchases of stock-in-trade 29 1,324.65 1,426.25
Changes in inventories of finished goods and stock-in-trade 30 77.33 (1.31)
Employee benefit expense 31 436.26 456.57
Finance costs 32 17.68 0.94
Depreciation and amortisation expense 4,5,6 188.35 167.73
Ofther expenses 33 1,624.76 1.5612.78
Total expenses 7,975.62 7,758.11
V  Profit before exceptional items and tax (llI-1V) 409.14 5156.00
VI Exceptional items 38 - -
VIl Profit before tax (V-VI) 409.14 5156.00
VIl Tax expense 34 (a)
Current tax 109.72 181.47
Deferred tax (39.79) (5.54)
Total tax expense 69.93 175.93
IX Profit for the year (VII-VIII) 339.21 339.07
X  Other comprehensive income/ (loss)
[fems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(i) Remeasurement of the net defined benefit plans (4.09) 0.76)
(ii) Income-tax relating to above 34 (b) 1.03 0.26
Total other comprehensive income/ (loss) (3.06) (0.50)
Xl Total comprehensive income for the year (IX+X) 336.15 338.57
Earnings per share (of 2 10 each) 40
Basic (in) 14.38 14.49
Diluted (in %) 14.38 14.47

The accompanying notes 1 to 50 are an integral part of the standalone financial statements.

In tferms of our report attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants

F.R.N: 117366W/W-100018 Sachin Gopal Lt.Gen.D.B. Singh
Managing Director & CEO Director

Sumit Trivedi DIN 07439079 DIN 00239637

Partner K P N Srinivas Jyoti Chawla

Membership No.209354 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place: Secunderabad Place: Gurugram

Date: May 28, 2020 Date: May 28, 2020
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Agro Tech Foods Limited

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

(Al amounts are in ¥ millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

Particulars

For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2020

March 31, 2019

A. Cash flow from operating activities

Profit before tax

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Loss on sale/ retirement of property, plant and equipment (net)
Gain on disposal of investments in mutual funds units

Fair value gain on financial assets mandatorily measured at
fair value through profit and loss

Interest income

Finance costs

Employee share based payment expenses

Provision for doubtful debts

Operating profit before working capital changes
Movement in working capital

Adjustments for (increase) / decrease in operating assets
Trade receivables

Inventories

Other financial assets

Other assets

Adjustments for increase / (decrease) in operating liabilities
Trade payables and other financial liabilities

Provisions

Other liabilities

Cash generated from operations

Income taxes paid (net)

Net cash generated from operating activities (A)

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Interest received

Investments in subsidiary

Purchase of current investments in mutual funds
Proceeds from sale of investments in mutual funds

Bank balances not considered as cash and cash equivalents (net)
Net cash (used in) investing activities (B)
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409.14 515.00
188.35 167.73
1.49 1.89
(31.80) (27.53)
(0.24) (0.66)
(1.91) (9.58)
17.68 0.94
(13.22) 4.80
0.55 4.96
570.04 657.55
61.27 (314.46)
63.16 104.25
29.03 97.34
(42.61) (16.96)
(124.34) (0.68)
(20.01) (12.45)
21.82 (1.89)
558.36 512.70
(118.17) (188.67)
440.19 324.03
(678.00) (282.89)
2.49 9.64
0.12 11.78
(16.88) (8.38)
(3,620.50) (3,839.10)
3,863.96 3,516.63
- 217.53
(448.81) (374.79)



Agro Tech Foods Limited

CASH FLOW STATEMENT (Continued)

(Al amounts are in ¥ millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

For the year ended For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

C. Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from term loans availed from bank 47.00 -
Proceeds from sale of treasury shares 65.88 84.65
Dividend paid (including dividend distribution tax) (71.29) (70.75)
Finance costs (including in relation to lease liability) (20.97) (0.94)
Repayment of lease liability (14.84) -
Net cash generated from financing activities (C) 5.78 12.96
Net (decrease)/ increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (2.84) (37.80)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year 32.35 70.15
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year (Refer Note 13 (a)) 29.51 32.35

Notes:

1. The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" as set out in Ind AS - 7
"Statement of Cash Flows".

2. Reconciliation of liabilities from financing activities

As at Proceeds Non cash As at
March 31, 2019 changes March 31, 2020
Current / Non
current
Borrowings - Non current - 47.00 (9.40) 37.60
Other financial liabilities - - 9.40 9.40

The accompanying notes 1 to 50 are an integral part of the standalone financial statements.

In ferms of our report attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants

F.R.N: 117366W/W-100018 Sachin Gopal Lt.Gen.D.B. Singh
Managing Director & CEO Director

Sumit Trivedi DIN 07439079 DIN 00239637

Partner K P N Srinivas Jyoti Chawla

Membership No.209354 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place: Secunderabad Place: Gurugram

Date: May 28, 2020 Date: May 28, 2020
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Agro Tech Foods Limited

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Al amounts are in ¥ millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

1

Corporate Information

Agro Tech Foods Limited (the 'Company') is a
Company domiciled in India, with its registered
office situated at 31, Sarojini Devi Road,
Secunderabad, Telangana - 500 003, India. The
Company has been incorporated under the
provisions of Indian Companies Act and its equity
shares are listed on the National Stock Exchange
(NSE) and Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) in India.
The Company is primarily engaged in the business
of manufacturing and trading of edible oils and
food products.

Basis of preparation
Statement of compliance

The standalone financial statements of the
Company have been prepared in accordance
with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified
under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013 (the
'Act) read together with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended)
and other relevant provisions of the Act. The
financial statements have also been prepared in
accordance with the relevant presentation
requirments of the Act.

Functional and presentation currency

These standalone financial statements are
presented in Indian Rupees (%), which is also the
Company's functional currency. Allamounts have
been rounded-off to two decimal places to the
nearest millions, unless otherwise indicated.

Basis of prepratation and presentation

These financial statements have been prepared
on historical cost convention and on an accrual
basis except for certain financial instruments that
are measured at fair values at the end of each
reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value
of the consideration given in exchange for goods
and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to fransfer a liability in an
orderly fransaction between market participants
at the measurement date, regardless of whether
that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair
value of an asset or liability, the Company takes
into account the characteristics of the asset or
liability if market participants would take those
characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date.
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D. Operating Cycle

All assets have been classified as current or non-
current as per the Company’s normal operating
cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule Il
to the Act and Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial
Statements, based on the nature of the products
and the fime between the acquisition of assets
for processing and their realization in cash and
cash equivalents.

Use of estimates and judgements

In preparing these standalone financial
statements, management has made judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of accounting policies and the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses. Actual results may differ from these
estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised
prospectively.

The following are the critical judgements and
estimates that have been made in the process of
applying the Company's accounting policies that
have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the standalone financial statements.

i) Useful lives of Property, plant and equipment

The charge in respect of periodic depreciation is
derived after determining an estimate of an asset's
expected useful life and expected residual value
at the end of its life. The useful lives and residual
values of Company's assets are determined by
Management at the time the asset is acquired and
is reviewed at the end of each reporting
period. The lives are based on historical
experience with similar assets as well as
anticipation of future events, which may impact
their life, such as changes in technology. This
reassessment may result in change in depreciation
expense in future periods.

ii) Acturial valuation

The determination of Company's liability fowards
defined benefit obligation to employees is made
through independent actuarial valuation
including determination of amounts fo be
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss and
in other comprehensive income. Such valuation
depend upon assumptions determined after
taking into account inflation, seniority, promotion
and other relevant factors. Information about such
valuation is provided in the notes to the financial
statements.



Agro Tech Foods Limited

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(Al amounts are in ¥ millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

iii) Impairment of intangible assets having
indefinite useful life

Intangible assets with indefinite life are tested for
impairment on an annual basis and whenever
there is an indication that the recoverable amount
of a cash generating unit is less than its carrying
amount based on a number of factors including
operating results, business plans, future cash flows
and economic conditions. The recoverable
amount of cash generating units is determined
based on higher of value-in-use and fair value less
cost to sell.

Market related information and estimates are used
to determine the recoverable amount. Key
assumptions on which management has based
its determination of recoverable amount include
estimated long term growth rates, weighted
average cost of capital and estimated operating
margins. Cash flow projections take info account
past experience and represent management’s
best estimate about future developments.

iv) Fair value measurement of financial instruments

Some of the Company’s assets and liabilities are
measured at fair value for financial reporting
purposes. In estimating the fair value of an asset
or liability, the Company uses market-observable
datato the extent available. Where Level 1 inputs
are not available, the fair value is measured using
valuation techniques, including the discounted
cash flow model, which involves various judgments
and assumptions. The Company also engages
third party qualified valuers to perform the
valuation in certain cases. The appropriateness of
valuation technigues and inputs to the valuation
model are reviewed by the Management.

Further information about the assumptions made
in measuring fair values is included in the following
notes:

- Note 16 (e) - Share based payments;

- Note 47 - Financial instruments.

v) Income Taxes

The Company’s tax jurisdiction is India. Significant
judgments are involved in estimating budgeted
profits for the purpose of paying advance tax,
determining the provision for income taxes,
including amount expected to be paid /
recovered for uncertain tax positions.

vi) Other estimates

The preparation of financial statements involves
estimates and assumptions that affect the
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3.

reported amount of assets, liabilities, disclosure of
contingent liabilities at the date of financial
statements and the reported amount of revenues
and expenses for the reporting period.

Specifically, the Company estimates the
probability of collection of accounts receivable
by analysing historical payment patterns,
customer concentrations, customer credit-
worthiness and current economic trends. If the
financial condition of a customer deteriorates,
additional allowances may be required.

vii) Estimation uncertainty relating to COVID-19
outbreak:

The Company has considered internal and certain
external sources of information up to the date of
approval of the financial statements in
determining the impact on various elements of its
financial statements. The Company has used the
principles of prudence in applying judgments,
estimates and assumptions including sensitivity
analysis and based on the current estimates, the
Company expects to fully recover the carrying
amount of frade receivables intangible assets,
investments and inventories. The eventual
outcome of impact of the global health pandemic
may be different from those estimated as on the
date of approval of these financial statements.

Significant accounting policies

(a) Property, plant and equipment

i. Recognition and measurement

Iltems of property, plant and equipment, are
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
includes its purchase price, duties, taxes (other
than those subsequently recoverable from the tax
authorities), affer deducting frade discounts and
rebates, any directly attributable cost of bringing
the item to its infended use, including relevant
borrowing costs for qualifying assets and any
expected costs of decommissioning.

The cost of a self-constructed item of property,
plant and equipment comprises the cost of
materials, direct labour and any other costs
directly attributable to bringing the item to its
infended working condition and estimated costs
of dismantling, removing and restoring the site on
which it is located, wherever applicable.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant
and equipment have different useful lives, then
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they are accounted for as separate items (major
components) of property, plant and equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property,
plant and equipment is recognised in the
statement of profit and loss.

ii. Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is
probable that the future economic benefits
associated with the expenditure will flow to the
Company.

iii. Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated on cost of items of
property, plant and equipment less their estimated
residual value using straight line method over the
useful life of assets estimated by internal
assessment and technical valuation carried out

wherever necessary, and is recognised in the
statement of profit and loss. Depreciation for assets

purchased/
proportionately charged.

The range of estimated useful lives of items of

sold during the period

property, plant and equipment are as follows:

is

Nature of Assets Useful Life
Buildings

Buildings (other than factory buildings)

other than RCC frame sfructure 30 years
Factory buildings 30 years
Fences, wells, tube-wells 5years
Roads

Carpeted Roads - RCC 10 years
Plant and Machinery

Plant and Machinery other than continuous 156 years
process plant

Furniture and fittings 10 years
Motor vehicles

Motor buses, motor lorries and motor cars* 5years
Office equipment 5years
Computers and data processing units servers Syears
and networks*

End-user devices such as desktops, laptops efc.* 2to 4 years
Laboratory Equipment 10 years
Electrical installations and equipment 10 years
Servers and networks* 5years
Handsets* 2 years
Assets given to employees under a scheme* 5years

*The Company believes the useful lives as given
above best represent the useful life of these assets
based on internal assessment and technical
evaluation carried out where necessary, which is
different from the useful lives as prescribed under
Part C of Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013.
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Freehold land is not depreciated.

Leasehold improvements are amortised over a
period of the lease or useful life of asset whichever
is lower.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of
depreciation of property, plant and equipment
are reviewed at each financial year-end and
adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

(b) Intangible assets

Intfangible assets that the Company controls and
from which it expects future economic benefits
are capitalised upon acquisition and measured
initially for separately acquired assets, at cost
comyprising of the purchase price (including import
duties and non-refundable taxes) and directly
attributable costs to prepare the assets for its
intended use. The useful life of an intangible asset
is considered finite where there is a likelihood of

technical and fechnological obsolescence.
Useful life and Amortisation

Amortisation of intangible assets having finite useful
lives is recognised on a straight-line basis over the
useful lives of the asset from the date of
capitalisation as below:

Asset Useful life
Computer software 51to 10 years

The estimated useful life is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and the effect of any
changes in estimate is accounted for
prospectively.

Infangible assets that have an indefinite useful life
are not subjected to amortisation and are tested
for impairment annually or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that
it might be impaired.

(c) Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an
indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation
and are tested annually for impairment, or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that they might be impaired. Other assets
are tested for impairment whenever events or

changes in circumstances indicate that their
carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the
purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable
amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost
to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an
individual asset basis unless the asset does not
generate cash flows that are largely independent



Agro Tech Foods Limited

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(Al amounts are in ¥ millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

of those from other assets. In such cases, the
recoverable amount is determined for the CGU
to which the asset belongs. If such assets are
considered to be impaired, the impairment to be
recognised in the statement of profit and loss is
measured by the amount by which the carrying
value of the assets exceeds the estimated
recoverable amount of the asset. An impairment
loss is reversed in the statement of profit and loss if
there has been a change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount. The
carrying amount of the asset is increased to its
revised recoverable amount, provided that this
amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of any
accumulated amortisation or depreciation) had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years.

(d) Leases

The Company assesses whether a contract
contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. To assess whether a contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset, the Company assesses whether, (i) the
confract involves the use of an identified asset (i)
the Company has substantially all of the economic
benefits from use of the asset through the period
of the lease and (i) the Company has the right to
direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the
Company recognizes a right-of-use asset ("ROU")
and a corresponding lease liability for all lease
arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for
leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-
term leases) and low value leases. For these short-
term and low value leases, the Company
recognizes the lease payments as an operating
expense on a straight-line basis over the term of
the lease. Certain lease arrangements includes
the options to extend or terminate the lease
before the end of the lease term. ROU assets and
lease liabilities includes these options when it is
reasonably certain that they will be exercised.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at
cost, which comprises the initial amount of the
lease liability adjusted for any lease payments
made at or prior to the commencement date of
the lease plus any inifial direct costs less any lease
incentives. They are subsequently measured
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at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the
commencement date on a straight-line basis over
the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the
underlying asset. Right of use assets are evaluated
for recoverability whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that their carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose
of impairment testing, the recoverable amount
(i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and
the value-in-use) is determined on an individual
asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash
flows that are largely independent of those from
other assets. In such cases, the recoverable
amount is determined for the Cash Generating
Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized
cost at the present value of the future lease
payments. The lease payments are discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not
readily determinable, using the incremental
borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these
leases. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a
corresponding adjustment to the related right of
use asset if the Company changes its assessment
if whether it will exercise an extension or a
termination option.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately
presented in the Balance Sheet and lease
payments have been classified as financing cash
flows.

(e) Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of weighted
average cost (including prime cost, non
recoverable taxes / duties and other overheads
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition) and estimated net
realisable value, after providing for obsolescence,
where appropriate. The comparison of cost and
net realisable value is made on an item-by-item
basis. The net realisable value of materials in
process is determined with reference to the selling
prices of related finished goods. Raw materials,
packing materials and other supplies held for use
in production of inventories are not written down
below cost except in cases where material prices
have declined, and it is estimated that the cost of
the finished products will exceed their net
realisable value. The provision for inventory
obsolescence is assessed regularly based on
estimated usage and shelf life of products.
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®

Raw materials, packing materials and stores and
spares are valued at cost computed on moving
weighted average basis. The cost includes
purchase price, inward freight and other
incidental expenses net of refundable duties,
levies and taxes, where applicable.

Work-in-progress is valued at input material cost
plus conversion cost as applicable.

Stock-in-trade is valued at the lower of net
redlisable value and cost (including prime cost
and other overheads incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and
condition), computed on a moving weighted
average basis.

Finished goods are valued at lower of net
realisable value and cost (including prime cost,
duties and other overheads incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and
condition).

Goods-in-fransit/ with third parties and at
godowns are valued at cost which represents the
costs incurred upto the stage at which the goods
are in transit with third parties and at godowns.

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in Subsidiaries are carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Where an
indication of impairment exists, the carrying
amount of the investment is assessed and written
down immediately to its recoverable amount.

(g9) Financial instruments

i. Recognition and inifial measurement

The Company initially recognises financial assets
and financial liabilities when it becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All
financial assets and liabilities are measured at fair
value on initial recognition. Transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition orissue
of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair
value through Statement of Profit and Loss (FVTPL))
are added to or deducted from the fair value of
the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit and loss are recognised
immediately in Statement of Profit and Loss.
Regular way purchase and sale of financial assets
are accounted for at frade date.
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ii. Classification and subsequent measurement
Financial assets
Financial assets carried at amortised cost

A financial asset is subsequently measured at
amortised cost if it is held within a business model
whose objective is to hold the asset in order to
collect contractual cash flows and the contractual
terms of the financial asset give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income

A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income if it is
held within a business model whose objective is
achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets. Such assets are
subsequently measured at fair value, with
unrealised gains and losses arising from changes
in the fair value being recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

A financial asset which is not classified in any of
the above categories are subsequently fair valued
through profit or loss. Financial assets at FVTPL are
measured at fair value at the end of each
reporting period, with any gains and losses arising
on remeasurement recognised in Statement of
Profit or Loss. The net gain or loss recognised in
statement of profit or loss incorporates any
dividend or interest earned on the financial asset
and is included in the “other income’ line item.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value,
with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement
recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. The net
gain or loss recognised in Statement of Profit and
Loss incorporates any interest paid on the financial
liability and is included in the ‘other gains and
losses’ line item in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Other financial liabilities are subsequently carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

iii. Derecognition

Financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset

when the contfractual rights to the cash flows from
the asset expire, or when it fransfers the financial
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(h)

asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another party.

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognises a financial liability
when its confractual obligations are discharged
or cancelled, or expire.

The Company also derecognises a financial
liability when its terms are modified and the cash
flows under the modified terms are substantially
different. In this case, a new financial liability based
on the modified terms is recognised at fair value.
The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability extinguished and a new
financial liability with modified terms is recognised
in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

iv. Impairment

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company
applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss.
The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for
recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade
receivables. The application of simplified
approach does not require the Company to frack
changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises
impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs
at each reporting date, right from its initial
recognition. For recognition of impairment loss on
other financial assets and risk exposure, the
Company determines that whether there has
been a significant increase in the credit risk since
initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased
significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for
impairment loss. However, if credit risk has
increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If in
subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument
improves such that there is no longer a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then
the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss
allowance based on 12 month ECL.

v. Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset
and the net amount is presented in the balance
sheet when, and only when, the Company
currently has a legally enforceable right to set off
the amounts and it intends either to settle them
on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when
control of the products being sold is fransferred to
the customer, which is mainly upon delivery and
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when there are no longer any unfulfilled
obligations.

Revenue is measured at fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, after
deducting any frade discounts, volume rebates
and any taxes or duties collected on behalf of the
government such as goods and services tax, etc.
Returns, discounts, allowances and rebates are
estimated using judgement based on historical
experience and the specific terms of the
arrangement with the customers.

Otherincome:

Interest income is recognized using the effective
interest rate (EIR) method. Dividend income on
investments is recognised when the right to receive
dividend is established.

The "effective interest rate" is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments or
receipts through the expected life of the financial
instrument to:

a. the gross carrying amount of financial asset; or
b. the amortised cost of financial liability
Foreign currency transactions and translations

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially
recorded by the Company at their functional
currency spot rates at the date the transaction.
The date of transaction for the purpose of
determining the exchange rate on initial
recognition of the related asset, expense or
income (part of it) is the date on which the entity
initially recognises the non-monetary asset or non-
monetary liability arising from payment or receipt
of advance consideration. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currency are
translated at the functional currency spot rates of
exchange at the reporfting date. Exchange
differences that arise on seftlement of monetary
items or on reporting at each balance sheet date
of the Company’s monetary items at the closing
rates are recognised asincome or expenses in the
period in which they arise. Non-monetary items
which are carried at historical cost denominated
in a foreign currency are reported using the
exchange rates at the date of transaction. Non-
monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates
at the date when the fair value is determined.

Income-tax

Income-tax comprises current and deferred tax.
It is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
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except to the extent that it relates to an item
recognised directly in equity or in other
comprehensive income.

i. Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable
or receivable on the taxable income or loss for
the year and any adjustment to the tax payable
or receivable in respect of previous years. The
amount of current tax reflects the best estimate
of the tax amount expected to be paid or
received affer considering the uncertainty, if any
related to income taxes. It is measured using tax
rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively
enacted by the reporting date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are
offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to
set-off the recognised amounts, and it is intended
to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net
basis or simultaneously.

ii. Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in the financial statements and
the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a
tfransaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax assets recognised or unrecognised
are reviewed at each reporting date and are
recognised / reduced to the extent that it is
probable / no longer probable respectively that
the related tax benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based on the
laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the reporting date.
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(k)

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner
in which the Company expects, at the reporting
date, to recover or seftle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
liabilities and assets, and the relate to income tax
levied by the same ftax authority on the same
taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they
intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on
a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be
realised simultaneously.

Provisions and contingent liabilities
i. General

Provisions are recognised when the Company has
a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that the
Company will be required to settle the obligation
and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation. When the Company
expects some or all of a provision to e reimbursed,
the expense relating to a provision is presented in
the Statement of Profit and Loss net of any
reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is materiadl,
provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax
rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks
specific to the liability. When discounting is used,
the increase in the provision due to the passage
of time is recognised as a finance cost.

ii. Contingent liabilities

A disclosure for contingent liabilities is made where
there is a possible obligation or a present
obligation that may probably not require an
outflow of resources. When there is a possible or a
present obligation where the likelihood of outflow
of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is
made.

iii. Onerous Contracts

Provision for onerous contractsi.e. contracts where
the expected unavoidable cost of meeting the
obligations under the contract exceed the
economic benefits expected to be received
under it, are recognised when it is probable that
an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be recognised to settle a present
obligation as aresult of an obligating event based
on the reliable estimate of such an obligation.
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() Employee benefits

i. Short-term employee benefits

All employee benefits falling due wholly within
twelve months of rendering the services are
classified as short-term employee benefits, which
include benefits like salaries, wages, short-term
compensated absences and performance
incentives and are recognised as expenses in the
period in which the employee renders the related
service.

ii. Post-employment benefits
Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment
benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed
contributions intfo a separate entity and will have
no legal or constructive obligation to pay further
amounts. Obligations for contributions o defined
conftribution plans are recognised as an employee
benefit expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss
in the periods during which the related services
are rendered by employees.

Defined benefit plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment
benefit plan other than a defined contribution
plan. The Company’s net obligation in respect of
defined benefit plans is calculated separately for
each plan by estimating the amount of future
benefit that employees have earned in the current
and prior periods, discounting that amount and
deducting the fair value of any plan assets.

The calculation of defined benefit obligation is
performed annually by a qualified actuary using
the projected unit credit method. When the
calculation results in a potential asset for the
Company, the recognised asset is limited to the
present value of economic benefits available in
the form of any future refunds from the plan or
reductions in future contributions to the plan (‘the
asset ceiling”). In order to calculate the present
value of economic benefits, consideration is given
to any minimum funding requirements.

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit
liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses,
the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and
the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding
interest), are recognised in OCI. The Company
determines the net interest expense (income) on
the net defined benefit liability (asset) for the
period by applying the discount rate used to
measure the defined benefit obligation at the
beginning of the annual period to the then-net

89

defined benefit liability (asset), faking into account
any changes in the net defined benefit liability
(asset) during the period as aresult of contributions
and benefit payments. Net interest expense and
other expenses related to defined benefit plans
are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when
a planis curtailed, the resulting change in benefit
that relates to past service (‘past service cost’ or
‘past service gain’) or the gain or loss on
curtailment is recognised immediately in the
Statement of Profit and Loss. The Company
recognises gains and losses on the settlement of
a defined benefit plan when the settlement
OCcCurs.

iii. Other long-term employee benefits

All employee benefits (other than post-
employment benefits and termination benefits)
which do not fall due wholly within fwelve months
afterthe end of the period in which the employees
render the related services are determined based
on actuarial valuation or discounted present value
method carried out at each balance sheet date.
The expected cost of accumulating
compensated absences is defermined by
actuarial valuation performed by an independent
actuary as at 31st March every year using
projected unit credit method on the additional
amount expected to be paid / availed as a result
of the unused entitlement that has accumulated
at the balance sheet date. Expense on non-
accumulating compensated absences is
recognised in the period in which the absences
occur.

iv. Voluntary retirement scheme benefits

Voluntary retirement scheme benefits are
recognised as an expense in the year they are
incurred.

(m) Share-based payments

Employees of the Company receive remuneration
in the form of share-based payments in
consideration of the services rendered. Under the
equity settled share based payment, the fair value
on the grant date of the awards™ given to
employees is recognised as ‘employee benefit
expenses’ with a corresponding increase in equity
over the vesting period. The fair value of the
options at the grant date is calculated by an
independent valuer basis Black Scholes model. At
the end of each reporting period, apart from the
non-market vesting condition, the expense is
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reviewed and adjusted to reflect changes to the
level of options expected to vest. The Company
has availed exemption given under Ind AS 101 and
has not applied the fair value to the equity
instruments that were vested before the date of
fransition to Ind ASi.e. 1 April 2016.

(n) Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement
of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include
cash on hand, in banks, demand deposit with
bank and other short-term, highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months
or less, that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of change in value, and bank
overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within
borrowings under current liabilities as on Balance
Sheet date.

(o) Earnings per share

Basic Earnings Per Share ('EPS") is computed by
dividing the net profit attributable to the equity
shareholders by the weighted average number
of equity shares outfstanding during the year. The
weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year is adjusted for tfreasury
shares. Diluted earnings per share is computed by
dividing the net profit by the weighted average
number of equity shares considered for deriving
basic earnings per share and also the weighted
average number of equity shares that could have
been issued upon conversion of all dilutive
potential equity shares. Dilutive potential equity
shares are deemed converted as of the beginning
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of the year, unless issued at a later date. In
computing diluted earnings per share, only
potential equity shares that are dilutive and that
either reduces earnings per share or increases loss
per share are included. The number of shares and
potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted
retrospectively for all periods presented for the
share splits.

(p) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other
ancillary costs that the Company incurs in
connection with the borrowing of funds. The
borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition or construction of any asset that takes
a substantial period of time to get ready for itfs
infended use or sale are capitalised. All the other
borrowing costs are recognised in the Statement
of Profit and Loss within finance costs of the period
in which they are incurred.

(q) Treasury Shares

The Company has created an Employee Welfare
Trust - Agro Tech ESOP Trust (CATET") for
implementation of the schemes that are notified
or may be notified from time to time by the
Company under the plan, providing share based
payment to its employees. ATET purchases shares
of the Company out of funds borrowed from the
Company. The Company treats ATET as its
extension and shares held by ATET are treated as
freasury shares. Own equity instruments (treasury
shares) are recognised at cost and deducted from
equity. Profit on sale of tfreasury shares by ATET s
recognised in ATET reserve.
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Agro Tech Foods Limited

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(Al amounts are in ¥ millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)
Note 7 - Non-current investments

barticul As at As at
articulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Unquoted investments (fully paid)
Investment in equity instruments of subsidiaries (at cost unless otherwise stated)

Sundrop Foods India Private Limited 20.00 20.00
2,000,000 (March 31, 2019: 2,000,000) of %10 each

Agro Tech Foods (Bangladesh) Pvt. Ltd* 141.27 124.39
17.979.541 (March 31, 2019: 16,000,000) of BDT 10 each

Sundrop Foods Lanka (Private) Limited 23.95 23.95
5,000,000 (March 31, 2019: 5,000,000) of LKR 10 each

Total 185.22 168.34
Aggregate carrying value of unquoted investments 185.22 168.34

*Includes share application money pending for allotment % Nil (March 31, 2019: ¥ 8.38) towards Nil equity
shares (March 31, 2019: 1,000,000 equity shares) of BDT 10 each.

Note

Owing to the decline in the networth of the wholly owned subsidiary Agro Tech Foods (Bangladesh) Pvt. Ltd
('ATBD"), the Company has ftested its investment in ATBD for impairment during the year. ATBD’s operations of
manufacture of instant popcorn (IPC) has been allocated to the IPC CGU of the Company, Accordingly, the
valuation has been carried out for the IPC CGU. The following key assumptions were considered while per-
forming impairment testing:

Instant
popcorn
Annual Growth rate for é years 15%
Terminal Growth Rate 10%
Weighted average cost of capital (WACC") before tax (Discount rate) 21.40%

The projections cover a period of six years, as the Company believes this to be the most appropriate time
scale over which to review and consider annual performances before applying a fixed terminal value multiple
to the final year cash flows. The growth rates used to estimate future performance are based on the estimates
from past performance. Weighted Average Cost of Capital % (WACC) = Risk free return + (Market risk premium
x Beta for the Company).

The Company has performed sensitivity analysis around the base assumptions and has concluded that no
reasonable change in key assumptions would result in the recoverable amount of the IPC CGU to be less
than the carrying value.
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Agro Tech Foods Limited

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(Al amounts are in T millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

Particulars

As at

As af

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Note 8 -Other non current financials assets
Security deposits :

Unsecured, considered good

Unsecured, considered doubftful

Less: Allowance for doubtful deposits

Total

Note 9 - Other non-current assets

Capital advances

Advances other than capital advances :

Advances with Government, public bodies and others
Other advances (includes commercial advances and prepaid expenses)
Prepaid rent

Income-tax assets (net)

Considered doubftful:

Advances with Government and public bodies

Other advances

Less: Allowance for doubtful advances

Total

Note 10 - Inventories

Raw materials

Raw materials - in- transit
Packing materials

Packing materials - in- fransit
Finished goods

Finished goods - in- fransit
Stock-in-trade

Total

Notes:

24.04
0.56
(0.56)

24.04

86.48

72.38
14.09

95.11

6.12
34.32
(40.44)

_268.06

359.79
9.21
94.12
10.82
271.27
24.47
5.01

774.69

27.70
0.56
(0.56)

27.70

88.28

99.46
17.59
71.73
89.35

6.12
22.62
(28.74)

366.41

352.81
12.39
86.94

7.63

346.30

27.09
4.69

837.85

() The consumption of inventories recognised as an expense during the year has been disclosed in Notes

28,29,30 and 33.

(i) The consumption of inventories recognised as an expense includes % Nil (during 2018-19:% 0.30) in respect
of write-downs of inventory to net realisable value, and has been reduced by Nil (during 2018-19: I Nil) in

respect of reversal of such write-downs.
(i) Refer note 3(e) for method of valuation for inventories.
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Agro Tech Foods Limited

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (contfinued)
(Al amounts are in T millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

Particul As at As at
arficulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Note 11 - Current investments

Investments mandatorily measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Quoted investments in mutual funds :

BNP Paribas Liquid Fund Direct Growth 26,174.429 units of % 3,0567.5713

each (March 31, 2019: 17,429.181 units of ¥ 2,872.6126 each) 80.03 50.07

JM Financial Liquid Fund - Direct Plan - Growth Option

Nil (March 31, 2019: 586,980.766 units of ¥ 51.1901 each) - 30.05

Reliance Low Duration Fund - Direct Growth Plan Nil

(March 31, 2019: 41,758.214 units of ¥ 2,640.3987 each) - 110.25

Reliance Money Market Fund - Direct Growth Plan

Nil (March 31, 2019: 28,238.437 units of ¥ 2,839.3181 each) - 80.18

Franklin India Ultra-Short Bond Fund-Super Institutional Plan-Direct Growth

Nil (March 31, 2019: 3,036,306.637 units of ¥ 26.3838 each) - 80.11

HDFC Liquid Fund-Direct Plan-Growth Option 12,807.929 units of

¥ 3,906.6111 each (March 31, 2019: Nil) 50.04 -

Baroda Liquid Fund - Plan B Growth 4,004.776 units of ¥ 2,289.2695

each (March 31, 2019: Nil) 9.17 -

Total 139.24 350.66

Aggregate book value of quoted investments - at cost 139.00 350.00

Aggregate market value of quoted investments 139.24 350.66

Note 12 - Trade receivables

Unsecured, considered good 747.04 808.86

Doubtful 55.64 56.25

Less: Allowance for doubftful receivable (55.64) (56.25)

Total 747.04 808.86

Notes:

(i) The average credit period for the customers is in the range of 7 days to 30 days depending on customer

Qgroups.

(i) Ofthe trade receivables balance X 467.62 (as at March 31, 2019 : ¥ 550.90) is due from one of the Company's
large customer. There are no other customers who represent more than 10% of the total balance of frade
receivables.

(i) The Company has used a practical expedient by computing the expected credit loss allowance for
doubftful trade receivables based on a provisioning matrix. The provision matrix takes into account histori-
cal credit loss experience and adjusted for forward-looking estimates. The expected credit loss allow-
ance is based on the ageing of the receivables which are due and the rates used in the provision matrix.

For the year ended For the year ended

(iv) Movement in the expected credit loss allowance March 31. 2020 March 31, 2019
Balance at the beginning of the year 56.25 51.29
Movement in expected credit loss allowance on trade receivables (net) (0.61) 4.96
Balance at the end of the year 55.64 56.25
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Agro Tech Foods Limited

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (contfinued)
(Al amounts are in T millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

Particulars As at As af
March 31,2020 March 31, 2019
Note 13 -Cash and bank balances
(a) Cash and cash equivalents:
Balances with banks - in current accounts 22.36 31.75
Cheques on hand 7.15 0.60
Total 2951 3235
(b) Other bank balances:
Balances held as margin money against guarantees given* 0.87 0.87
Unpaid dividend accounts 3.37 3.45
Total 424 432
*Includes deposit aggregating to % Nil (March 31, 2019: % Nil) with remaining
maturity of more than 12 months from the Balance Sheet date.
Note 14 - Other financial assets
Insurance claims receivable (Refer Note 38) 114.38 144.09
Others (Including security deposits, loan to employees and Interest accrued) 7.30 1.17
Total 121.68 145.26
Note 15 - Other current assets
Balances with government authorities 175.86 107.77
Advances (includes commercial advances, employee advances and prepaid expenses) 51.73 46.37
Prepaid rent - 0.69
Other receivables - 0.26
Unsecured, considered doubftful
Other advances - 11.70
Less: Provision for doubtful advances - (11.70)
Total ~227.59 ~155.09
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Agro Tech Foods Limited

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(Al amounts are in ¥ millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

Particul As at As af
articulars March 31,2020 March 31, 2019
Note 16 - Share capital
Authorised
Equity shares
25,000,000 ( March 31, 2019: 25,000,000), equity shares of ¥ 10 each 250.00 250.00
Preference shares
1,000,000 (March 31, 2019: 1,000,000), 100.00 100.00
cumulative redeemable preference shares of ¥ 100 each - -
__350.00 __350.00
Issued
Equity shares
24,372,139 (March 31, 2019: 24,372,139), equity shares of ¥ 10 each 243.72 243.72
243.72 243.72
Subscribed and fully paid-up
Equity shares fully paid
24,369,264 (March 31, 2019; 24,369,264),
equity shares of ¥ 10 each fully paid up 243.69 243.69
243.69 243.69

Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to the equity shares:

The Company has a single class of equity shares. Accordingly, all equity shares rank equally with regard to
dividends and share in the Company’s residual assets. The equity shares are entitled to receive dividend as
declared from time to time. The voting rights of an equity shareholder on a poll (not on show of hands) are
in proportion to their share of the paid-up equity capital of the Company. Voting rights cannot be exercised
in respect of shares on which any call or other sums presently payable have not been paid. Failure to pay
any amount called up on shares may lead to forfeiture of the shares. On winding up of the Company, the
holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive the residual assets of the company, remaining after distribution
of all preferential amounts in proportion to the numiber of equity shares held.

Notes:

(@) Shares in respect of equity in the Company held by its holding or ultimate holding company, including
shares held by subsidiaries or associates of the holding company or the ultimate holding company in

aggregate:
. As at As af
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Number Amountin  Number Amountin
of shares T millions of shares I millions
Holding Company
CAG Tech (Mauritius) Limited* 12,616,619 126.17 12,616,619 126.17

12,616,619 126.17 12,616,619 126.17

* CAG Tech (Mauritius) Limited is the Holding Company and is an indirect subsidiary of Conagra Brands Inc.
(formerly known as ConAgra Foods Inc.) (Ultimate Holding Company).
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Agro Tech Foods Limited

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(Al amounts are in ¥ millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

(b) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% of total number of equity shares:

] As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Number % Number %
of shares  holding of shares  holding
CAG Tech (Mauritius) Limited* 12,616,619 51.77 12,616,619 51.77
Pari Washington India Master Fund, Ltd. 1,902,565 7.81 1,615,325 6.63

* CAG Tech (Mauritius) Limited is the Holding Company and is an indirect subsidiary of Conagra Brands Inc.
(formerly known as ConAgra Foods Inc.) (Ultimate Holding Company).

(c) Reconciliation of the number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year:
As at As at

Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Number Amountin Number Amountin
of shares T millions of shares < millions

Balance af the beginning of the reporting year 24,369,264  243.69 24,369,264  243.69
Shares issued during the year - - - -
Balance at the end of the reporting year 24,369,264  243.69 24,369,264 243.69

(d)During the five previous financial years ended March 31, 2020, no shares have been bought back, issued
for consideration other than cash and no bonus shares have been issued.

(e) Share based payments

The Company instituted the "Agro Tech Employee Stock Option Plan' (Plan) to grant equity based incentives
to ifs eligible employees. The Company has established a frust called the Agro Tech ESOP Trust ("Trust") to
implement the Plan. The Company has given advance to the Trust for purchase of the Company’s shares
and such advance outstanding as at March 31, 2020 is % 333.11 (R 402.28 as at March 31, 2019).

Under the plan a maximum of 23,436,926 options will be granted to the eligible employees. All these options
are planned to be setftled in equity at the time of exercise at the option of the employee. These options have
an exercise price of ¥ 561.00, ¥ 597.55 and % 589.75 per share granted during the years ended March 31,
2014, March 31, 2015 and March 31, 2016 respectively and vests on a graded basis as follows:

Vesting period from the grant date Vesting schedule
On completion of 12 months 25%
On completion of 24 months 25%
On completion of 36 months 25%
On completion of 48 months 25%

Stock option activity under the plan was as follows:

Movement in the options under the scheme as below : For the year ended Forthe year ended

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Options outstanding at the beginning of the year 791,927 804,987
Options granted during the year - -
Options exercised during the year (5,750) 6.799)
Options forfeited during the year (63,304) (6.261)
Options outstanding at the end of the year 722,873 791,927

Fair value Measurement:

The fair value of the employee share based payment is determined using the Black Scholes model on the
date of grant. No new grants have been issued during the year ended March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019.
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Agro Tech Foods Limited

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(Al amounts are in ¥ millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

Particulars As at

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

As at

Note 17 - Other equity

(a) General reserve 147.21

This reserve is created by an appropriation from one component of equity
(generally retained earnings) to another, not being an item of Other
Comprehensive Income. The same can be utilised by the Company

in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

(b) Securities premium 721.29

This reserve represents the premium on issue of shares and can be utilised in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
(c) Retained earnings 3,167.39
Retained earnings represents the cumulative undistributed profits of the
Company and can be utilised in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013
(d) Share options outstanding amount 148.83
Share option outstanding account relates to the share options granted by
the Company to its employees under its employee share option plan.
These will be transferred to retained earnings after the exercise/
forfeiture of the underlying options.
(e) Treasury Shares (367.41)
Represents the outstanding number of shares, options which are yet to
be exercised by the employees to whom those share options have been granted
(f) Agro Tech ESOP Trust (ATET reserve) 14.29

Represents the profit/loss earned by the Agro Tech ESOP trust on exercise of
the share options and on disposal of forfeited shares options

145.75

721.29

2,002.53

163.51

(437.07)

18.07

Total 3,831.60

3,514.09

Note 18 -Non-current Borrowings
Secured - at amortised cost

- Term loan from bank 47.00
Less: Current maturities of long term borrowing disclosed under Note 23 -

Other financial liabilities - Current 9.40
Total 37.60

Term loan from bank is secured by first charge on all movable fixed assets (both present and future) of the
ongoing capital works in relation to a new plant at Chittoor, in respect of which loan was taken. The loan is
repayable in 20 equal quarterly installments after a moratorium of 9 months from the date of first disbursement.

The term loan carries an interest of 1 year Marginal cost of Funds based Lending Rate + 0.80% and is payable

on a monthly basis.
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Agro Tech Foods Limited

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(Al amounts are in ¥ millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

Particul As at As at
arficulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Note 19 - Non-current lease liabilities

Lease liabilities (Refer Note 36 ) 144.59 -

Total 144.59 -

Note 20 - Non-current provisions

Provision for employee benefits

- Compensated absences 15.73 13.52

Total 15.73 13.52

Note 21 - Trade payables

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (Refer Note (i) below) 64.40 44,38

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and

small enterprises (Refer Note (i) below) 484.50 643.65

Total 548.90 688.03

Notes:

(i) The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has issued an Office Memorandum dated 26 August
2008 which recommends that the Micro and Small Enterprises should mention in their correspondence with
its customers the Entrepreneurs Memorandum Number as allotted after filing of the Memorandum. Accordingly,
the disclosure in respect of the amounts payable to such enterprises as at reporting date has been made in
the standalone financial statements based on information received and available with the Company and
has been relied upon by the auditors.

Further, in the view of the Management, the impact of interest, if any, that may be payable in accordance
with the provisions of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 ("the MSMED Act") is
not expected to be material. The Company has not received any claim for interest from any supplier under
the said Act.

Based on and to the extent of information available with the Company under Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act), the relevant particulars as at reporting date are furnished

below:

Particul As at As at
arficulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

(@) Principal amount due to suppliers under MSMED Act, as at the end of the year 64.40 44,38

(b) Interest accrued and due to suppliers under MSMED Act, on the above amount
as at the end of the year - -

(©) Payment made to suppliers (other than interest) beyond
the appointed date, during the year - -

(d) Interest paid to suppliers under MSMED Act (other than Section 16) - -
(e) Interest paid to suppliers under MSMED Act (Section 16) - -
(f) Interest due and payable to suppliers under MSMED Act, for payments already made - -
(9) Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year to suppliers

under MSMED Act (b) + (f) - -
(i) Includes payables to related parties as disclosed under Note 42,

(iiiy Information about Company's exposure to currency and liquidity risks related to the
frade payables are included in Note 47.
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Agro Tech Foods Limited

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(Al amounts are in ¥ millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

Particulars As at As af
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Note 22 - Lease liabilities
Lease liabilities (Refer Note 36) 16.86 -
Total T 1686 -
Note 23 - Other financial liabilities
Current maturities of long term borrowing (Refer Note 18) 9.40 -
Payables for purchase of property, plant and equipment 17.48 2.61
Unclaimed dividends 3.37 3.45
Payroll related liabilities 17.87 38.90
Other liabilities (Includes outstanding liabilities for frade schemes etc.) 42.19 6.35
Inferest accrued but not due 0.41 -
Total 9072 ~ 5131

Information about Company's exposure to currency and liquidity risks related to the above financial liabilities
are included in Note 47.

Note 24 - Other current liabilities

Advance from customers 28.87 14.77
Statutory liabilities (including GST, provident fund, TDS efc.) 22.79 15.06
Current tax liabilities, (nef) - 5.26
Total ~ 51.66 ~ 3509

Note 25 -Provisions

Provision for employee benefits:

Gratuity (Refer Note 46) 10.47 6.38

Compensated absences 5.42 5.48
Others:

Provision for indirect tax matters (Refer Note below) 19.71 41.88

Current tax liabilities (neft) 1.54 -
Total - 3714 - 5374
Note:

Movement of provision for indirect tax matters

Opening balance 41.88 55.49
Provision created/(utilised/reversed) (nef) (22.17) (13.61)
Closing balance 19.71 41.88
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Agro Tech Foods Limited

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(Al amounts are in ¥ millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

Particul For the year ended For the year ended
arficulars March 31, 2020

March 31, 2019

Note 26 - Revenue from operations
Sale of products

Other operating revenues

Total

Note :

8,343.63
7.18

8,350.81

8,230.56
4.78
8,235.34

i) The Company disaggregates revenue from contracts with customers by geography. Disaggregation of rev-

enue by geography is not an operating segment as disclosed in Note 41.
Location

India

Outside India

Total

Geographical revenue is allocated based on the location of customers.
(ii) Reconciliation of gross revenue from contracts with customers

Gross revenue

Less : Trade allowances and rebates

Net revenue recognised during the year

Note 27 - Other income
Gain on disposal of mutual funds units
Fair value gain on financial assets mandatorily measured at fair
value through profit and loss
Interest income from deposits with banks and others
Total
Note 28 - Cost of materials consumed
Opening stock
Raw materials (including materials in tfransit)
Packing materials (including materials in fransit)
Add: Purchases
Raw materials
Packing materials
Less: Closing stock
Raw materials (including materials in tfransit)
Packing materials (including materials in fransit)
Total
Note 29 - Purchase of stock-in-frade
Stock-in-trade
Total
Note 30 - Changes in inventories of finished goods and stock-in-trade
Opening stock:
Finished goods (including material-in-transit)
Stock-in-trade
Closing stock:
Finished goods (including material-in-transit)
Stock-in-trade
Decrease / (Increase)/ in finished goods and stock-in-trade

102

8,308.95
34.68

8,343.63

8,756.52
412.89

8,343.63

31.80

0.24
1.91

33.95

365.20
94.57

3,731.22
589.54

369.00
104.94

4,306.59

1,324.65

1,324.65

373.39
4.69

295.74
5.01

77.33

8,194.53
36.03

8,230.56

8,658.06
427.50
8,230.56

27.53

0.66
9.58
37.77

472.36
92.97

3,499.34
590.25

365.20
94.57
4,195.15

1,426.25
1,426.25

370.89
5.88

373.39
4.69
(1.31)
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For the year ended For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Note 31 - Employee benefit expense
Salaries, wages and bonus 396.45 403.79
Contribution to provident and other funds (Refer Note 46) 35.88 34.06
Employee share based payment expense (13.22) 4.80
Staff welfare expenses 17.15 13.92
Total 436.26 456.57
Note 32 - Finance costs
Inferest on bank borrowings 4.44 0.94
Less: Amount capitalised (Refer note 4) (3.70) -
Ofther interest expenses (Refer note 36) 16.94 -
Total 17.68 0.94
Note 33 - Other expenses
Consumption of stores and spares 24.74 23.99
Power and fuel 58.63 60.29
Processing charges 86.24 81.36
Rent 215.93 234.55
Rates and taxes 25.55 23.97
Repairs and maintenance:

- Machinery 6.94 6.04

- Buildings 0.06 0.28

- Ofthers 25.21 21.32
Insurance 18.78 10.31
Printing and stationery 293 2.93
Software expenses 23.30 22.92
Communication expenses 17.55 19.15
Travelling expenses 67.66 65.88
Corporate social responsibility expense (Refer Note 43) 6.86 4.62
Auditors' remuneration (Refer Note 39) 5.88 7.06
Outward freight 369.26 366.62
Brokerage/ commission 29.75 38.61
Distribution expenses 286.31 238.08
Legal and professional charges 89.17 69.06
Advertisement and sales promaotion 183.47 143.66
Royalty 29.82 26.97
Bad debts written off 1.16 -
Less: Provision reversed (1.16) -
Provision for doubtful debts 0.55 4.96
Loss on sale/ retirement of property, plant and equipment, (net) 1.49 1.89
(Gain)/Loss on foreign currency transactions, net (0.42) 1.48
Bank charges 0.75 0.82
Miscellaneous expenses 48.35 35.96
Total 1,624.76 1,612.78
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For the year ended For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Note 34 - Income-tax
(a) Amounts recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Tax expense for the year

- Current Tax 107.94 179.87
- Tax in respect of earlier years 1.78 1.60
109.72 181.47
Deferred tax charge / (credit) (39.79) 0.98
Deferred tax (credit) in respect of earlier years - (6.52)
(39.79) (5.54)
69.93 175.93
(b) Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income
Tax effect on remeasurement of defined benefit plans (1.03) 0.27)
(1.03) (0.27)
(c) The income tax expense for the year ended can be reconciled
to the accounting profit as follows:
Profit before tax 409.14 515.00
Tax using the Company’s domestic tax rate @ 25.168% *(2019 @ 34.944% ) 102.97 179.96
Tax effect of:
Change in income tax rate* (36.85) -
Adjustment of tax relating to the earlier years 1.78 4.92)
Weighted deduction on research and development expenditure - (2.36)
Tax effects of amounts which are not deductible in determining taxable profit 2.03 3.25
69.93 175.93

*During the year, the Company elected to exercise the option permitted under Section 115BAA of the Income-
tax Act, 1961 as infroduced by the Taxation Laws (Amendment) Act, 2019. Accordingly, the Company has
recognized Provision for Income-tax for the year ended March 31, 2020 and re-measured its Deferred Tax
Liabilities (net) based on the rate of 22% + surcharge + cess prescribed in the Act.

(d) Deferred tax liabilities (net)

The following is the analysis of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) As at As at
presented in the Balance Sheet March 31,2020 March 31, 2019
Deferred tax assets 34.07 43.36
Deferred tax liabilities (126.01) (175.09)
(91.94) (131.73)
2019-20
Deferred tax (liabilities) / assets in relation to Opening Recognised in Closing
balance Statement of balance
Profit and Loss
On provision for doubtful debts and advances 30.82 8.77) 22.05
On expenditure allowed on payment basis 12.48 319 9.29
Property, plant and equipment (175.09) 49.08 (126.01)
Others 0.06 2.67 2.73
(131.73) 39.79 (91.94)
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2018-19
Deferred tax (liabilities) / assets in relation to Opening  Recognised in Statement  Closing
balance of Profit and Loss balance
On provision for doubtful debts and advances 28.81 2.01 30.82
On expenditure allowed on payment basis 12.09 0.39 12.48
Property, plant and equipment (171.84) (3.25) (175.09)
Ofthers (6.33) 6.39 0.06
Total (137.27) 5.54 (131.73)
Note 35 - Contingent liabilities and commitments:
Particul As at As at
arficuiars March 31,2020 March 31, 2019
(i) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital
account and not provided for (net of capital advances) 196.21 337.47

(i) Contingent liabilities (to the extent not provided for):
Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts in respect of :
- Indirect tax and direct tax matters, under dispute 252.65 264.13
- Other matters, under dispute 0.50 0.50
Note:

The Company is subject to legal proceedings and claims, which have arisen in the ordinary course of business
including litigation before various tax authorities. The amounts included above represent the best possible
estimates arrived at on the basis of available information. The uncertainties and possible reimbursements are
dependent on the outcome of the different legal processes which have been invoked by the Company or the
claimants as the case may be and therefore cannot be predicted accurately. The Company engages reputed
professional advisors to protect its interests and has been advised that it has strong legal positions against such
dispute. The Company's Management does not reasonably expect that these legal actions, when ultimately
concluded and determined, will have a material and adverse effect on the Company's results of operations or
financial conditions. The Company has accrued appropriate provision wherever required.

Note 36 - Leases

The Company has adopted Ind AS 116 'Leases' with the date of initial application being April 1, 2019. INnd AS 116
replaces Ind AS 17 - Leases and related interpretation and guidance. The Company has applied Ind AS 116
using the modified retrospective approach. Right-of-use assets at April 1, 2019 for leases previously classified as
operating leases were recognised measured at an amount equal to the lease liability (adjusted for any
prepayments/accruals). As a result, the comperative information has not been restated. The Company has
discontinued lease payments using the incremental borrowing rate as at April 1, 2019 for measuring lease
liability.

Accordingly, on fransition o Ind AS 116, the Company recognised right-of-use assets amounting to 3 188.48
and lease liability amounting to 2 176.29 During the year ended March 31, 2020, the Company has recognised
inferest expense on lease amounting to % 16.94 and depreciation on right-of-use assets amounting to ¥ 27.55.
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Particulars As at
March 31, 2020

(i) The following is the breakup of current and non current lease liabilities

Current lease liabilities 16.86
Non current lease liabilities 144.59
161.45
(ii) The following is the movement is the lease liabilities during the year ended March 31, 2020
Particulars Amount
Balance at the beginning 176.29
Finance cost accrued during the year 16.94
Payment of lease liabilities (including finance cost) (31.78)
Balance at the end 161.45

(ii) The impact of change in accounting policy on account on adoption of Ind AS 116 is as follows:
For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2020
Interest on lease liability (Refer Note 32) 16.94
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (Refer Note 5) 27.55
(iv) Maturity analysis of lease liabilities as at March 31, 2020:
Particulars As at
March 31, 2020
Less than one year 16.86
One to five years 75.23
More than five years 69.36
Total lease liabilities as at March 31, 2020 161.45

Note: It is net off of prepaid rent recognised on fair valuation of rental deposits aggregating ¥ 12.19.
Note 37- Intangible assets - Trademarks

Trademarks represent the purchase consideration paid for brand "Sundrop". Sundrop brand has been assessed
to have an indefinite useful life and therefore measured at cost and not subject to amortisation, but tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that it might be impaired.
On the Balance Sheet date, the Management reassesses the value of brand through an independent valuer to
ensure that the recoverable amount of the asset is not lower than its carrying amount. Key assumptions used in
the estimation of the recoverable amount are set out below:

Particul As at As af
arficulars March 31,2020 March 31, 2019

Pre tax discount rate 21.40% 25.40%

Terminal growth rate 4.00% 1.00%

The Management believes that any reasonable possible change in the key assumptions that would not cause
the carrying amount to exceed the recoverable amount of the asset.

Note 38 - Exceptional items

On November 4, 2018, a fire broke out at one of the manufacturing facilities of the Company which caused
damage to the Company’s property, plant, and equipment and inventory. The Company lodged a claim with
the insurance company for losses suffered which is under process by the insurance company. The Company
had recorded a loss of ¥ 251.76 arising from such incident for the year ended March 31, 2019. Further, the
Company had also recognised a minimum insurance claim receivable for equivalent amounts and disclosed
under Note 14 in these standalone financial statments. The aforementioned losses and the corresponding
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credit arising from insurance claim receivable has been presented on a net basis (X Nil) under Exceptional
items in these standalone financial statements for the year previous year 2018-19. As confirmed by the insurance
company, prima facie the claim submission and progress is satisfactory and they do not find any concern in
the processing of the claim fill date. The Company has thus received paymnets aggregating % 126.48 from the
inurance company and % 6.77 from scrap vendor. The same has been adjusted with the amount recoverable
from the insurance company. The Company has during the year written off loss relating to inventories (net of
insurance claim received) of ¥ 2.26.

Also, the Company is in the process of determining its final claim for losses of property, plant and equipment
and losses incurred due to interruption of business and has accordingly not recorded any further claim arising
therefrom at this stage.

Note 39 - Auditors' remuneration (excluding applicable GST):

For the year ended For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

To Statutory auditor
Statutory audit fee 2.76 3.03
Tax audit fee 0.22 0.22
Limited review fee* 0.97 0.80
Fees for certifications 1.10 1.33
Others* 0.31 0.77
Reimbursement of expenses 0.52 0.91
5.88 7.06

* Current year remuneration includes % 0.27 in respect of limited review fees and % 0.31 in respect of other
services paid to the predecessor auditor

Note 40 - Earnings per equity share ("EPS")

For the year ended For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
(a) Net profit attributable to the equity shareholders (X in Millions) 339.21 339.07
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year (No's)
Basic outstanding shares 24,369,264 24,369,264
Less: Weighted average number of treasury shares 784,638 961,078
(b) Weighted average number of shares used for computing basic EPS (No's) 23,584,626 23,408,186
Add: Dilutive effect of stock options 499 31,834
(c) Weighted average number of shares used for computing diluted EPS (No's) 23,585,125 23,440,020
(d) Basic earnings per share () (a/b) 14.38 14.49
(e) Diluted earnings per share (%) (a/c) 14.38 14.47

Note 41 - Segmental information

The Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) evaluates the Company's performance and allocates resources
based on analysis of various performance indicators by industry classes. The operating segment of the Company
has been identified as "Foods" as the CODM reviews the business performance at an overall Company level as
one segment.

Information about major customers

Revenue from specific customers exceeding 10% of total revenue

For the year ended For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
One customer
Revenue from top customer 1,133.79 1,188.20
Percentage of total revenue 13.59% 14.07%
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Note 42 - Related parties

Relationships Name of related parties

1. Ultimate Holding Company Conagra Brands Inc. (formerly known as ConAgra Foods Inc.)
2. Holding Company CAG Tech (Mauritius) Limited

3. Subsidiary Companies Sundrop Foods India Private Limited

Agro Tech Foods (Bangladesh) Pvt. Ltd.
Sundrop Foods Lanka (Private) Limited

4. Fellow Subsidiary Company ConAgra Foods Export Company, Inc.

5. Key Management Personnel (KMP) :
Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer Mr. Sachin Gopal

Chief Financial Officer Mr.K P N Srinivas (w.e.f. August 1, 2019)
Mr. Arijit Datta (Upto August 1, 2019)

Company Secretary Ms. Jyoti Chawla

Independent Directors Lt. Gen.D.B. Singh

Mr. Sanjaya Kulkarni
Mr. Arun Bewoor
Mr. Narendra Ambwani

Ms. Veena Vishindas Gidwani

6. Post-employment benefit trusts Agro Tech Foods Management Staff Gratuity Fund
Agro Tech Foods Non-Management Gratuity Fund
Agro Tech Foods Provident Fund

Agro Tech Foods Superannuation Fund
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(a) Related party transactions during the year

Particul Relationshi For the For the
arficulars elationship year ended year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Sundrop Foods India Private Limited Subsidiary
Distribution services received 160.80 143.80
Sundrop Foods Lanka (Private) Limited Subsidiary
Sale of Goods 1.43 0.58
Purchase of Assets 3.71 -
Agro Tech Foods (Bangladesh) Pvi. Lid. Subsidiary
Purchase of Goods 2.52 -
Investment in equity shares 16.88 8.38
ConAgra Foods Export Company, Inc. Fellow Subsidiary
Purchase of Goods - 1.04
Conagra Brands Inc. Ultimate Holding Company
(formerly known as ConAgra Foods Inc.)
Royalty 29.82 26.96
Recovery of expenses - 0.22
CAG Tech (Mauritius) Limited Holding Company
Dividend paid 31.54 31.54
Key Managerial Personnel Compensation Key Management Personnel
Short-term employee benefits* 26.49 35.49
Post-employment defined benefits* 1.95 2.01
Sitting fees and commission to
independent directors 6.20 5.85
Agro Tech Foods Management Staff Gratuity Fund Post-employment benefit trusts
Contribution during the year 6.38 5.22
Agro Tech Foods Provident Fund Post-employment benefit trusts
Contribution during the year 37.33 34.63
Agro Tech Foods Superannuation Fund Post-employment benefit trusts
Contribution during the year 6.97 6.87

*Remuneration as given above does not include long-term compensated absences benefit accrued, gratuity
benefit accrued and insurance premium since the same are computed for all the employees together and
the amounts attributable to the managerial personnel cannot be ascertained separately. Share-based com-
pensation expense allocable to key management personnel is not included in the remuneration disclosed
above. It excludes gratuity of ¥ 1.19 paid to the KMP resigned during the year.
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(b) Balances receivable from/payable to related parties

As at As af

Particulars Relationship March 31, March 31,
2020 2019
Receivable from related parties
Sundrop Foods Lanka (Private) Limited Subsidiary 0.55 0.26
Payable to related parties
Agro Tech Foods Management Staff Gratuity Fund Post-employment benefit frusts 10.47 6.38
Agro Tech Foods Provident Fund Post-employment benefit tfrusts 2.64 2.36
Agro Tech Foods Superannuation Fund Post-employment benefit trusts 0.56 0.58
Sundrop Foods India Private Limited Subsidiary 72.71 56.54
Conagra Brands Inc. Ultimate Holding Company 4.05 3.45
(formerly known as ConAgra Foods Inc.)
Key Managerial Personnel Compensation Key Managerial Personnel 0.13 7.62
Independent Directors Independent Directors 3.20 2.95

Note: The above information has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis
of information available with the Company and relied upon by the auditors.

Note 43 - Corporate social responsibility

During the year, the Company has spent % 6.86 (March 31, 2019: % 4.62) towards CSR activities, this includes
Social welfare program called "Poshan". The program which is designed to address malnourishment amongst
children, works with Government Anganwadi’s and Child Malnourishment Treatment Centers using Peanut
Butter which is arich source of protein and highly effective to fight malnutrition. The amount includes allocable
manufacturing overhead. The amount also includes contribution made to PM CARES FUND of % 2. The corporate
social responsibility expenditure represents about 1.41% (March 31, 2019: 1.06%) of last 3 years average profit.

Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year : ¥ 9.75 (March 31, 2019: % 8.69).

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Amount spent other than for construction/ acquisition of any asset 6.86 4.62

Amount accrued and not paid - -
6.86 4.62

Note 44 - Research and development expenses

Revenue expenditure on research and development is expensed as incurred. Capital expenditure incurred on
research and development ('R&D") is capitalised as property, plant and equipment and depreciated in accor-
dance with the depreciation policy of the Company. The details are as below:

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Capital expenditure 11.62 0.12
Revenue expenditure 22.64 19.14
34.26 19.26

Note 45 - Capital management

The Company's policy is fo maintain a stable and strong capital structure with focus on total equity so as to
maintain investors, creditors and market confidence and to sustain future development and growth of its
business. In order fo maintain the capital structure, the Company monitors the return on capital, as well as the
level of dividends of equity share holders. The Company aims to manage its capital efficiently so as to safe-
guard its ability to continue as a going concern and to optimise returns to all its shareholders. For the purpose
of Company's capital management, capital includes issued capital and all other equity reserves and debt
includes long-term borrowings and short-term working capital demand loan.
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The Company monitors capital on the basis of the following gearing ratio

As at As at
Particulars March 31,2020 March 31, 2019
Total Debt 47.00 -
Total Equity 4,075.29 3,757.77
Debt to equity ratio 0.01 -

Note 46 - Employee Benefits
a) The employee benefit schemes are as under:
i. Provident fund:

Allemployees of the Company receive benefits under the Provident Fund which is a defined benefit plan wherein
the Company provides the guarantee of a specified return on contribution. The contribution is made both by the
employee and the Company equal to 12% of the employees' salary. These contributions are made to the fund
administered and managed by the Company's own Trust. (Refer Note 42).

ii. Superannuation fund:

The Company has a defined conftribution scheme to provide pension to its eligible employees. The Company
makes monthly contributions equal to a specified percentage of the covered employees' salary. These contribu-
tions are administered by Company's own Trust which has subscribed to "Group Superannuation Policy" of ICICI
Prudential Life Insurance Company Limited. The Company's monthly contributions are charged to the Statement of
Profit and Loss.

iii. Compensated absences :

The accrual for unutilised leave is determined for the entire available leave balance standing to the credit of the
employees at the year end. The value of such leave balances that are eligible for carry forward, is determined by
an actuarial valuation as at the end of the year and is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

iv. Gratuity :

In accordance with the 'The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972' of India, the Company provides for Gratuity a defined
retirement benefit scheme (the Gratuity Plan), covering eligible employees. Liabilities with regard to such gratuity
plan are determined by an actuarial valuation as at the end of the year. The gratuity plan is a funded plan admin-
istered by Company's own Trust which has subscribed to "Group Gratuity Scheme" of ICICI Prudential Life Insurance
Company Limited.

Risk Management:

Investment risk - The probability or likelihood of occurrence of losses related to the expected return on any particu-
lar investment.

Interest rate risk - The plan exposes the Company to the risk of fall in interest rates. A fall in interest rates will result in
anincrease in the ultimate cost of providing the above benefit and will thus result in an increase in the value of the
liability.

Longetivity risk - The present value of defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of
the mortality of plan participants both during and after employment. Anincrease in the life expectancy of the plan
participants will increase the plan's liability.

Salary risk - The present value of the defined benefit plan is calculated with reference to the future salaries of
participants under the plan. Increase in salary due to adverse inflationary pressures might lead to higher liabilities.
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b) The following table sets out the particulars of the employee benefits as required under the Ind AS 19-."Employee
Benefits".

i) The amounts recognised in the Balance Sheet and the movement in the defined benefit obligation for Gratuity

is as follows:
_ March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Particulars Present Fairvalue  Net Present Fairvalue  Net
value of of plan Liability/ value of of plan  Liability/
obligation  assets (asset) obligation  assets (asset)

Opening balance (A) 59.01 52.63 6.38 52.95 47.73 522
Current service cost 6.09 - 6.09 5.77 - 5.77
Interest cost 3.81 - 3.81 3.50 - 3.50
Expected returns - 3.52 (3.52) - 3.65 (3.65)
Total amount recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss (B) 9.90 3.52 6.38 9.27 3.65 5.62
Remeasurements

Loss/ (gain) from change in financial assumptions  3.00 - 3.00 0.72 - 0.72
Experience losses - experience 0.43 - 0.43 0.01 - 0.01
Return on plan assets, greater/less than discount rate - (0.66) 0.66 - (0.03) 0.03
Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income (C) 3.43 (0.66) 4.09 0.73 (0.03) 0.76
Contributions (D) - 6.38 (6.38) - 5.22 5.22)
Benefit paid (E) (8.11) 8.11) - (3.95) (3.95) -
Closing Balance (A+B+C+D+E) 64.23 53.76 10.47 59.01 52.62 6.38

i) The amounts recognised in the Balance Sheet and the movement in the defined benefit obligation for Provident
Fund is as follows:

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Particulars Present Fairvalue  Net Present Fairvalue  Net
value of of plan Liability/ value of of plan Liability/
obligation  assets (asset) obligation assets (asset)

Opening balance (A) 300.26 308.14 (7.88) 331.13 347.10 (15.97)
Current service cost 10.48 - 10.48 10.20 - 10.20
Interest cost 24.24 - 24.24 25.68 - 25.68
Expected returns - 24.75 (24.75) - 2713 27.13)
Total amount to be recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss (B) 34.72 24.75 9.97 35.88 2713 8.75
Remeasurements

Actuarial loss/ (gain) 11.63 - 11.63 2.48 - 2.48
Return on plan assets - 12.66 (12.66) - (7.05) 7.05
Total amount to be recognised in other comprehensive income (C) 11.63 12.66 (1.03) 2.48 (7.05) 9.53
Contributions (D) 26.85 37.33 (10.48) 24.43 34.63 (10.20)
Transfer in (E) 0.89 0.89 - 0.47 0.47 -
Interest allocations (F) 27.59 27.59 - - - -
Benefits paid (G) (74.70) (74.70) - (94.13) (94.13) -

Closing Balance (A+B+C+D+E+F+G**) 327.24 336.66 (9.42) 300.26 308.15 (7.88)

** The Company has not recognised an asset amounting to ¥ 9.42 (March 31, 2019: % 7.88) as there are no future
economic benefits available to the Company in the form of reduction in future contribution or a cash refund.
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iii) Significant estimates: Actuarial assumptions
The significant actuarial assumptions for defined benefit obligation are as follows:

Gratuity Provident Fund
Particulars March 31, March 31, March 31,  March 31,
2020 2019 2020 2019
Discount rate 6.67% 7.45% 6.67% 7.43%
Expected rate of return on plan assets 6.67% 7.45% 8.50% 8.65%
Salary escalation rate 7.00% 7.00% 7.00% 7.00%

Discount rate : The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian Government securities as at the
balance sheet date for the estimated term of the obligations.

Expected rate of return on plan assefs : This is based on the expectation of the average long-term rate of return
expected on investments of the fund during the estimated term of the obligations.

Salary escalation rate : The estimates of future salary increase considered in the actuarial valuation takes into
account factors like inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors such as supply and demand in the
employment market.

iv) Details of plan assets

. Gratuity Provident Fund
Parficulars March 31, March 31, March 31,  March 31,
2020 2019 2020 2019

Government of India securities - - 40.94% 36.20%
PSU bonds - - 42.58% 44.32%
State Government securities - - 16.48% 19.48%
Fund managed by ICICI Prudential Life
Insurance Company Limited* 100% 100% - -
Total 100% 100% 100% 100%

*The Company makes annual contribution to the ICICI Prudential Life Insurance Company Limited.

v) Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal assumptions is as follows:

Particulars Gratuity Provident Fund
March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31,
2020 2019 2020 2019
A. Discount rate
a. Discount rate - 100 basis points 68.47 62.91 336.45 306.60
b. Discount rate +100 basis points 60.43 50.57 326.38 297.28
B. Interest rate guarantee for planned asset
a. Rate - 100 basis points 60.39 55.53 326.38 298.78
b. Rate +100 basis points 68.43 62.89 335.98 307.10
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The above sensitivity is based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In
practice, thisis unlikely to occur and changes in some of the assumptions maybe corelated. When calculating the
sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same method (present value of
the defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected units credit method at the end of the reporting
period) has been applied when calculating the defined benéefit liability regrouped in the Balance Sheet.

The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared o the
previous year.

vi) Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation:

Gratuity Provident Fund
Particulars March 31,2020 March 31,2019 March 31,2020 March 31, 2019
Year 1 16.23 16.98 34.42 32.17
Year 2 6.10 3.22 52.13 48.72
Year 3 4.11 5.52 28.38 26.53
Year 4 6.33 3.70 23.35 21.82
Year 5 3.73 5.58 59.64 55.74
Year 6 to 10 27.45 26.73 157.02 146.75

The Company expects to contribute ¥ 10.42 to its defined benefit plans during the next fiscal year.

Note 47 - Financial instruments

The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise borrowings, frade payables and other liabilities. The Company’s
principal financial assets include loans, investments, frade and other receivables, and cash and cash equivalents
that derive directly from its operations. The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks viz. market
risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's primary focus is to foresee the unpredictability of financial markets
and seek to minimise potential adverse effects onits financial performance. The primary market risk to the Company
is foreign exchange risk. The Company uses derivative financial instruments to mitigate foreign exchange related
risk exposures. The Company's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristic of each
customer and the concentration of risk from the top few customers. All derivative activities for risk management
purposes are carried out by specialist teams that have the appropriate skills, experience and supervision. It is the
Company's policy that no trading in derivative for speculative purposes may be undertaken.
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The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below:
Accounting classification and fair values

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities as at
March 31, 2020, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy.

Carrying amount Fair value
Particulars Note FVIPL FVOCI Otherfinoncial Other  Total Level Level Level Total
assefs - financial carrying 1 2 3

amortised cost  liabilities amount

Financial assets

Investments in subsidiaries 7 - - 185.22 - 185.22 - - - -
Non current financial assets 8 - - 24.04 - 24.04 - - - -
Investments in mutual fund units 11 139.24 - - - 139.24 139.24 - - 139.24
Trade receivables 12 - - 747.04 - 747.04 - - - -
Cash and cash equivalents 13 (a) - - 29.51 - 29.51 - - - -
Bank balances - - 4.24 - 4.24 - - - -
(other than cash and cash equivalents) 13 (b)
Ofther financial assets 14 - - 121.68 - 121.68 - - - -
139.24 - 1,111.73 - 1,250.97 139.24 - - 139.24
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 18 - - - 37.60 37.60 - - - -
Trade payables 21 - - - 548.90 548.90 - - - -
Ofther financial liabilities 23 - - - 90.72 90.72 - - - -
Lease liabilities 19,22 - - - 161.45 161.45 - - - -

- - - 838.67 838.67 - - - -
The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities as at
March 31, 2019, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy.

Carrying amount Fair value
Particulars Note FVIPL FVOCI Otherfinancial Other  Total Level Level Level Total
assets - financial carrying 1 2 3

amortised cost  liabilities amount

Financial assets

Investments in subsidiaries 7 - - 168.34 - 168.34 - - - -
Non current financial assets 8 - - 27.70 - 27.70 - - - -
Investments in mutual fund units 11 350.66 - - - 3560.66 350.66 - - 350.66
Trade Receivables 12 - - 808.86 - 808.86 - - - -
Cash and cash equivalents 13 (a) - - 32.35 - 32.35 - - - -
Bank balances - - 4,32 - 4,32 - - - -
(other than cash and cash equivalents) 13 (b)
Ofther financial assets 14 - - 145.26 - 14526 - - - -
350.66 - 1,186.83 - 1,537.49 350.66 - - 350.66
Financial liabilities
Trade payables 21 - - - 688.03 688.03 - - - -
Ofther financial liabilities 23 - - - 51.31 51.31 - - - -

- - - 73934 739.34 - - - -

Fair value hierarchy

The fair value of financial instruments as referred to above have been classified into three categories depending on the inputs
used in the valuation technique. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for identified assets or
liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements)

The following levels have been used for classification:

e Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical instruments in active market

e Level 2; Directly or indirectly observable market inputs, other than Level 1 inputs
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e Level 3: Inputs which are not based on observable market data.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the fair value is determined using
generally accepted pricing model based on a discounted cash flow analysis, with the most significant inputs
being the discount rate that reflects the credit risk of counterparty.

The fair value of frade receivables, frade payables and other current financial assets and liabilities is considered to
be equal to the carrying amounts of these items due to their short-term nature. Where such items are non-current
in nature, the same has been classified as Level 3 and fair value determined using discounted cash flow basis.
There has been no change in the valuation methodology for Level 3 inputs during the year. There were no transfers
between Level 1 and Level 2 during the year.

Financial risk management

The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:

i. Credit Risk

ii. Liquidity Risk

iii. Market Risk

Risk Management framework:

The Company’s financial risk management is an integral part of how to plan and execute ifs business strategies.
The Company’s risk management policy is set by the Risk Management Committee. The Company’s activities
expose it to a variety of financial risks: credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk. The Company’s primary focus is to
foresee the unpredictability of financial markets and seek to minimise potential adverse effects on its financial
performance. A summary of the risks have been given below:

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to
meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company’s receivables from customers and loans
given. Credit risk arises from cash held with banks, as well as credit exposure to clients, including outstanding
accounts receivables. The maximum exposure to credit risk is equal to the carrying value of the financial assets.
The objective of managing counterparty credit risk is to prevent losses in financial assets. The Company assesses
the credit quality of the counterparties, taking into account their financial position, past experience and other
factors.

Trade and other receivables

The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. In
monitoring customer credit risk, customers are grouped according to their credit characteristics, including whether
they are wholesale, retail or institutional customers, their industry, frading history with the Company and existence
of previous financial difficulties. The default in collection as a percentage to fotal receivable is low.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its
financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or any other financial asset. The Company's approach to
managing liquidity is fo ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they
are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risk damage to the
Company's reputation.

The Company monitors the level of expected cash inflows on trade receivables and loans together with expected
cash outflows on trade payables and other financial liabilities.

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities as at March
31, 2020 and March 31, 2019:

As at March 31, 2020
Carnying value Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2 years and above

Particulars

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Trade payables 548.90 548.90 - -
Ofther financial liabilities 90.72 90.72 - -
Lease liabilities 161.45 16.86 20.11 124.48

801.07 656.48 20.11 124.48
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As at March 31, 2019
Carnrying value Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2 years and above

Particulars

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Trade payables 688.03 688.03 - -
Other financial liabilities 51.31 51.31 - -

739.34 739.34 - -
Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices - such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates - will affect
the Company'sincome or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management
is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return.
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. Since the Company has insignificant interest bearing borrowings, the exposure to
risk of changes in market interest rates is minimal. The Company has not used any interest rate derivatives.
Currency risk

The Company is exposed to currency risk to the extent that there is missnatch between the currencies in which
sales, purchase are denominated and the respective functional currencies of Company. The functional currency
of the Company is INR and maximum sales transactions are denominated in INR itself. Foreign currency transactions
are mainly denominated in USD.

Exposure to currency risk

The following is the nominal value of outstanding derivative contracts entered into by the Company for hedging
currency related risks as aft:

As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Particulars Foreign Currency (USD) Amountin Foreign Currency (USD) Amount in
¥ millions % millions
Trade payables 93,976 6.83 93,846 6.52
The particulars of un-hedged foreign exposure as at balance sheet date is as under
As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Particulars Foreign Currency (USD) Amountin Foreign Currency (USD) Amount in
T millions % millions
Trade payables 38,834 2.93 1,334 0.09
Trade receivables 18,400 1.39 34,766 2.42

Sensitivity Analysis:
The profit or loss is sensitive to foreign exchange gain/ (loss) as a result of changes in foreign exchange rates.

Impact on profit for the year ended

Particulars March 31,2020  March 31, 2019
Foreign exchange rate - Increases by 5% (0.08) 0.12
Foreign exchange rate - Decreases by 5% 0.08 0.12)
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Price risk exposure

The Company’s exposure to price risk arises from investments held by the Company in the mutual fund units and
classified as fair value through profit or loss. To manage its price risk arising from investments in mutual fund units,
the Company diversifies its portfolio. Diversification of the portfolio is done in accordance with the limits set by the
Company. The exposure of the Company’s mutual fund investments to security price changes at the end of the
reporting period are as follows:

Particulars As at As af
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Investments in mutual fund units 139.24 350.66
Sensitivity Analysis:

The profit or loss is sensitive to market price as a result of changes in price of mutual funds.

Impact on profit for the year ended

Particulars March 31,2020 March 31, 2019
Market price - Increases by 5% 6.96 17.53
Market price - Decreases by 5% (6.96) (17.53)

Note 48 - During the year ended March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019 no material foreseeable loss was incurred for
any long-term contract including derivative contracts.

Note 49 - The Ministry of Home Affairs vide order no. 40-3/2020-DM-I(A) dated March 24, 2020 announced a nation-
wide lockdown as a measure to contain the spread of COVID 19 which was declared a global pandemic by the
World Health Organisation. Owing to the lockdown, the supply chain was impacted in the second half of March
2020. However, being in the manufacture of food products covered under essential supplies, the Company has
since then seen a steady improvement in the supply chain with increased regulator support and labour availability.
The Company is closely monitoring the impact of the pandemic on all aspects of its business and is taking appropriate
measures to ensure the safety and well-being of all its employees and ensuring full compliance with the directives
issued by the Government in this regard.

The Management has exercised due care, in concluding on significant accounting judgements and estimates,
inter-alia, recoverability of receivables, assessment forimpairment of investments, intangible assets, inventory, based
on the information available to date, both internal and external, to the extent relevant, while preparing these
financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2020. There is no material impact on the financial
statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 owing to the pandemic. The eventual outcome of impact of the
global health pandemic may be different from those estimated as on the date of approval of these financial
statements.

Note 50 - The financial statements are approved for issue by the Audit Committee and Board of Directors at their
meetings held on May 28, 2020.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sachin Gopal Lt.Gen.D.B. Singh
Managing Director & CEO Director

DIN 07439079 DIN 00239637

K P N Srinivas Jyoti Chawla

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 28, 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF AGRO TECH FOODS LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated
financial statements of Agro Tech Foods Limited ("the
Parent”) and its subsidiaries, (the Parent and its
subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”),
which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as
at March 31, 2020, and the Consolidated Statement
of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and
the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for
the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us, and based
on the consideration of reports of the other auditors
on separate financial statements of two sulbsidiaries
referred to in the Other Matters section below, the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the
information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true
and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act
read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended ('Ind AS"), and
other accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group
as at March 31, 2020, and their consolidated profit,
their consolidated total comprehensive income, their
consolidated cash flows and their consolidated
changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing specified under section 143 (10) of the Act
(SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibility for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(ICA) together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the
Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfiled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and
the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in
terms of their reports referred to in the sub-paragraphs
(b) and (c) of the Other Matters section below, is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the consolidated financial
statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters. We have determined the matters
described below to be the key audit matters to be
communicated in our report.

SI. Key Audit Matter
No.

Auditor’s Response

1 |Revenue recognition - Sale of goods

Refer Note 3(h) "Revenue Recognition” to the
Consolidated Financial Statements under
Significant Accounting Policies.

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when
control of the products being sold is transferred
to the customer, which is mainly upon delivery
and when there are no longer any unfulfiled
obligations.

The timing of revenue recognition is relevant to
the reported performance of the Company. The
Management considers revenue as a key
measure for evaluation of performance. There is
a risk of revenue being recorded before control
is fransferred.

We have performed the following principal audit
procedures in relation to revenue recognised which
include a combination of testing internal controls and
substantive testing as under:

* Assessing the appropriateness of the Group’s
revenue recognition accounting policies in line
with Ind AS 115 ("Revenue from Contracts with
Customers") and testing thereof.

e Evaluating the integrity of the general information
and technology ('IT") control environment and
testing the operating effectiveness of key IT
application controls.

e Understanding the revenue recognition process,
evaluating the design and implementation of
Group’s controls in respect of revenue
recognition.
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Testing the effectiveness of such controls over
revenue cut-off at year end.

Testing the supporting documentation for sales
fransactions recorded during the period closer
to the year end and subsequent to the year end,
including examination of credit notes issued
subsequent to the year end to determine whether
revenue was recognised in correct period.

Performing analytical procedures on current year
revenue based on monthly frends and where
appropriate, conducting further enquiries and
testing.

Existence of Inventories

As at March 31, 2020, the Consolidated Financial
Statements included inventories aggregating
774.69 million of the Parent, which comprises 15%
of the total assets of the Group. The Parent
Company’s inventories are geographically
spread across multiple locations such as factories
/ depots.

These inventories are physically verified by the
Management of the Parent in accordance with
a physical verification plan.

Owing to the COVID 19 global pandemic, and
the nation-wide lockdown effected fromn March
24, 2020, we were not able to observe the
verification of inventories carried out by the
Management of the Parent March 31, 2020. For
the aforementioned reason and also since the
inventory balance is material, the existence and
condition thereof has been considered as a key
audit matter.

We have performed the following principal audit
procedures in relation to validating the existence and
condition of inventories, which include a combination
of testing intfernal controls and substantive testing as
under:

Understood the Parent’s Management’s control
over physical inventory counts.

Evaluation of the design and festing the
operating effectiveness of the internal controls
relating to physical inventory counts.

Evaluation of the design and testing the
operating effectiveness of the internal controls
relating to purchases, sales and inventories
including automated controls.

Performed alternate procedures including
inspection of documentation of the subsequent
sale of inventories to audit the existence and
condition of inventory as per guidance provided
in SA 501 "“Audit Evidence - Specific
Considerations for Selected Iltems” and have
obtained sufficient appropriate audit evidence.

We have also performed roll-forward procedures
for establishing the existence of inventory as at
year-end by validating purchases, sales, stock
movement of inventory during the intervening
period i.e. from the date physical verification was
done ftill the year end date.

Verification of documentary evidences of
damaged and expired stock and the adequacy
of recorded allowance in respect of these.
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and
Auditor’s Report Thereon

e The Parent’s Board of Directors is responsible for
the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Report
of the Directors and Management Discussion &
Analysis, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements, standalone financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

e Qur opinion on the consolidated financial
statements does not cover the other information
and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

e In connection with our audit of the consolidated
financial statements, our responsibility is fo read
the otherinformation, compare with the financial
statements of the subsidiaries audited by the other
auditors, to the extent it relates to these entities
and, in doing so, place reliance on the work of
the other auditors and consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained during the course of our
audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. Other information so far as it relates to
the two subsidiaries is traced from their financial
statements audited by the other auditors.

* |[f, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The Parent’s Board of Directors is responsible for the
matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect
to the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position, consolidated financial
performance including other comprehensive income,
consolidated cash flows and consolidated changes
in equity of the Group in accordance with the Ind AS
and other accounting principles generally accepted
in India. The respective Board of Directors of the
companies included in the Group are responsible for
maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding the assets of the Group and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial conftrols, that were operating
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effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to
the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, which have been used for the purpose of
preparation of the consolidated financial statements
by the Directors of the Parent, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements,
the respective Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group are responsible for assessing
the ability of the respective entities to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the respective Board of
Directors either infends to liquidate their respective
entities or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group are also responsible for
overseeing the financial reporting process of the
Group.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we
exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
infentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.
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* Obtain an understanding of internal financial
control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act,
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion
on whether the Parent has adequate internal
financial controls system in place and the
operating effectiveness of such conftrols.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of
management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the ability of the Group to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw afftention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date
of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner
that achieves fair presentation.

* Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Group to express
an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the audit of the
financial statements of such entities included in
the consolidated financial statements of which we
are the independent auditors. For the other entities
included in the consolidated financial statements,
which have been audited by other auditors, such
other auditors remain responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the audits carried
out by them. We remain solely responsible for our
audit opinion.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the

consolidated financial statements that, individually or

in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic
decisions of areasonably knowledgeable user of the
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consolidated financial statements may be influenced.
We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative
factorsin (i) planning the scope of our audit work and
in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) tfo
evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements
in the consolidated financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with
governance of the Parent and such other entities
included in the consolidated financial statements of
which we are the independent auditors regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with
a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged
with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about
the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse
conseguences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

Other Matters

(@) The comparative financial information for the year
ended March 31, 2019 included in these
consolidated financial statements has been
audited by the predecessor auditor. The report of
the predecessor auditor on the comparative
financial information expressed an unmodified
opinion.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial
statements is not modified in respect of the above
matter,

(b) We did not audit the financial statements of two
subsidiaries, whose financial statements reflect
total assets of ¥ 138.61 million as at March 31, 2020,
total revenues of ¥ 7.75 million and net cash inflows
amounting to % 1.14 million for the year ended on
that date, as considered in the consolidated
financial statements. These financial statements
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have been audited by the other auditors whose
reports have been furnished to us by the
Management and our opinion on the
consolidated financial statements, in so far as it
relates to the amounts and disclosures included
in respect of these subsidiaries and our report in
terms of subsection (3) of Section 143 of the Act,
in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries is
based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

(c) We did not audit the financial statements of one
subsidiary, whose financial statements reflect total
assets of ¥ 84.15 million as at March 31, 2020, total
revenues of ¥ 160.83 million and net cash inflows
amounting to ¥ 1T million for the year ended on
that date, as considered in the consolidated
financial statements. These financial statements
are unaudited and have been furnished to us by
the Management and our opinion on the
consolidated financial statements, in so far as it
relates to the amounts and disclosures included
in respect of this subsidiary is based solely on such
unaudited financial statements. In our opinion and
according to the information and explanations
given to us by the Management, these financial
statements are not material to the Group.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements
above and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the
above matters with respect to our reliance on the work
done and the reports of the other auditors and the
financial statements certified by the Management.,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on
our audit and on the consideration of the reports of
the ofther auditors on the separate financial
statements of the subsidiaries referred to in the Other
Matters section above, we report, to the extent
applicable that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information
and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the
purposes of our audit of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements.

) In our opinion, proper books of account as
required by law relating to preparation of the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements have
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<)

d)

e)

h)

been kept so far as it appears from our
examination of those books and the reports of the
other auditors.

The Consolidated Balance Sheet, fthe
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
including Other Comprehensive Income, the
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
dealt with by this Report are in agreement with
the relevant books of account maintained for the
purpose of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements.

In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial
statements comply with the Ind AS specified under
Section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations
received from the directors of the Parent as on
March 31, 2020 taken on record by the Board of
Directors of the Parent and the reports of the
statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies
incorporated in India, none of the directors of the
Group companies incorporated in India is
disqualified as on March 31, 2020 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2)
of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate Report in "Annexure A” which is
based on the auditors’ reports of the Parent,
subsidiary companies incorporated in India to
whom internal financial controls over financial
reporting is applicable. Our report expresses an
unmodified opinion on the adequacy and
operating effectiveness of internal financial
conftrols over financial reporting of those
companies.

With respect to the other matters to be included
in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as
amended, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations
givento us, the remuneration paid/payable by the
Parent to its directors during the year is in
accordance with the provisions of section 197 of
the Act.
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)

With respect to the other matters to be included
in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best

of

our information and according to the

explanations given to us:

)

if)

The consolidated financial statements disclose
the impact of pending litigations on the
consolidated financial position of the Group;
The Group did not have any material
foreseeable losses on long-term contracts
including derivative contracts;

There has been no delay in transferring
amounts, required to be transferred, to the
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Investor Education and Protection Fund by the
Parent. There were no amounts which were
required to be fransferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the
subsidiary company incorporated in India.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

Sumit Trivedi

Partner

Membership No. 209354
UDIN: 20209354AAAAFR4376

Place: Secunderabad
Date: May 28, 2020



Agro Tech Foods Limited

ANNEXURE-A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other
Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our
report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the Company as of and for
the year ended March 31, 2020, we have audited the
internal financial controls over financial reporting of
Agro Tech Foods Limited (hereinafter referred to as
“Parent”). Reporting on the adequacy of Internal
Financial Control Over Financial Reporting of the
subsidiary company, which is incorporated in India
and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
under section 143(3)(i) of the Act is not applicable in
view of the exemption available to the subsidiary
company in terms of the notification no. G.S.R. 583(E)
dated 13 June 2017 issued by the Ministry of Corporate
Affairs, Government of India, read with general
circular No. 08/2017 dated 25 July 2017.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial
Controls

The Board of Directors of the Parent is responsible for
establishing and maintaining infernal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Parent considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAIl). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly
and efficient conduct of ifs business, including
adherence to the Parent policies, the safeguarding
of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internall
financial controls over financial reporting of the Parent
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
(the "Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards
on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the
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Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and
their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that
a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating
the design and operating effectiveness of internal
confrol based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Parent’s internal
financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's
infernal financial control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain
to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions
and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention
or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have
a material effect on the financial statements.



Agro Tech Foods Limited

ANNEXURE-A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial
conftrols over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management
override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changesin conditions, or that the degree
of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us, the Parent,
has, in all material respects, an adequate internal

financial controls system over financial reporting and
such internal financial controls over financial reporting
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were operating effectively as at March 31, 2020,
based on the criteria for internal financial control over
financial reporting established by the Parent
considering the essential components of internal
conftrol stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

Sumit Trivedi

Partner

Membership No. 209354
UDIN: 20209354AAAAFR4376

Place: Secunderabad
Date: May 28, 2020



Agro Tech Foods Limited

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2020

(Al amounts are in ¥ millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)
Notes As at As at

Particulars March 31,2020 March 31, 2019
I Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 4 1,715.81 1,.588.74
Capital work-in-progress 4 549.47 123.51
Right of use assets 5 221.16 -
Infangible assets 6 191.82 213.93
Other financial assets 7 24.78 29.28
Deferred tax assets (net) 33 22.97 17.63
Other non-current assets 8 269.67 370.83
Total non-current assets 2,995.68 2,343.92
Current assets
Inventories 9 779.88 840.25
Financial assets
0] Investments 10 139.24 350.66
(i Trade receivables 11 749.36 810.13
(i)  Cash and cash equivalents 12(0) 50.54 44.28
(iv)  Bank balances other than (i) above 12(b) 4.24 4.32
(v)  Other financial assets 13 121.68 145.27
Other current assets 14 231.55 156.49
Total current assets 2,076.49 2,351.40
Total assets 5,072.17 4,695.32
Il Equity and liabilities
Equity
EqQuity share capital 15 243.69 243.69
Other equity 16 3,843.74 3,5620.21
Total equity attributable to owners of the Company 4,087.43 3,763.90
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
0] Borrowings 17 37.60 -
(i Lease liabilities 18 144.59 -
Provisions 19 20.64 17.23
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 33 91.94 131.73
Total non-current liabilities 294.77 148.96
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
0) Trade payables 20
- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 64.40 44.38
- Totol outstandling dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enferprises 418.31 500.56
(i Lease liabilities 21 16.86 -
(i) Other financial liabilities 22 95.74 55.46
Other current liabilities 23 55.40 37.80
Provisions 24 39.26 54.26
Total current liabilities 689.97 782.46
Total equity and liabilities 5,072.17 4,695.32
The accompanying notes 1 to 80 are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
In terms of our report attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants Sachin Gopal Lt.Gen.D.B. Singh
F.R.N: 117366W/W-100018 Managing Director & CEO Director
Sumit Trivedi DIN 07439079 DIN 00239637
Partner K P N Srinivas Jyoti Chawla
Membership No.209354 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Place: Secunderabad Place: Gurugram
Date: May 28, 2020 Date: May 28, 2020
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Agro Tech Foods Limited

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

(Al amounts are in ¥ millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

Particulars Notes For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
| Revenue from operations
Sale of products 25 8,347.40 8,231.83
Other operating revenues 25 7.22 4.78
8,354.62 8,236.61
I Otftherincome 26 34.19 38.03
Il Total income (I+11) 8,388.81 8,274.64
IV Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 27 4,310.16 4,195.74
Purchases of stock-in-frade 28 1,324.77 1,426.64
Changes in inventories of finished goods and stock-in-trade 29 76.86 (0.20)
Employee benefit expense 30 547.58 556.13
Finance costs 31 17.68 0.94
Depreciation and amortisation expense 4,5 6 193.88 173.06
Other expenses 32 1,511.53 1.411.16
Total expenses 7.982.46 7,763.47
V  Profit before exceptional items and tax (lli-1V) 406.35 511.17
VI Exceptional items 37 - -
VIl Profit before tax (V-VI) 406.35 511.17
VIII Tax expense 33(a)
Current tfax 113.00 182.47
Deferred tax (45.13) (13.84)
Total tax expense 67.87 168.63
X Profit for the year (VII-VIIl) 338.48 342.54
X Other comprehensive income/(loss)
[fems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
() Remeasurement of the net defined benefit plans (4.40) 0.27
(ii) Income-tax relating to above 33(b) 1.11 -
[tems that will be reclassified subsequently to the statement of profit or loss
(i) Exchange differences in franslating the financial statements of foreign subsidiaries  6.97 5.80
Total Other comprehensive income/ (loss) 3.68 6.07
Xl Total comprehensive income for the year (IX+X)* 342.16 348.61
*Aftributable to owners of the Company
Earnings per share (of ¥ 10 each) 39
Basic (in %) 14.35 14.63
Diluted (in %) 14.35 14.61
The accompanying notes 1 to 50 are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements
In ferms of our report attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants .
F.R.N: 117366W/W-100018 Sachin Gopal

Managing Director & CEO

DIN 07439079

Sumit Trivedi

Partner K P N Srinivas
Membership No.209354 Chief Financial Officer
Place: Secunderabad Place: Gurugram

Date: May 28, 2020 Date: May 28, 2020
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Lt.Gen.D.B. Singh
Director
DIN 00239637

Jyoti Chawla
Company Secretary



Agro Tech Foods Limited

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

(Al amounts are in ¥ millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

For the year ended For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
A Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax 406.35 511.17
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation expense 193.88 173.06
Loss on sale/ retirement of property, plant and equipment (net) 1.94 1.89
Gain on disposal of investments in mutual funds units (31.80) (27.53)
Fair value gain on financial assets mandatorily measured at fair value through profit and loss  (0.24) (0.66)
Interest income (2.15) 9.84)
Finance costs 17.68 0.94
Employee share based payment expenses (13.22) 4.80
Provision for doubtful debts 0.55 4.96
Operating profit before working capital changes 572.99 658.79

Movement in working capital
Adjustments for (increase) / decrease in operating assets

Trade receivables 60.22 315.17)
Inventories 60.37 105.00
Other financial assets 29.87 97.34
Other assets (45.17) (1.61)
Adjustments for increase / (decrease) in operating liabilitites

Trade payables and other financial liabilities (136.55) (14.39)
Provisions (17.53) (11.54)
Ofther liabilities 22.86 (2.65)
Cash generated from operations 547.06 505.83
Income taxes paid (net) (118.51) (192.85)
Net cash generated from operating activities (A) 428.55 312.98

B. Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment (685.04) (290.75)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 6.17 9.64
Interest received 0.37 12.31
Purchase of investments in mutual funds (3,620.50) (3.839.10)
Proceeds from sale of investments in mutual funds 3,863.96 3,5616.63
Bank balances not considered as cash and cash equivalents (net) - 217.54
Net cash (used in) investing activities (B) (435.04) (373.73)
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Agro Tech Foods Limited

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (continued)

(Al amounts are in ¥ millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

For the year ended For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

C. Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from term loans availed from bank 47.00 -
Proceeds from sale of treasury shares 65.88 84.65
Dividend paid (including dividend distribution tax) (71.29) (70.75)
Finance costs (including in relation to lease liability) (20.97) (0.94)
Repayment of lease liability (14.84) -
Net cash generated from financing activities (C) 5.78 12.96
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (0.71) 47.79)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 44.28 86.27
Exchange differences on franslation of foreign currency 6.97 5.80
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year (Refer Note 12 (a)) 50.54 44.28

Notes:

1. The above Consolidated Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" as set out in
Ind AS - 7 "Statement of Cash Flows".

2. Reconciliation of liabilities from financing activities

Particulars As at Proceeds Non cash As at
March 31, 2019 changes March 31, 2020
Current / Non
current
Borrowings - Non current - 47.00 (9.40) 37.60
Other financial liabilities - - 9.40 9.40

The accompanying notes 1 to 50 are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

In terms of our report attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants

F.R.N: 117366W/W-100018 Sachin Gopal Lt.Gen.D.B. Singh
Managing Director & CEO Director

Sumit Trivedi DIN 07439079 DIN 00239637

Partner K P N Srinivas Jyoti Chawla

Membership No.209354 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place: Secunderabad Place: Gurugram

Date: May 28, 2020 Date: May 28, 2020
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Agro Tech Foods Limited

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Al amounts are in ¥ millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

> N

Group information

Agro Tech Foods Limited (‘the Parent' or 'the
Company") is a company domiciled in India, with
its reqgistered office situated at 31, Sarojini Devi
Road, Secunderabad, Telangana - 500 003, India.
The Company has been incorporated under the
provisions of Indian Companies Act and its equity
shares are listed on the National Stock Exchange
(NSE) and Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) in India.
The Company is primarily engaged in the business
of manufacturing and trading of edible oils and
food products.

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the
Company for the year ended March 31, 2020
comprise the Company (Agro Tech Foods Limited)
and its wholly owned subsidiaries - Sundrop Foods
India Private Limited (incorporated in India), Agro
Tech Foods (Bangladesh) Pvt. Ltd. (incorporated
in Bangladesh) and Sundrop Foods Lanka (Private)
Limited (incorporated in Srilanka). These entities
have together been referred to as the 'Group’.

Basis of preparation

. Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of
Companies Act, 2013 (the 'Act’) read together with
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 (as amended) and other relevant
provisions of the Act. The financial statements have
also been prepared in accordance with the
relevant presentation requirments of the Act.

Functional and presentation currency

These consolidated financial statements are
presented in Indian Rupees X), which is also the
Company's functional currency. Allamounts have
been rounded-off to two decimal places to the
nearest millions unless otherwise indicated.

Basis of prepratation and presentation

These financial statements have been prepared
on historical cost convention and on an accrual
basis except for certain financial instruments that
are measured at fair values at the end of each
reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value
of the consideration given in exchange for goods
and services.
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Fair value is the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly fransaction between market participants
at the measurement date, regardless of whether
that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technigque. In estimating the fair
value of an asset or liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability
if market participants would take those
characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date.

Operating Cycle

All assets have been classified as current or non-
current as per the Group’s normal operating cycle
and other criteria set out in the Schedule Ill to the
Act and Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial
Statements, based on the nature of the products
and the fime between the acquisition of assets
for processing and their realization in cash and
cash equivalents.

Use of estimates and judgements

In preparing these consolidated financial
statements, management has made judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of accounting policies and the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses. Actual results may differ from these
estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised
prospectively.

The following are the critical judgements and
estimates that have been made in the process of
applying the Group's accounting policies that
have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

i) Useful lives of Property, plant and equipment

The charge in respect of periodic depreciation is
derived after determining an estimate of an asset's
expected useful life and expected residual value
at the end of its life. The useful lives and residual
values of Group's assets are determined by
Management at the time the asset is acquired and
is reviewed at the end of each reporting period.
The lives are based on historical experience with
similar assets as well as anticipation of future
events, which may impact their life, such as
changes in technology. This reassessment may
result in change in depreciation expense in future
periods.



Agro Tech Foods Limited

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(Al amounts are in ¥ millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

ii) Actuarial valuation

The determination of Group's liability towards
defined benefit obligation to employees is made
through independent actuarial valuation
including determination of amounts to be
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss and
in other comprehensive income. Such valuation
depend upon assumptions determined after
taking into account inflation, seniority, promotion
and other relevant factors. Information about such
valuation is provided in the notes to the financial
statements.

iii) Impairment of intangible assets having
indefinite useful life

Infangible assets with indefinite life are tested for
impairment on an annual basis and whenever
there is an indication that the recoverable amount
of a cash generating unit is less than its carrying
amount based on a number of factors including
operating results, business plans, future cash flows
and economic conditions. The recoverable
amount of cash generating units is determined
based on higher of value-in-use and fair value less
cost to sell.

Market related information and estimates are used
to determine the recoverable amount. Key
assumptions on which management has based
its determination of recoverable amount include
estimated long term growth rates, weighted
average cost of capital and estimated operating
margins. Cash flow projections take into account
past experience and represent management’s
best estimate about future developments.

iv) Fair value measurement of financial instruments

Some of the Group’s assets and liabilities are
measured at fair value for financial reporting
purposes. In estimating the fair value of an asset
or liability, the Group uses market-observable data
to the extent available. Where Level 1 inputs are
not available, the fair value is measured using
valuation techniques, including the discounted
cash flow model, which involves various judgments
and assumptions. The Group also engages third
party qualified valuers to perform the valuation in
certain cases. The appropriateness of valuation
techniques and inputs to the valuation model are
reviewed by the Management,

Further information about the assumptions made
in measuring fair values is included in the following
notes:

- Note 15 (e) - Share based payments;

- Note 46 - Financial instruments,

134

v) Income Taxes

The Group’s tax jurisdiction is India. Significant
judgments are involved in estimating budgeted
profits for the purpose of paying advance tax,
determining the provision for income taxes,
including amount expected to be paid /
recovered for uncertain tax positions.

vi) Other estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial
statements involves estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amount of assets,
liabilities, disclosure of contingent liabilities at the
date of financial statements and the reported
amount of revenues and expenses for the
reporting period.

Specifically, the Group estimates the probability
of collection of accounts receivable by analysing
historical payment patterns, customer
concentrations, customer credit-worthiness and
current economic frends. If the financial condition
of a customer deteriorates, additional allowances
may be required.

vii) Estimation uncertainty relating to COVID-19
outbreak:

The Group has considered intfernal and certain
external sources of information up to the date of
approval of the financial statements in
determining the impact on various elements of its
financial statements. The Group has used the
principles of prudence in applying judgments,
estimates and assumptions including sensitivity
analysis and based on the current estimates, the
Group expects to fully recover the carrying
amount of trade receivables intangible assets,
investments and inventories. The eventual
outcome of impact of the global health
pandemic may be different from those estimated
as on the date of approval of these consolidated
financial statements.

3. Significant accounting policies
(a) Basis of consolidation

i. Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group
has control. The Group controls an entity when
the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its
power to direct the relevant activities of the entity.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the Group. They
are deconsolidated from the date that control
ceaqses.
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The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for business combinations by the Group.

The Group combines the financial statements of
the parent and its subsidiaries line by line adding
together like items of assets, liabilities, equity,
income and expenses. Inter Company
fransactions, balances and unrealised gains on
fransactions between Group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

ii. Transactions eliminated on consolidation

Intra - Group balances and fransactions, and any
unrealised income and expenses arising from intra
- Group transactions, are eliminated. Unrealised
gains arising from fransactions with equity
accounted investees are eliminated against the
investment to the extent of the Group’s interest in
the Investee. Unrealised losses are eliminated in
the same way as unrealised gains, but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

iii. Subsidiaries considered in the consolidated
financial statements:

Name of the Subsidiary Country of Ownership interest (in %)

Company Incorporation |As at March | As at March
31,2020 31, 2019

Sundrop Foods India 100 100

India Private Limited

Agro Tech Foods Bangladesh 100 100

(Bangladesh) Pvt. Ltd

Sundrop Foods Lanka | Srilanka 100 100

(Private) Limited

iv. Principles of consolidation

These Consolidated Financial Statements have
been prepared by consolidation of the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries on
a line-by-line basis after fully eliminating the inter-
company transactions.

135

(b) Property, plant and equipment

i. Recognition and measurement

ltfems of property, plant and equipment, are
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Cost of anitem of property, plant and equipment
includes its purchase price, duties, taxes (other
than those subsequently recoverable from the tax
authorities), after deducting trade discounts and
rebates, any directly attributable cost of bringing
the item to its infended use, including relevant
borrowing costs for qualifying assets and any
expected costs of decommissioning.

The cost of a self-constructed item of property,
plant and equipment comprises the cost of
materials, direct labour and any other costs
directly attributable to bringing the item to its
infended working condition and estimated costs
of dismantling, removing and restoring the site on
which it is located, wherever applicable.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant
and equipment have different useful lives, then
they are accounted for as separate items (major
components) of property, plant and equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property,
plant and equipment is recognised in the
statement of profit and loss.

ii. Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is
probable that the future economic benefits
associated with the expenditure will flow to the
Group.

iii. Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated on cost of items of
property, plant and equipment less their estimated
residual value using straight line method over the
useful life of assets estimated by internal
assessment and technical valuation carried out
wherever necessary, and is recognised in the
statement of profit and loss. Depreciation for assets
purchased/ sold during the period is
proportionately charged.
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The range of estimated useful lives of items of
property, plant and equipment are as follows:

Asset Useful Life
Buildings

Buildings (other than factory buildings)

other than RCC frame structure 30 years
Factory buildings 30 years
Fences, wells, tube-wells 5 years
Roads

Carpeted Roads - RCC 10 years
Plant and Machinery

Plant and Machinery other than

continuous process plant 15 years
Furniture and fittings 10 years
Motor vehicles

Motor buses, motor lorries and motor cars* 5 years
Office equipment 5 years
Computers and data processing units

servers and networks* 5 years
End-user devices such as desktops,

laptops etfc.* 2 to 4 years
Laboratory Equipment 10 years
Electrical installations and equipment 10 years
Servers and networks* 5 years
Handsets* 2 years
Assets given to employees under a scheme* 5 years

* The Group believes the useful lives as given
above best represent the useful life of these assets
based on internal assessment and technical
evaluation carried out where necessary, which is
different from the useful lives as prescribed under
Part C of Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013.

Freehold land is not depreciated.

Leasehold improvements are amortised over a
period of the lease or useful life of asset whichever
is lower.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of
depreciation of property, plant and equipment
are reviewed at each financial year-end and
adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

(c) Intangible assets

Intangible assets that the Group controls and from
which it expects future economic benefits are
capitalised upon acquisition and measured
initially for separately acquired assets, at cost
comprising of the purchase price (including import
duties and non-refundable taxes) and directly
attributable costs to prepare the assets for its
infended use. The useful life of an infangible asset
is considered finite where there is a likelihood of
technical and technological obsolescence.
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Useful life and Amortisation

Amortisation of intangible assets having finite
useful lives is recognised on a straight-line basis
over the useful lives of the asset from the date of
capitalisation as below:

Asset Useful life

Computer software 5to 10 years

The estimated useful life is reviewed atf the end of
each reporting period and the effect of any
changes in estimate is accounted for
prospectively.

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life
are not subjected to amortisation and are tested
for impairment annually or more frequently if
events or changesin circumstances indicate that
it might be impaired.

(d) Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an
indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation
and are tested annually for impairment, or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that they might be impaired. Other assets
are tested for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that their
carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the
purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable
amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost
to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an
individual asset basis unless the asset does not
generate cash flows that are largely independent
of those from other assets. In such cases, the
recoverable amount is determined for the CGU
to which the asset belongs. If such assets are
considered to be impaired, the impairment to be
recognised in the statement of profit and loss is
measured by the amount by which the carrying
value of the assets exceeds the estimated
recoverable amount of the asset. An impairment
loss is reversed in the statement of profit and loss if
there has been a change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount. The
carrying amount of the asset is increased to its
revised recoverable amount, provided that this
amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of any
accumulated amortisation or depreciation) had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years.
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(e) Leases

The Group assesses whether a contfract contains
alease, at inception of a contract. A contract is,
or contfains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration. To
assess whether a contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset, the Group
assesses whether, (i) the contract involves the use
of an identified asset (ii) the Group has
substantially all of the economic benefits from use
of the asset through the period of the lease and
(iiiy the Group has the right to direct the use of the
asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the
Group recognizes aright-of-use asset ("ROU”) and
a corresponding lease liability for all lease
arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for
leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-
term leases) and low value leases. For these short-
term and low value leases, the Group recognizes
the lease payments as an operating expense on
a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.
Certain lease arrangements includes the options
to extend or terminate the lease before the end
of the lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities
includes these options when it is reasonably
certain that they will be exercised.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at
cost, which comprises the initial amount of the
lease liability adjusted for any lease payments
made at or prior to the commencement date of
the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease
incentives. They are subsequently measured at
cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the
commencement date on a straight-line basis over
the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the
underlying asset. Right of use assets are evaluated
for recoverability whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that their carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose
of impairment testing, the recoverable amount
(i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and
the value-in-use) is determined on an individual
asset basis unless the asset does not generate
cash flows that are largely independent of those
from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable
amount is determined for the Cash Generating
Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.
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The lease liability is initially measured at amortized
cost at the present value of the future lease
payments. The lease payments are discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not
readily determinable, using the incremental
borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these
leases. Lease liabilities are remeasured with @
corresponding adjustment to the related right of
use asset if the Group changes its assessment if
whether it will exercise an extension or a
termination option.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been
separately presented in the Consolidated
Balance Sheet and lease payments have been
classified as financing cash flows.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of weighted
average cost (including prime cost, non
recoverable taxes / duties and other overheads
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition) and estimated net
readlisable value, after providing for obsolescence,
where appropriate. The comparison of cost and
net realisable value is made on an item-by-item
basis. The net readlisable value of materials in
process is determined with reference to the selling
prices of related finished goods. Raw materials,
packing materials and other supplies held for use
in production of inventories are not written down
below cost exceptin cases where material prices
have declined, and it is estimated that the cost
of the finished products will exceed their net
realisable value. The provision for inventory
obsolescence is assessed regularly based on
estimated usage and shelf life of products.

Raw materials, packing materials and stores and
spares are valued at cost computed on moving
weighted average basis. The cost includes
purchase price, inward freight and other
incidental expenses net of refundable duties,
levies and taxes, where applicable.

Work-in-progress is valued at input material cost
plus conversion cost as applicable.

Stock-in-trade is valued at the lower of net
realisable value and cost (including prime cost
and other overheads incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and
condition), computed on a moving weighted
average basis.

Finished goods are valued at lower of net
realisable value and cost (including prime cost,
duties and other overheads incurred in bringing
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the inventories to their present location and
condition).

Goods-in-transit/ with third parties and at godowns
are valued at cost which represents the costs
incurred upto the stage af which the goods are in
fransit with third parties and at godowns.

(g9) Financial instruments

i. Recognition and initial measurement

The Group initially recognises financial assets and
financial liabilities when it becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. All
financial assets and liabilities are measured at fair
value on initial recognition. Transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue
of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair
value through Statement of Profit and Loss (FVTPL))
are added to or deducted from the fair value of
the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly aftributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit and loss are recognised immediately
in Statement of Profit and Loss. Regular way
purchase and sale of financial assetfs are
accounted for at frade date.

ii. Classification and subsequent measurement
Financial assets
Financial assets carried at amortised cost

A financial asset is subsequently measured at
amortised cost if it is held within a business model
whose objective is to hold the asset in order to
collect contfractual cash flows and the
contractual terms of the financial asset give rise
on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income

A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income if it is
held within a business model whose objective is
achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets. Such assets are
subsequently measured at fair value, with
unrealised gains and losses arising from changes
in the fair value being recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

A financial asset which is not classified in any of
the above categories are subsequently fair valued
through profit or loss. Financial assets at FVTPL are
measured at fair value at the end of each
reporting period, with any gains and losses arising
on remeasurement recognised in statement of
profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in
statement of profit or loss incorporates any
dividend or interest earned on the financial asset
and is included in the “other income’ line item.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value,
with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement
recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. The
net gain or loss recognised in Statement of Profit
and Loss incorporates any interest paid on the
financial liability.

Other financial liabilities are subsequently carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

iii. Derecognition
Financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset
and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another party.

Financial liabilities

The Group derecognises a financial liability when
its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled, or expire.

The Group also derecognises a financial liability
when its terms are modified and the cash flows
under the modified terms are substantially
different. In this case, a new financial liability
based on the modified terms is recognised at fair
value. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability extinguished and
a new financial liability with modified terms is
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

iv. Impairment

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Group applies
expected credit loss (ECL) model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss.
The Group follows ‘simplified approach’ for
recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade
receivables. The application of simplified
approach does not require the Group to frack
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changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises
impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs
at each reporting date, right from its initial
recognition. For recognition of impairment loss on
other financial assets and risk exposure, the Group
determines that whether there has been a
significant increase in the credit risk since initial
recognition. If credit risk has not increased
significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for
impairment loss. However, if credit risk has
increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If in
subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument
improves such that there is no longer a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then
the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss
allowance based on 12 month ECL.

v. Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset
and the net amount is presented in the balance
sheet when, and only when, the Group currently
has a legally enforceable right to set off the
amounts and it infends either 1o settle them on a
net basis or readlise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when
conftrol of the products being sold is fransferred to
the customer, which is mainly upon delivery and
when there are no longer any unfulfilled
obligations.

Revenue is measured at fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, after
deducting any trade discounts, volume rebates
and any taxes or duties collected on behalf of the
government such as goods and services tax, efc.
Returns, discounts, allowances and rebates are
estimated using judgement based on historical
experience and the specific terms of the
arrangement with the customers.

Otherincome:

Interest income is recognized using the effective
interest rate (EIR) method. Dividend income on
investments is recognised when the right to receive
dividend is established.

The "effective interest rate" is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments or
receipts through the expected life of the financial
instrument to:

a. the gross carrying amount of financial asset; or
b. the amortised cost of financial liability
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Foreign currency transactions and translations

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially
recorded by the Group at their functional
currency spot rates at the date the transaction.
The date of transaction for the purpose of
determining the exchange rate on initial
recognition of the related asset, expense or
income (part of it) is the date on which the entity
initially recognises the non-monetary asset or non-
monetary liability arising from payment or receipt
of advance consideration. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currency are
translated at the functional currency spot rates
of exchange at the reporting date. Exchange
differences that arise on settlement of monetary
items or on reporting at each balance sheet date
of the Group’s monetary items at the closing rates
are recognised as income or expenses in the
period in which they arise. Non-monetary items
which are carried at historical cost denominated
in a foreign currency are reported using the
exchange rates at the date of fransaction. Non-
monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates
at the date when the fair value is determined.

Translation of financial statements of foreign
entities

On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of
foreign operations are translated intfo ¥ (Indian
Rupees) at the exchange rate prevailing at the
reporting date and their statements of profit and
loss are translated at exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. For practical
reasons, the group uses an average rate to
franslate income and expense items, if the
average rate approximates the exchange rates
at the dates of the fransactions. The exchange
differences arising on translation for consolidation
are recognised in consolidated statement of
Other Comprehensive Income (COCI’). On
disposal of a foreign operation, the component
of OCl relating to that particular foreign operation
is reclassified to the Consolidated Statement of
Profit and Loss.

Income-tax

Income-tax comprises current and deferred tax.
It is recognised in the statement of profit and loss
except to the extent that it relates to an item
recognised directly in equity or in other
comprehensive income.
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i. Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable
or receivable on the taxable income or loss for
the year and any adjustment to the tax payable
or receivable in respect of previous years. The
amount of current tax reflects the best estimate
of the tax amount expected to be paid or
received after considering the uncertainty, if any
related to income taxes. It is measured using tax
rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively
enacted by the reporting date. Current tax assets
and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is
a legally enforceable right to setf-off the
recognised amounts, and it is infended to realise
the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or
simultaneously.

ii. Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in the financial statements and
the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax assets recognised or unrecognised
are reviewed at each reporting date and are
recognised / reduced to the extent that it is
probable / no longer probable respectively that
the related tax benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based on the
laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax
conseqguences that would follow from the manner
in which the Group expects, at the reporting date,
to recover or setftle the carrying amount of ifs
assets and liabilities.
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
liabilities and assets, and the relate to income tax
levied by the same tax authority on the same
taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they
intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on
a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be
realised simultfaneously.

Provisions and contingent liabilities
i. General

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of apast event, itis probable that the Group
will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of
the obligation. When the Group expects some or
all of a provision to be reimbursed, the expense
relating o a provision is presented in the statement
of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material,
provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax
rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks
specific to the liability. When discounting is used,
the increase in the provision due to the passage
of time is recognised as a finance cost.

ii. Contingent liabilities

A disclosure for contingent liabilities is made where
there is a possible obligation or a present
obligation that may probably not require an
outflow of resources. When there is a possible or
a present obligation where the likelihood of
outflow of resources is remote, no provision or
disclosure is made.

ili. Onerous Contracts

Provision for onerous confracts i.e. contracts
where the expected unavoidable cost of meeting
the obligations under the contract exceed the
economic benefits expected to be received
under it, are recognised when it is probable that
an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be recognised to settle a present
obligation as aresult of an obligating event based
on the reliable estimate of such an obligation.

Employee benefits
i. Short-term employee benefits

All employee benefits falling due wholly within
twelve months of rendering the services are
classified as short-term employee benefits, which
include benefits like salaries, wages, short-term
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compensated absences and performance
incentives and are recognised as expenses in the
period in which the employee renders the related
service.

ii. Post-employment benefits
Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment
benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed
conftributions into a separate entity and will have
no legal or constructive obligation to pay further
amounts. Obligations for contributions to defined
conftribution plans are recognised as an employee
benefit expense in the statement of profit and loss
in the periods during which the related services
are rendered by employees.

Defined benefit plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment
benefit plan other than a defined contribution
plan. The Group’s net obligation in respect of
defined benefit plansis calculated separately for
each plan by estimating the amount of future
benefit that employees have earned in the
current and prior periods, discounting that amount
and deducting the fair value of any plan assets.

The calculation of defined benefit obligation is
performed annually by a qualified actuary using
the projected unit credit method. When the
calculation results in a potential asset for the
Group, the recognised asset is limited to the
present value of economic benefits available in
the form of any future refunds from the plan or
reductions in future contributions to the plan (‘the
asset ceiling”). In order to calculate the present
value of economic benefits, consideration is given
to any minimum funding requirements.

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit
liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses,
the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and
the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding
interest), are recognised in OCI. The Group
determines the net interest expense (income) on
the net defined benefit liability (asset) for the
period by applying the discount rate used to
measure the defined benefit obligation at the
beginning of the annual period to the then-net
defined benefit liability (asset), taking into
account any changes in the net defined benefit
liability (asset) during the period as a result of
contributions and benefit payments. Net interest
expense and other expenses related to defined
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benefit plans are recognised in the statement of
profit and loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when
aplanis curtailed, the resulting change in benefit
that relates to past service (‘past service cost’ or
‘past service gain’) or the gain or loss on
curtailment is recognised immediately in the
statement of profit and loss. The Group recognises
gains and losses on the settlement of a defined
benefit plan when the settflement occurs.

iii. Other long-term employee benefits

All employee benefits (other than post-
employment benefits and termination benefits)
which do not fall due wholly within twelve months
afterthe end of the period in which the employees
render the related services are determined based
on actuarial valuation or discounted present
value method carried out at each balance sheet
date. The expected cost of accumulating
compensated absences is determined by
actuarial valuation performed by an independent
actuary as at 31st March every year using
projected unit credit method on the additional
amount expected to be paid / availed as a result
of the unused entitlement that has accumulated
at the balance sheet date. Expense on non-
accumulating compensated absences is
recognised in the period in which the absences
occur.

iv. Voluntary retirement scheme benefits

Voluntary retirement scheme benefits are
recognised as an expense in the year they are
incurred.

(m) Share-based payments

Employees of the Parent Company receive
remuneration in the form of share-based
payments in consideration of the services
rendered. Under the equity settled share based
payment, the fair value on the grant date of the
awards given to employees is recognised as
‘employee benefit expenses’ with a
corresponding increase in equity over the vesting
period. The fair value of the options at the grant
date is calculated by an independent valuer basis
Black Scholes model. At the end of each reporting
period, apart from the non-market vesting
condition, the expense is reviewed and adjusted
to reflect changes to the level of options expected
to vest. The Parent Company has availed
exemption given under Ind AS 101 and has not
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applied the fair value to the equity instruments
that were vested before the date of transition to
Ind ASi.e. 1 April 2016.

(n) Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement
of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include
cash on hand, in banks, demand deposit with
bank and other short-term, highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three
months or less, that are readily convertible to
known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of change in value, and
bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within
borrowings under current liabilities as on Balance
Sheet date.

(o) Earnings per share

Basic Earnings Per Share ('EPS") is computed by
dividing the net profit attributable to the equity
shareholders by the weighted average number
of equity shares outstanding during the year. The
weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year is adjusted for treasury
shares. Diluted earnings per share is computed
by dividing the net profit by the weighted average
number of equity shares considered for deriving
basic earnings per share and also the weighted
average number of equity shares that could have
been issued upon conversion of all dilutive
potential equity shares. Dilutive potential equity
shares are deemed converted as of the beginning
of the year, unless issued at a later date. In
computing diluted earnings per share, only

142

potential equity shares that are dilutive and that
either reduces earnings per share or increases loss
per share are included. The number of shares and
potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted
retrospectively for all periods presented for the
share splits.

(q) Borrowing costs

"

Borrowing costs consist of intferest and other
ancillary costs that the Group incurs in connection
with the borrowing of funds. The borrowing costs
directly attributable to the acquisition or
construction of any asset that takes a substantial
period of time to get ready for its infended use or
sale are capitalised. All the other borrowing costs
are recognised in the statement of profit and loss
within finance costs of the period in which they
are incurred.

Treasury shares

The Parent Company has created an Employee
Welfare Trust - Agro Tech ESOP Trust ("ATET") for
implementation of the schemes that are notified
or may be notified from time to time by the Parent
Company under the plan, providing share based
payment to its employees. ATET purchases shares
of the Parent Company out of funds borrowed
from the Parent Company . The Parent Company
treats ATET as its extension and shares held by ATET
are treated as freasury shares. Own equity
instruments (freasury shares) are recognised at cost
and deducted from equity. Profit on sale of
tfreasury shares by ATET is recognised in ATET
reserve.
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Agro Tech Foods Limited

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(Al amounts are in ¥ millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

Particulars As at As af
March 31,2020 March 31, 2019
Note 7 - Other non current financials assets
Security deposits :
Unsecured, considered good 24.78 29.28
Unsecured, considered doubftful 0.56 0.56
Less: Allowance for doubtful deposits (0.56) (0.56)
Total 2478 _29.28
Note 8 - Other non-current assets
Capital advances 86.53 88.28
Advances other than capital advances :
- Advances with Government, public bodies and others 72.38 99.46
- Other advances (includes commercial advances and prepaid expenses) 14.09 17.59
- Prepaid rent - 71.73
- Income-tax assets (net) 96.67 93.77
Considered doubtful:
Advances with Government and public bodies 6.12 6.12
Other advances 34.32 22.62
Less: Allowance for doubtful advances (40.44) (28.74)
Total _269.67 _370.83
Note 9 - Inventories
Raw materials 362.41 354.14
Raw materials-in-transit 9.21 12.39
Packing materials 95.92 87.71
Packing materials-in-transit 10.82 7.63
Finished goods 272.04 346.36
Finished goods-in-transit 24.47 27.33
Stock-in-trade 5.01 4.69
Total ~779.88 © 84025

Notes :

() The consumption of inventories recognised as an expense during the year has been disclosed in Notes 27,
28, 29 and 32.

(i) The consumption of inventories recognised as an expense includes % Nil (during 2018-19: % 0.30) in respect
of write-downs of inventory to net realisable value, and has been reduced by % Nil (during 2018-19 : Z Nil)
in respect of reversal of such write-downs.

(i) Refer note 3(f) for method of valuation for inventories.
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Agro Tech Foods Limited

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(Al amounts are in ¥ millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

Particul As at As at

arficulars March 31,2020 March 31, 2019

Note 10 - Current investments

Investments mandatorily measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Quoted investments in mutual funds :

BNP Paribas Liquid Fund Direct Growth 80.03 50.07

26,174.429 units of ¥ 3,057.5713 each (March 31, 2019: 17,429.181 units of ¥ 2,872.6126 each)

JM Financial Liquid Fund - Direct Plan - Growth Option - 30.05

Nil (March 31, 2019; 586,980.766 units of ¥ 51.1901 each)

Reliance Low Duration Fund - Direct Growth Plan - 110.25

Nil (March 31, 2019: 41,758.214 units of ¥ 2,640.3987 each)

Reliance Money Market Fund - Direct Growth Plan - 80.18

Nil (March 31, 2019: 28,238.437 units of ¥ 2,839.3181 each)

Franklin India Ultra-Short Bond Fund-Super Institutional Plan-Direct Growth - 80.11

Nil (March 31, 2019: 3,036,306.637 units of ¥ 26.3838 each)

HDFC Liquid Fund-Direct Plan-Growth Option 50.04 -

12,807.929 units of ¥ 3,906.6111 each (March 31, 2019: Nil)

Baroda Liquid Fund - Plan B Growth 9.17 -

4,004.776 units of ¥ 2,289.2695 each (March 31, 2019 Nil)

Total 139.24 350.66

Aggregate book value of quoted investments - at cost 139.00 350.00

Aggregate market value of quoted investments 139.24 350.66

Note 11 - Trade receivables

Unsecured, considered good 749.36 810.13

Doubtful 55.64 56.25

Less: Allowance for doubtful receivable (55.64) (56.25)

Total 749.36 810.13

Notes:

() The average credit period for the customers is in the range of 7 days to 30 days depending on customer
groups.

(i) Ofthe trade receivables balance X 467.62 (as at March 31, 2019 ;% 550.90) is due from one of the Company's
large customer. There are no other customers who represent more than 10% of the total balance of frade
receivables.

(i) The Group has used a practical expedient by computing the expected credit loss allowance for doubtful
frade receivables based on a provisioning matrix. The provision matrix takes into account historical credit
loss experience and adjusted for forward-looking estimates. The expected credit loss allowance is based
on the ageing of the receivables which are due and the rates used in the provision matrix.

(iv) Movement in the expected credit loss allowance Forthe year ended Forthe year ended

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Balance at the beginning of the year 56.25 51.29
Movement in expected credit loss allowance on trade receivables (net)  (0.61) 4,96
Balance at the end of the year 55.64 56.25
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Agro Tech Foods Limited

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(Al amounts are in ¥ millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

. As at As atf

Particulars March 31,2020 March 31, 2019
Note 12 - Cash and bank balances

(a) Cash and cash equivalents;

Balances with banks - in current accounts 42.99 40.91
Cheques on hand 7.15 0.60
Fixed deposits 0.40 2.77
Total 50.54 44,28
(b) Other bank balances: - -
Balances held as margin money against guarantees given* 0.87 0.87
Unpaid dividend accounts 3.37 3.45
Total 4.24 4.32
*Includes deposit aggregating to Z Nil (March 31, 2019: % Nil) with - -
remaining maturity of more than 12 months from the Balance Sheet date.

Note 13 - Other financial assets

Insurance claims receivable (Refer Note 37) 114.38 144.09
Others (including security deposits, loan to employees and interest accrued) 7.30 1.18
Total 121.68 145.27
Note 14 - Other current assets

Balances with government authorities 177.17 108.21
Advances (includes commercial advances, employee advances and prepaid expenses) 54.38 47.59
Prepaid rent - 0.69
Unsecured, considered doubtful

Other advances - 11.70
Less: Provision for doubtful advances - (11.70)
Total 231.55 156.49
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Agro Tech Foods Limited

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(Al amounts are in ¥ millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

Particul As at As at
arficulars March 31,2020 March 31, 2019
Note 15 - Share capital
Authorised
Equity shares
25,000,000 ( March 31, 2019: 25,000,000), equity shares of ¥ 10 each 250.00 250.00
Preference shares
1,000,000 (March 31, 2019: 1,000,000), cumulative redeemable
preference shares of ¥ 100 each 100.00 100.00
350.00 350.00
Issued
Equity shares
24,372,139 (March 31, 2019: 24,372,139), equity shares of ¥ 10 each 243.72 243.72
243.72 243.72
Subscribed and fully paid-up
Equity shares fully paid
24,369,264 (March 31, 2019: 24,369,264), equity shares of ¥ 10
each fully paid up 243.69 243.69
243.69 243.69

Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to the equity shares:

The Company has a single class of equity shares. Accordingly, all equity shares rank equally with regard to
dividends and share in the Company’s residual assets. The equity shares are entitled to receive dividend as
declared from time to time. The voting rights of an equity shareholder on a poll (not on show of hands) are
in proportion to their share of the paid-up equity capital of the Company. Voting rights cannot be exercised
in respect of shares on which any call or other sums presently payable have not been paid. Failure to pay
any amount called up on shares may lead to forfeiture of the shares. On winding up of the Company, the
holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive the residual assets of the company, remaining after distriobution
of all preferential amounts in proportion o the number of equity shares held.

Notes:

(o) Shares in respect of equity in the Company held by its holding or ultimate holding company, including
shares held by subsidiaries or associates of the holding company or the ultimate holding company in

aggregate:
. As at As af

Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Number Amountin Number Amountin
of shares ¥ millions of shares T millions

Holding Company

CAG Tech (Mauritius) Limited* 12,616,619 126.17 12,616,619 126.17

12,616,619 126.17 12,616,619 126.17

* CAG Tech (Mauritius) Limited is the Holding Company and is an indirect subsidiary of Conagra Brands Inc.
(formerly known as ConAgra Foods Inc.) (The Ultimate Holding Company).
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Agro Tech Foods Limited

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(Al amounts are in ¥ millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

(b) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% of total numiber of equity shares:

. As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Number % of Number % of
of shares  holding of shares holding
CAG Tech (Mauiritius) Limited* 12,616,619 51.77 12,616,619 51.77
Pari Washington India Master Fund, Ltd. 1,902,565 7.81 1,615,325 6.63

* CAG Tech (Mauritius) Limited is the Holding Company and is an indirect subsidiary of Conagra Brands Inc.
(formerly known as ConAgra Foods Inc.) (The Ultimate Holding Company).

(c) Reconciliation of the number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and af the end of the reporting year:

As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Number Amountin Number Amountin
of shares  millions of shares ¥ millions
Balance at the beginning of the reporting year 24,369,264 243.69 24,369,264 243.69
Shares issued during the year - - - -
Balance at the end of the reporting year 24,369,264 243.69 24,369,264 243.69

(d)During the five previous financial years ended March 31, 2020, no shares have been bought back, issued
for consideration other than cash and no bonus shares have been issued.

(e) Share based payments

The Company instituted the "Agro Tech Employee Stock Option Plan' ('Plan’) to grant equity based incentives
to ifs eligible employees. The Company has established a frust called the Agro Tech ESOP Trust ("Trust") to
implement the Plan. The Company has given advance to the Trust for purchase of the Company’s shares
and advance outstanding as at March 31, 2020 is % 333.11 (R 402.28 as at March 31, 2019).

Under the plan a maximum of 23,436,926 options will be granted to the eligible employees. All these options
are planned to be settled in equity at the time of exercise at the option of the employee. These options have
an exercise price of ¥ 561.00, ¥ 597.55 and % 589.75 per share granted during the years ended March 31,
2014, March 31, 2015 and March 31, 2016 respectively and vests on a graded basis as follows:

Vesting period from the grant date Vesting schedule
On completion of 12 months 25%
On completion of 24 months 25%
On completion of 36 months 25%
On completion of 48 months 25%

Stock option activity under the plan was as follows:
Movement in the options under the scheme:

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Options outfstanding at the beginning of the year 791,927 804,987
Options granted during the year - -
Options exercised during the year (5,750) 6.799)
Options forfeited during the year (63,304) 6,261)
Options outstanding at the end of the year 722,873 791,927

Fair value Measurement:

The fair value of the employee share based payment is determined using the Black Scholes model on the
date of grant. No new grants have been issued during the year ended March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019.
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Agro Tech Foods Limited

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(Al amounts are in ¥ millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

barticul As at As af
articulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Note 16 - Other equity

(a) General reserve 147.21 145.75

This reserve is created by an appropriation fromm one component of
equity (generally retained earnings) to another, not being an item of
Other Comprehensive Income. The same can be utilised by the
Company in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
(b) Securities premium 721.29 721.29
This reserve represents the premium on issue of shares and can be
utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
(c) Retained earnings 3,168.44 2,904.54
Retained earnings represents the cumulative undistributed profits of
the Company and can be utilised in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
(d) Share options outstanding amount 148.83 163.51
Share option outstanding account relates to the share options granted
by the Company to its employees under its employee share
option plan. These will be transferred to retained earnings affer
the exercise/forfeiture of the underlying options.
(e) Treasury Shares (367.41) 437.07)
Represents the outstanding number of shares options which are
yet to be exercised by the employees o whom those
share options have been granted.
(f) Agro Tech ESOP Trust (ATET reserve) 14.29 18.07
Represents the profit/loss earned by the Agro Tech ESOP tfrust on
exercise of the share options and on disposal of forfeited share options.
(g) Foreign currency translation reserve 11.09 412
This reserve contains balance of foreign exchange differences from
franslation of financial statements of the Group’s foreign subsidiary arising
at time of consolidation of such subsidiary. Exchange differences
accounted in this reserve are reclassified to profit or loss
on the disposal of the foreign subsidiary.

Total 3,843.74 3,520.21
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Agro Tech Foods Limited

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(Al amounts are in ¥ millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

As at As af
Particulars March 31,2020 March 31, 2019
Note 17 - Non-current borrowings
Secured - at amortised cost
Term loan from bank 47.00 -
Less: Current maturities of long ferm borrowing disclosed under Note 22 -
Other financial liabilities - Current 9.40 -
Total 37.60 -
Note:

Term loan from bank is secured by first charge on all movable fixed assets (both present and future) of the
ongoing capital works in relation to a new plant at Chittoor, in respect of which loan was taken. The loan is
repayable in 20 equal quarterly installments after a moratorium of @ months from the date of first disbursement.

The term loan carries an interest of 1 year Marginal Cost of Funds based Lending Rate + 0.80% and is payable
on a monthly basis.

Note 18 - Non-current lease liabilities
Lease liabilities (Refer Note 35) 144.59 -
Total 144.59 -

Note 19 - Non-current provisions

Provision for employee benefits

Compensated absences 19.92 16.51
Gratuity (Refer Note 45) 0.72 0.72
Total 20.64 17.23
Note 20 - Trade payables
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (Refer Note (i) below ) 64.40 44.38
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and
small enterprises (Refer Note (i) below) 418.31 590.56
Total 482.71 634.94
Notes:

(i) The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has issued an Office Memorandum dated 26 August
2008 which recommends that the Micro and Small Enterprises should mention in their correspondence with
its customers the Entrepreneurs Memorandum Number as allotted after filing of the Memorandum. Accordingly,
the disclosure in respect of the amounts payable to such enterprises as at reporting date has been made in
the consolidated financial statements based on information received and available with the Group and has
been relied upon by the auditors.

Further, in the view of the Management, the impact of interest, if any, that may be payable in accordance
with the provisions of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 ("the MSMED Act") is
not expected to be material. The Group has not received any claim for interest from any supplier under the
said Act.

Based on and to the extent of information available with the Company under Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act), the relevant particulars as at reporting date are furnished
below:
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Agro Tech Foods Limited

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(Al amounts are in ¥ millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

. As at As at
Particulars March 31,2020 March 31, 2019
(@) Principal amount due to suppliers under MSMED Act, 64.40 44.38

as at the end of the year
(b) Interest accrued and due to suppliers under MSMED Act, on the - -
above amount as at the end of the year
(©) Payment made to suppliers (other than interest) beyond - -
the appointed day, during the year
(d) Interest paid to suppliers under MSMED Act (other than Section 16) - -
(e) Interest paid to suppliers under MSMED Act (Section 16) - -
() Interest due and payable to suppliers under MSMED Act, for payments already made - -
(Q) Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year - -
to suppliers under MSMED Act (b) + (f)

(ii) Includes payabiles to related parties as disclosed under Note 41.
(i) Information about Group exposure to currency and liquidity risks related
to the trade payables are included in Note 46.

Note 21 - Lease liabities

Lease liabilities (Refer Note 35) 16.86 -
Total 16.86 -
Note 22 - Other financial liabilities

Current maturities of long term borrowing (Refer Note 17) 9.40 -
Payabiles for purchase of property, plant and equipment 17.48 2.61
Unclaimed dividends 3.37 3.45
Payroll related liabilities 22.89 43.05
Other liabilities (includes outstanding liabilities for trade schemes etc.) 42.19 6.35
Interest accrued but not due 0.41 -
Total 95.74 55.46

Information about Group's exposure to currency and liquidity risks
related to the above financial liabilities are included in note 46.

Note 23 - Other current liabilities

Advance from customers 28.87 14.77
Statutory liabilities (including GST, provident fund, TDS efc.) 26.53 17.77
Current tax liabilities (net) - 5.26
Total 55.40 37.80

Note 24 - Provisions
Provision for employee benéefits:

Gratuity (Refer Note 45) 11.79 6.38
Compensated absences 6.22 6.00
Others:
Provision for indirect tax matters (Refer Note below) 19.71 41.88
Current tax liabilities (net) 1.54 -
Total 39.26 54.26
Note:
Movement of provision for indirect tax matters
Opening balance 41.88 55.49
Provision created/(utilised) (net) (22.17) (13.61)
Closing balance 19.71 41.88
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Agro Tech Foods Limited

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(Al amounts are in ¥ millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

For the year ended For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Note 25 - Revenue from operations

Sale of products 8,347.40 8,231.83
Other operating revenues 7.22 4,78
Total 8,354.62 8,236.61
Note:

() The Company disaggregates revenue from contracts with customers by geography. Disaggregation of
revenue by geography is not an operating segment as disclosed in Note 40.

Location

India 8,308.95 8,195.69
Qutside India 38.45 36.14
Total 8,347.40 8,231.83

Geographical revenue is allocated based on the location of customers.
(i) Reconciliation of gross revenue from contracts with customers

Gross Revenue 8,760.29 8,659.33
Less : Trade allowances and rebates 412.89 427.50
Net revenue recognised during the year 8,347.40 8,231.83
Note 26 - Other income
Gain on disposal of mutual funds units 31.80 27.53
Fair value gain on financial assets mandatorily measured at fair value 0.24 0.66
through profit and loss
Interest income from deposits with banks and others 2.15 9.84
Total 34.19 38.03
Note 27 - Cost of materials consumed
Opening stock
Raw materials (including materials in transit) 366.53 473.73
Packing materials (including materials in transit) 95.34 93.34
Add: Purchases
Raw materials 3,735.10 3,499.88
Packing materials 591.55 590.66
Less: Closing stock
Raw materials (including materials in transit) 371.62 366.53
Packing materials (including materials in transit) 106.74 95.34
Total 4,310.16 4,195.74
Note 28 - Purchase of stock-in-trade
Stock-in-frade 1,324.77 1,426.64
Total 1,324.77 1,426.64
Note 29 - Changes in inventories of finished goods and stock-in-trade
Opening stock:
Finished goods (including materials in fransit) 373.69 370.91
Stock-in-trade 4.69 7.27
Closing stock:
Finished goods (including materials in transit) 296.51 373.69
Stock-in-trade 5.01 4.69
Decrease / (Increase) in finished goods and stock-in-trade 76.86 (0.20)
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For the year ended For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Note 30 - Employee benefit expenses
Salaries, wages and bonus 494.39 489.62
Contribution to provident and other funds (Refer Note 45) 49.23 47.78
Employee share based payment expense (13.22) 4.80
Staff welfare expenses 17.18 13.93
Total 547.58 556.13
Note 31 - Finance costs
Interest on bank borrowings 4.44 0.94
Less: Amount capitalised (Refer Note 4) (3.70) -
Other interest expenses (Refer Note 35) 16.94 -
Total 17.68 0.94
Note 32 - Other expenses
Consumption of stores and spares 24.77 23.99
Power and fuel 59.10 60.58
Processing charges 86.24 81.36
Rent 217.21 235.99
Rates and taxes 25.69 24.08
Repairs and maintenance:

- Machinery 6.94 6.04

- Buildings 0.06 0.28

- Others 25.32 21.35
Insurance 19.73 10.89
Printing and stationery 3.04 2.96
Software expenses 23.30 22.92
Communication expenses 17.94 22.21
Travelling expenses 101.78 94.67
Corporate social responsibility expense (Refer Note 42) 6.86 4.62
Auditors' remuneration (Refer Note 38) 6.66 7.83
Outward freight 369.33 366.62
Brokerage/ commission 29.75 38.61
Distribution expenses 125.73 96.46
Legal and professional charges 93.77 73.03
Advertisement and sales promaotion 186.46 144.08
Royalty 29.82 26.97
Bad debts written off 1.16 -
Less: Provision reversed (1.16) -
Provision for doubtful debts 0.55 4,96
Loss on sale/ retirement of property, plant and equipment (net) 1.94 1.89
(Gain)/Loss on foreign currency transactions (net) (0.39) 1.30
Bank charges 0.87 0.87
Miscellaneous expenses 49.06 36.60
Total 1,511.53 1,411.16
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Note 33 - Income-tax

. For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

(a) Amounts recognised in the statement of profit and loss
Tax expense for the year

Current Tax 110.49 182.34
Tax in respect of earlier years 2.51 0.13
113.00 182.47
Deferred tax charge / (credit), (45.13) 6.39)
Deferred tax (credit) in respect of earlier years - (8.45)
Total 67.87 168.63
(b) Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income
Tax effect on remeasurement of defined benefit plans 1.11 -
Total 1.11 -

* amount below % Million
(c) The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the
accounting profit as follows:

Profit before tax 406.35 511.17
Tax using the Group’s domestic tax rate 102.08 179.12
Tax effect of:
Change in income tax rate* (38.12) -
Adjustment of tax relating to the earlier years 2.51 (9.29)
Weighted deduction on research and development expenditure - (2.36)
MAT credit entitlement - (0.96)
Deferred tax credit for deduction of Section 80JJAA of the Income-tax Act, 1961 (0.84) (1.33)
Tax effects of amounts which are not deductible in determining taxable profit 2.24 3.44
67.87 168.63
Note:

*Includes % (36.85) relating to the Parent Company, which during the year elected to exercise the option
permitted under Section 115BAA of the Income-tax Act, 1961 as introduced by the Taxation Laws (Amendment)
Act, 2019. Accordingly, the Parent Company has recognized provision for Income-tax for the year ended
March 31, 2020 and re-measured its deferred tax liabilities (net) based on the rate of 22% plus surcharge and
cess as prescribed in the Act.

(d) Deferred tax liabilities (net)

The following is the analysis of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) As at As at

presented in the Balance Sheet March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Deferred tax assets 22.97 17.63
Deferred tax liabilities (91.94) (131.73)
Total (68.97) (114.10)
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2019-20
Deferred tax (liabilities) / assets in relation to : Opening Recognised in Closing
balance Statement of Profit and Loss balance
On provision for doubtful debts and advances 30.82 (8.77) 22.05
On expenditure allowed on payment basis 15.48 (3.65) 11.83
Property, plant and equipment (184.11) 45.99 (138.12)
Others 0.06 2.69 2.75
MAT credit entitlement 2.31 - 2.31
Unabsorbed loss of Agro Tech Foods (Bangladesh) Pvt. Ltd. 20.07 6.04 26.11
Unabsorbed loss of Sundrop Foods Lanka (Private) Limited 1.27 2.83 4.10
Total ~(114.10) © 4513 T (68.97)
2018-19
Deferred tax (liabilities) / assets in relation to : Opening Recognised in Closing
balance Statement of Profit and Loss balance
On provision for doubtful debts and advances 28.81 2.01 30.82
On expenditure allowed on payment basis 12.97 2.51 15.48
Property, plant and equipment (171.84) (12.27) (184.11)
Others (6.33) 6.39 0.06
MAT credit entitlement - 2.31 2.31
Unabsorbed loss of Agro Tech Foods (Bangladesh) Pvt. Ltd. 7.43 12.64 20.07
Unabsorbed loss of Sundrop Foods Lanka (Private) Limited 0.64 0.63 1.27
(128.32) 14.22 (114.10)
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Note 34 - Contingent liabilities and commitments:

As at As at

Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

() Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on
capital account and not provided for (net of capital advances) 196.21 337.47

(i) Contingent liabilities (to the extent not provided for):
Contingent liabilities:
Claims against the Group not acknowledged as debts in respect of :

- Indirect tax and direct tax matters, under dispute 252.65 264.13
- Other matters, under dispute 0.50 0.50
Note:

The Company is subject to legal proceedings and claims, which have arisen in the ordinary course of business
including litigation before various tax authorities. The amounts included above represent the best possible
estimates arrived at on the basis of available information. The uncertainties and possible reimbursements are
dependent on the outcome of the different legal processes which have been invoked by the Company or the
claimants as the case may be and therefore cannot be predicted accurately. The Company engages reputed
professional advisors to protect its interests and has been advised that it has strong legal positions against such
dispute. The Company's Management does not reasonably expect that these legal actions, when ultimately
concluded and determined, will have a material and adverse effect on the Company's results of operations or
financial conditions. The Company has accrued appropriate provision wherever required.

Note 35 - Leases

The Group has adopted Ind AS 116 'Leases' with the date of initial application being April 1, 2019. Ind AS 116
replaces Ind AS 17 - Leases and related interpretation and guidance. The Group has applied Ind AS 116 using
the modified retrospective approach. Right-of-use assets at April 1, 2019 for leases previously classified as
operating leases were recognised and measured at an amount equal to the lease liability (adjusted for any
prepayments/accruals). As a result, the comparative information has not been restated. The Group has
discontfinued lease payments using the incremental borrowing rate as at April 1, 2019 for measuring lease
liability.

Accordingly, on transition to Ind AS 116, the Group recognised right-of-use assets amounting to % 188.48 and
lease liability amounting to % 176.29. During the year ended March 31, 2020, the Group has recognised interest
expense on lease amounting to ¥ 16.94 and depreciation on right-of-use assets amounting to ¥ 27.55.
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Particulars

As at
March 31, 2020

(i) The following is the breakup of current and non current lease liabilities

Current lease liabilities 16.86
Non current lease liabilities 144.59
161.45
(ii) The following in the movement is the lease liabilities during the year ended Amount
March 31, 2020
Balance at the beginning 176.29
Finance cost accrued during the year 16.94
Payment of lease liabilities (including finance cost) (31.78)
Balance at the end 161.45

(i) The impact of change in accounting policy on account on adoption of
Ind AS 116 is as follows:

For the year ended
March 31, 2020

Interest on lease liability (Refer Note 31) 16.94
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (Refer Note 5) 27.55
(iv) Maturity analysis of lease liabilities as at March 31, 2020 Mqrcﬁs;]:,t 2020
Less than one year 16.86
One to five years 75.23
More than five years 69.36
Total lease liabilities as at March 31, 2020 161.45

Nofte: It is net off of prepaid rent recognised on fair valuation of rental deposits aggregating ¥ 12.19.

Note 36 - Intangible assets - Trademarks

Trademarks represent the purchase consideration paid for brand "Sundrop". Sundrop brand has been assessed
to have an indefinite useful life and therefore measured at cost and not subject to amortisation, but tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that it might be impaired.
On the Balance Sheet date, the Management reassesses the value of brand through an independent valuer to
ensure that the recoverable amount of the asset is not lower than its carrying amount. Key assumptions used in
the estimation of the recoverable amount are set out below:

Particul As at As at
arficulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Pre tax discount rate 21.40% 25.40%

Terminal growth rate 4.00% 1.00%

The Management believes that any reasonable possible change in the key assumptions that would not cause
the carrying amount to exceed the recoverable amount of the asset.

Note 37 - Exceptional items

On November 4, 2018, a fire broke out at one of the manufacturing facilities of the Parent Company which
caused damage to the Company’s property, plant, and equipment and inventory. The Company lodged a
claim with the insurance company for losses suffered which is under process by the insurance company. The
Company had recorded aloss of 3 251.76 arising from such incident for the year ended March 31, 2019. Further,
the Company had also recognised a minimum insurance claim receivable for equivalent amounts and disclosed
under Note 13 in these consolidated financial statments. The aforementioned losses and the corresponding
credit arising from insurance claim receivable has been presented on a net basis (X Nil) under Exceptional
items in these consolidated financial statements for the year previous year 2018-19. As confirmed by the insurance
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company, prima facie the claim submission and progress is satisfactory and they do not find any concermnin the
processing of the claim till date. The Company has received paymnet aggregating % 126.48 from the inurance
company and % 6.77 from scrap vendor. The same has been adjusted with the amount recoverable from the
insurance company.The Company has during the year written off loss relating to inventories (net of insurance
claim received) of % 2.26.

Also, the Company is in the process of determining its final claim for loss of property, plant and equipment and
losses incurred due to interruption of business and has accordingly not recorded any further claim arising therefrom
at this stage.

Note 38 - Auditors' remuneration (excluding GST):

For the year ended For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

To Statutory auditor
Statutory audit fee# 3.37 3.64
Tax audit fee# 0.35 0.35
Limited review fee* 0.97 0.80
Fees for certifications 1.10 1.33
Others* 0.31 0.77
Reimbursement of expenses 0.56 0.94
Total 6.66 7.83

* Current year remuneration includes % 0.27 in respect of limited review fees and % 0.31 in respect of other
services paid to the predecessor auditor of the Parent.

# Includes statutory audit fees and tax audit fees of ¥ 0.61 and % 0.13 respectively, (March 31, 2019: % 0.61
and % 0.13), paid to statutory auditors of the subsidiary companies.

Note 39 - Earnings per equity share ("EPS")

For the year ended For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
(a) Net profit attributable to the equity shareholders (Z in Million) 338.48 342.54
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during
the year (No's)
Basic outstanding shares 24,369,264 24,369,264
Less: Weighted average number of freasury shares 784,638 961,078
(b) Weighted average number of shares used for computing 23,584,626 23,408,186
basic EPS (No's)
Add: Dilutive effect of stock options 499 31,834
(c) Weighted average number of shares used for computing 23,585,125 23,440,020
diluted EPS (No's)
(d) Basic earnings per share (%) (a/b) 14.35 14.63
(e) Diluted earnings per share k) (a/c) 14.35 14.61

Note 40 - Segmental information

The Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) evaluates the Group's performance and allocates resources
based on analysis of various performance indicators by industry classes. The operating segment of the Group
has been identified as "Foods" as the CODM reviews the business performance at an overall Group level as one
segment.

Information about major customers

Revenue from specific customers exceeding 10% of total revenue

For the year ended For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
One customer
Revenue from top customer 1,133.79 1,158.20
Percentage of total revenue 13.58% 14.07%
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Note 41 - Related parties

Relationships

Name of related parties

1. Ultimate Holding Company
Holding Company
2. Fellow Subsidiary Company
Key Management Personnel (KMP) :

Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer
Chief Financial Officer

Company Secretary
Independent Directors

4  Post-employment benefit frusts

Conagra Brands Inc. (formerly known as ConAgra Foods Inc.)
CAG Tech (Mauiritius) Limited
ConAgra Foods Export Company, Inc.

Mr. Sachin Gopal

Mr. K P N Srinivas (w.e.f. August 1, 2019)
Mr. Arijit Datta (Upto August 1, 2019)
Ms. Jyoti Chawla

Lt.Gen.D.B. Singh

Mr. Sanjaya Kulkarni

Mr. Arun Bewoor

Mr. Narendra Ambwani

Ms. Veena Vishindas Gidwani

Agro Tech Foods Management Staff Gratuity Fund
Agro Tech Foods Non-Management Gratuity Fund
Agro Tech Foods Provident Fund

Agro Tech Foods Superannuation Fund

(a) Related party transactions during the year

Particulars

For the For the
year ended year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Relationship

ConAgra Foods Export Company, Inc.
Purchase of Goods

Conagra Brands Inc. (formerly known as ConAgra Foods Inc.)

Royalty
Recovery of expenses

CAG Tech (Mauritius) Limited
Dividend paid

Key Managerial Personnel Compensation
Short-term employee benefits*
Post-employment defined benefits*
Sitting fees and commission to independent directors

Agro Tech Foods Management Staff Gratuity Fund

Contribution during the year

Agro Tech Foods Provident Fund
Contribution during the year

Agro Tech Foods Superannuation Fund
Contribution during the year

Fellow Subsidiary

- 1.04
Ultimate Holding Company
29.82 26.96
- 0.22
Holding Company
31.54 31.54
Key Management Personnel
26.49 35.49
1.95 2.01
6.20 5.85
Post-employment benefit trusts
6.38 5.22
Post-employment benefit trusts
37.33 34.63
Post-employment benefit trusts
6.97 6.87

*Remuneration as given above does not include long-term compensated absences benefit accrued, gratuity
benefit accrued and insurance premium since the same are computed for all the employees together and
the amounts attributable to the managerial personnel cannot be ascertained separately. Share-based
compensation expense allocable to key management personnel is not included in the remuneration disclosed
above. It excludes gratuity of ¥ 1.19 paid to the KMP resigned during the year.
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(b) Balances receivable from/payable to related parties

Particulars Relationship M arcﬁs;lut Mar Cﬁssc?jr
2020 2019
Payable to related parties
Agro Tech Foods Management Staff Gratuity Fund  Post-employment benefit trusts 10.47 6.38
Agro Tech Foods Provident Fund Post-employment benefit trusts 2.64 2.36
Agro Tech Foods Superannuation Fund Post-employment benefit trusts 0.56 0.58
Conagra Brands Inc. Ultimate Holding Company 4.05 3.45
(formerly known as ConAgra Foods Inc.)
Key Managerial Personnel Compensation Key Managerial Personnel 0.13 7.62
Independent Directors Independent Directors 3.20 2.95

Note: The above information has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis
of information available with the Group and relied upon by the auditors.

Note 42 - Corporate social responsibility

During the year, the Group has spent % 6.86 (March 31, 2019: % 4.62) towards CSR activities, this includes Social
welfare program called "Poshan". The program which is designed to address malnourishment amongst children,
works with Government Anganwadi’s and Child Malnourishment Treatment Centers using Peanut Butter which
is arich source of protein and highly effective to fight malnutrition. The amount includes allocable manufacturing
overhead. The amount also includes contribution made to PM CARES FUND of ¥ 2. The corporate social
responsibility expenditure represents about 1.41% (March 31, 2019: 1.06%) of last 3 years average profit.

Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year : % 9.75 (March 31, 2019: % 8.69).

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Amount spent other than for construction/ acquisition of any asset 6.86 4.62

Amount accrued and not paid - -
6.86 4.62

Note 43 - Research and development expenses

Revenue expenditure on research and development is expensed as incurred. Capital expenditure incurred on
research and development ('R&D") is capitalised as property, plant and equipment and depreciated in
accordance with the depreciation policy of the Group. The details are as below:

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Capital expenditure 11.62 0.12
Revenue expenditure 22.64 19.14
34.26 19.26

Note 44 - Capital management

The Group's policy is fo maintain a stable and strong capital structure with focus on total equity so as to
maintain investors, creditors and market confidence and to sustain future development and growth of its
business. In order to maintain the capital structure, the group monitors the return on capital, as well as the level
of dividends of equity share holders. The Group aims to manage its capital efficiently so as to safeguard its
ability to continue as a going concern and to optimise returns to all its shareholders. For the purpose of Group's
capital management, capital includes issued capital and all other equity reserves and debt includes long
term borrowings and short-term working capital demand loan.
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The group monitors capital on the basis of the following gearing ratio

. As at As at
Particulars March 31,2020 March 31, 2019
Total Debt 47.00 -
Total Equity 4,087.43 3,763.90
Debt to equity ratio 0.01 -

Note 45 - Employee Benefits

a) The employee benefit schemes are as under:

i. Provident fund:

All employees of the Group receive benefits under the Provident Fund which is a defined benefit plan wherein the
Group provides the guarantee of a specified return on contribution. The contribution is made both by the employee
and the Group equal to 12% of the employees' salary. These contributions are made to the fund administered and
managed by the Group's own Trust. (Refer Note 41).

ii. Superannuation fund:

The Company has a defined contribution scheme to provide pension to its eligible employees. The Company makes
monthly contributions equal to a specified percentage of the covered employees' salary. These contributions are
administered by Company's own Trust which has subscribed to "Group Superannuation Policy" of ICICI Prudential Life
Insurance Company Limited. The Company's monthly contributions are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss.
iii. Compensated absences :

The accrual for unutilised leave is determined for the entire available leave balance standing to the credit of the
employees at the year end. The value of such leave balances that are eligible for carry forward, is determined by
an actuarial valuation as at the end of the year and is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

iv. Gratuity :

In accordance with the 'The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972' of India, the Company provides for Gratuity, a defined
retirement benefit scheme (the Gratuity Plan), covering eligible employees. Liabilities with regard to such gratuity
plan are determined by an actuarial valuation as at the end of the year. The gratuity plan is a funded plan
administered by Group's own Trust which has subscribed to "Group Gratuity Scheme" of ICICI Prudential Life Insurance
Company Limited.

Risk Management:

Investment risk - The probability or likelihood of occurrence of losses related to the expected return on any particular
investment,

Interest rate risk - The plan exposes the Group to the risk of fall in interest rates. A fall in interest rates will result in an
increase in the ultimate cost of providing the above benefit and will thus result in an increase in the value of the
liability.

Longetivity risk - The present value of defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of
the mortality of plan participants both during and aftfer employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan
participants will increase the plan's liability.

Salary risk - The present value of the defined benefit plan is calculated with reference to the future salaries of
participants under the plan. Increase in salary due to adverse inflationary pressures might lead to higher liabilities.
b) The following table sets out the particulars of the employee benefits as required under the Ind AS 19-."Employee
Benefits".

i) The amounts recognised in the Balance Sheet and the movement in the defined benefit obligation for Gratuity
is as follows:

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
. Present Fair value Net Present Fair value Net

Particulars value of  ofplan liability/ value of  of plan  liability/

obligation  assets (asset) obligation  assets (asset)
Opening balance (A) 62.14 55.04 7.10 56.34 48.94 6.40
Current service cost 7.76 - 7.76 7.44 - 7.44
Interest cost 4.05 - 4.05 3.68 - 3.68
Expected returns - 3.70 (3.70) - 3.74 (3.74)
Total amount recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss (B) 11.81 3.70 8.11 11.12 3.74 7.38
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March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
. Present  Fair value Net Present  Fair value Net
Particulars valueof  ofplan liability/ value of of plan  liability/
obligation  assets (asset) obligation  assets (asset)
Remeasurements
Loss/ (gain) from change in financial assumptions 3.42 - 3.42 0.79 - 0.79
Experience (gains)/ losses - experience 0.28 - 0.28 (1.04) - (1.04)
Return on plan assets, greater/ less than discount rate - (0.70) 0.70 - 0.02 (0.02)
Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income (C)  3.70 (0.70) 4.40 (0.25) 0.02 (0.27)
Contributions (D) - 7.10 (7.10) - 6.41 6.47)
Benefit paid (E) (8.68) (8.68) - 4.07) 4.07) -
Closing Balance (A+B+C+D+E) 68.97 56.46 12.51 62.14 55.04 7.10

i) The amounts recognised in the Balance Sheet and the movement in the defined benefit obligation for Provident
Fund is as follows:

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Particulars Present Fairvalue  Net Present Fairvalue  Net
value of of plan liability/ value of of plan liability/
obligation  assets (asset) obligation assets (asset)
Opening balance (A) 300.26 308.14 (7.88) 331.13 347.10 (15.97)
Current service cost 10.48 - 10.48 10.20 - 10.20
Interest cost 24.24 - 24.24 25.68 - 25.68
Expected returns - 24.75 (24.75) - 2713 (27.13)
Total amount to be recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss (B) 34.72 24.75 9.97 35.88 27.13 8.75
Remeasurements
Actuarial (gain)/ loss 11.63 - 11.63 2.48 - 2.48
Return on plan assets - 12.66 (12.66) - (7.05) 7.05
Total amount fo be recognised in other comprehensive income (C) 11.63 12.66 (1.03) 2.48 (7.05) 9.53
Contributions (D) 26.85 37.33 (10.48) 24.43 34.63 (10.20)
Transfer in (E) 0.89 0.89 - 0.47 0.47 -
Interest allocations (F) 27.59 27.59 - - - -
Benefits paid (G) (74.70) (74.70) - (94.13) (94.13) -
Closing Balance (A+B+C+D+E+F+G)** 327.24 336.66 (9.42) 300.26 308.15 (7.88)

** The Company has not recognised an asset amounting to ¥ 9.42 (March 31, 2019: % 7.88) as there are no future
economic benefits available to the Company in the form of reduction in future contribution or a cash refund.

iii) Significant estimates: Actuarial assumptions

The significant actuarial assumptions for defined benefit obligation are as follows:

Gratuity Provident Fund
Particulars March 31, March 37, March 31, March 31,
2020 2019 2020 2019
Discount rate 6.67% 7.45% 6.67% 7.43%
Expected rate of return on plan assets 6.67% 7.45% 8.50% 8.65%
Salary escalation rate 7.00% 7.00% 7.00% 7.00%

Discount rate : The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian Government securities as at the
Balance Sheet date for the estimated term of the obligations.

Expected rate of return on plan assets : This is based on the expectation of the average long-term rate of return
expected on investments of the fund during the estimated term of the obligations.
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Salary escalation rate : The estimates of future salary increase considered in the actuarial valuation takes info
account factors like inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors such as supply and demand in the
employment market.

iv) Details of plan assets

Gratuity Provident Fund
Particulars March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31,
2020 2019 2020 2019

Government of India securities - - 40.94% 36.20%
PSU bonds - - 42.58%  44.32%
State Government securities - - 16.48% 19.48%
Fund managed by ICICI Prudential Life Insurance Company Limited* 100% 100% - -
Total 100% 100% 100% 100%

*The Group makes annual contribution to the ICICI Prudential Life Insurance Company Limited.

v) Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal assumptions is as follows:

Gratuity Provident Fund
Particulars March 31, March 31, March 31,  March 31,
2020 2019 2020 2019
A. Discount rate
a. Discount rate - 100 basis points 73.85 66.45 336.45 306.60
b. Discount rate +100 basis points 64.63 53.35 326.38 297.28
B. Salary increase Rate
a. Rate - 100 basis points 64.59 58.30 326.38 298.78
b. Rate +100 basis points 73.80 66.42 335.98 307.10

The above sensitivity analysis is based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant.
In practice, this is unlikely to occur and changes in some of the assumptions maybe corelated. When calculating
the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same method (present
value of the defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected units credit method at the end of the reporting
period) has been applied when calculating the defined benefit liability regrouped in the Balance Sheet.

The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the
previous year.

vi) Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation:

Gratuity Provident Fund
Particulars March 31,2020 March 31, 2019 March 31,2020 March 31, 2019
Year 1 16.34 17.04 34.42 32.17
Year 2 6.30 3.35 52.13 48.72
Year 3 4.42 5.72 28.38 26.53
Year 4 6.74 3.97 23.35 21.82
Year 5 4.17 5.92 59.64 55.74
Year 6 to 10 29.03 27.93 157.02 146.75

The Company expects to contribute ¥ 10.53 to its defined benefit plans during the next fiscal year.
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Note 46 - Financial instruments

The Group’s principal financial liabilities comprise borrowings, tfrade payables and other liabilities. The Group’s
principal financial assets include loans, investments, trade and other receivables, and cash and cash equivalents
that derive directly from its operations. The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks viz. market risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's primary focus is to foresee the unpredictability of financial markets and seek
to minimise potential adverse effects on its financial performance. The primary market risk to the Group is foreign
exchange risk. The Group uses derivative financial instruments to mitigate foreign exchange related risk exposures.
The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristic of each customer and the
concentration of risk from the top few customers. All derivative activities for risk management purposes are carried
out by specialist teams that have the appropriate skills, experience and supervision. It is the Group's policy that no
tfrading in derivative for speculative purposes may be undertaken. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees
policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below:

Accounting classification and fair values

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities as af
March 31, 2020, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy.

Carrying amount Fair value
Particulars Note FVIPL FVOCI Otherfinancial Other  Total Level Level Level Total
assets - financial carrying 1 2 3

amortised cost  liobilities amount

Financial assets

Non current financial assets 7 - - 24.78 - 24.78 - - - -
Investments in mutual fund units 10 139.24 - - - 139.24 139.24 - - 139.24
Trade receivables 11 - - 749.36 - 749.36 - - - -
Cash and cash equivalents  12(a) - - 50.54 - 50.54 - - - -
Bank balances (other than 12(b) - - 4.24 - 4.24 - - - -
cash and cash equivalents)
Other financial assets 13 - - 121.68 - 121.68 - - - -
139.24 - 950.60 - 1,089.84 139.24 - - 139.24
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 17 - - - 37.60 37.60 - - - -
Trade payables 20 - - - 48271 482.71 - - - -
Other financial liabilities 22 - - - 95.74 95.74 - - - -
Lease liabilities 18, 21 - - - 16145 161.45 - - - -

- - - 77750 777.50 - - - -
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The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities as af
March 31, 2019, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy.

Carrying amount Fair value
Particulars Note FVIPL FVOCI Otherfinancial Other  Total Level Level Level Total
assets - financial carrying 1 2 3

amortised cost  liabilities amount

Financial assets

Non current financial assets 7 - - 29.28 - 2928 - - - -
Investments in mutual fund units 10 350.66 - - - 350.66 350.66 - - 350.66
Trade receivables 11 - - 810.13 - 810.13 - - - -
Cash and cash equivalents 12(a) - - 44.28 - 4428 - - - -
Bank balances (other than 12(b) - - 4.32 - 4.32 - - - -
cash and cash equivalents)
Other financial assets 13 - - 145,27 - 14527 - - - -
350.66 - 1,033.28 - 1,383.94 350.66 - - 350.66
Financial liabilities
Trade payables 20 - - - 634.94 634.94 - - - -
Other financial liabilities 22 - - - 5546  55.46 - - - -

- - - 690.40  690.40 - - - -

Fair value hierarchy

The fair value of financial instruments as referred to above have been classified into three categories depending
on the inputs used in the valuation technique. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active
markets for identified assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3
measurements)

The following levels have been used for classification:

e Level T: Quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical instruments in active market

* Level 2: Directly or indirectly observable market inputs, other than Level 1 inputs

* Level 3: Inputs which are not based on observable market data.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the fair value is determined using

generally accepted pricing model based on a discounted cash flow analysis, with the most significant inputs
being the discount rate that reflects the credit risk of counterparty.

The fair value of frade receivables, frade payables and other current financial assets and liabilities is considered to
be equal to the carrying amounts of these items due to their short-term nature. Where such items are non-current
in nature, the same has been classified as Level 3 and fair value determined using discounted cash flow basis.
There has been no change in the valuation methodology for Level 3 inputs during the year. There were no transfers
between Level 1 and Level 2 during the year.

Financial risk management

The Group has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instfruments:
i. Credit Risk

ii. Liquidity Risk

ii. Market Risk

Risk Management framework:

The Group’s financial risk management is an integral part of how to plan and execute its business strategies. The
Group’s risk management policy is set by the Risk Management Committee. The Group’s activities expose it to a
variety of financial risks: credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk. The Group’s primary focus is to foresee the
unpredictability of financial markets and seek to minimise potential adverse effects on ifs financial performance.
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A summary of the risks have been given below:
Credit risk

Creditrisk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet
its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the group’s receivables from customers and loans given.
Credit risk arises from cash held with banks, as well as credit exposure to clients, including outstanding accounts
receivables. The maximum exposure to credit risk is equal to the carrying value of the financial assets. The objective
of managing counterparty credit risk is to prevent losses in financial assets. The Group assesses the credit quality of
the counterparties, faking into account their financial position, past experience and other factors.

Trade and other receivables

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. In
monitoring customer credit risk, customers are grouped according to their credit characteristics, including whether
they are wholesale, retail or institutional customers, their industry, tfrading history with the Group and existence of
previous financial difficulties. The default in collection as a percentage to total receivable is low.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial
liabilities that are seftled by delivering cash or any other financial asset. The Group's approach to managing
liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due,

under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risk damage to the Group's
reputation.

The Group monitors the level of expected cash inflows on trade receivables and loans together with expected
cash outflows on trade payables and other financial liabilities.

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities as at March
31, 2020 and March 31, 2019:

As at March 31, 2020
Carnying value Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2 years and above

Particulars

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Trade payables 482.71 482.71 - -
Ofther financial liabilities 95.74 95.74 - -
Lease liabilities 161.45 16.86 20.11 124.48

739.90 595.31 20.11 124.48

As at March 31, 2019
Carrying value Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2 years and above

Particulars

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Trade payables 634.94 634.94 - -
Other financial liabilities 55.46 55.46 - -

690.40 690.40 - -
Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices - such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates - will affect
the Group's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management
is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. Since the Group has insignificant interest bearing borrowings, the exposure to risk
of changes in market interest rates is minimal. The Group has not used any interest rate derivatives.
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Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk to the extent that there is missnatch between the currencies in which sales,
purchase are denominated and the respective functional currencies of Group. The functional currency of the
Group is INR and maximum sales fransactions are denominated in INR itself. Foreign currency transactions are
mainly denominated in USD.

Exposure to currency risk

As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Particulars Foreign Currency Amount in Foreign Currency  Amount in
(USD) T millions (USD) T millions

The following is the nominal value of outstanding derivative contracts entered into by the Group for hedging
currency:

Trade payables 93,976 6.83 93,846 6.52
The particulars of un-hedged foreign currency exposure as at Balance Sheet date is as under

Trade payables 38,834 2.93 1,334 0.09
Trade receivables 10,672 0.80 31,004 2.16

Sensitivity Analysis:
The profit or loss is sensitive to foreign exchange gain/ (loss) as a result of changes in foreign exchange rates.

Impact on profit for the year ended

Particulars March 31,2020 March 31, 2019
Foreign exchange rate - Increases by 5% (0.11) 0.10
Foreign exchange rate - Decreases by 5% 0.11 (0.10)

Price risk exposure

The Group’s exposure to price risk arises from investments held by the Group in the mutual fund units and classified
as fair value through profit or loss. To manage its price risk arising from investments in mutual fund units, the Group
diversifies its portfolio. Diversification of the portfolio is done in accordance with the limits set by the Group. The
exposure of the Group’s mutual fund investments to security price changes at the end of the reporting period are
as follows:

Particulars As at March 31, 2020 As af March 31, 2019
Investments in mutual funds 139.24 350.66

Sensitivity Analysis:
The profit or loss is sensitive to market price as a result of changes in price of mutual funds.

Impact on profit for the year ended

Particulars March 31,2020  March 31, 2019
Market price - Increases by 5% 6.96 17.53
Market price - Decreases by 5% (6.96) (17.53)
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Note 48 - During the year ended March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019 no material foreseeable loss was incurred for
any long-term contract including derivative contfracts.

Note 49 - The Ministry of Home Affairs vide order no. 40-3/2020-DM-I(A) dated March 24, 2020 announced a nation-
wide lockdown as a measure to contain the spread of COVID 19 which was declared a global pandemic by the
World Health Organisation. Owing to the lockdown, the supply chain was impacted in the second half of March
2020. However, being in the manufacture of food products covered under essential supplies, the Company has
since then seen a steady improvement in the supply chain with increased regulator support and labour availability.
The Company is closely monitoring the impact of the pandemic on all aspects of its business and is taking appropriate
measures to ensure the safety and well-being of all its employees and ensuring full compliance with the directives
issued by the Government in this regard.

The Management has exercised due care, in concluding on significant accounting judgements and estimates,
inter-alia, recoverability of receivables, assessment for impairment of investments, infangible assets, inventory, based
on the information available to date, both internal and external, to the extent relevant, while preparing these
consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2020. There is no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 owing to the pandemic. The eventual outcome
of impact of the global health pandemic may be different from those estimated as on the date of approval of
these consolidated financial statements.

Note 50 - The consolidated financial statements are approved for issue by the Audit Committee and Board of
Directors at their meetings held on May 28, 2020.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sachin Gopal Lt.Gen.D.B. Singh
Managing Director & CEO Director

DIN 07439079 DIN 00239637

K P N Srinivas Jyoti Chawla

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place : Gurugram
Date : May 28, 2020
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